& Accounts
2005

PROCFSSED
AR 28 208

HHUM‘OUN
FINANCIAL

Bradford & Bingley”



CONTENTS

Highlights

Business overview

Chairman'’s statement

Group Chief Executive’s review
Group Finance Director's review
Board of Directors

Corporate social responsibility report

25

26
29
| 35

36

37
| 38

Directors' report

Corporate governance

Directors’ remuneration report
Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
Independent auditor’s report
Consolidated Income Statement
Balance Sheets

39

39
4
88
99

Statements of Recognised Income
and Expense

Cash Flow statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
Appendix: Transition to IFRS
Shareholder information

Bradford & Bingley’s key priorities

Grow our specialist lending business

Drive improvements in retail across all channels




HIGHLIGHTS

Underlying profit before tax UNDERLYING PROFIT BEFORE TAX

m £310.lm L%

Profit before tax and loss on sale of discontinued operations PROFIT BEFCRE TAX AND LOSS ON SALE OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

UNDERLYING EARNINGS PER SHARE

DAp T

EARNINGS PER SHARE

=——7301p 255

2004 — 4.6p

FULL YEAR DIVIDEND

=83y /%

2004 — {7.1p

Underlying profit excludes restructuring and compensation costs.
An analysis of underlying profit and earnings per share is included in the Finance Director’s review on page 12,
2001-3 numbers on UK GAAP basis, 2004-5 numbers on IFRS basis.




BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We have a clear strategy and an appropriate
structure to drive the business forward in our two
' main business segments, Lending and Retall.

Lending

Bradford & Bingley's Lending business develops and
manufactures a range of specialist lending products
secured on UK residential property. The Group also
provides loans secured on commercial property and
makes loans to housing associations. VWe do not
participate in the unsecured consumer lending markets.

MORTGAGE EXPRESS

ESTABLISHED | 1986

Bradford & Bingley's specialist mortgage
products are sold under the Mortgage Express

brand, mostly through third party intermediaries.

These products cover niche areas of the
mortgage market which are attractive because
higher returns are available when compared to
those in the mainstream market, In order to
generate these returns, Bradford & Bingley has
developed a deep undenstanding of those niche
lending markets and strong specialist skills in
product development, underwriting, operations,
arrears and collections.

BUY-TO-LET

MARKET SHARE | 20%

Mortgage Express was a pioneer of buy-to-let
products in the mid 1990s. Bradford & Bingley
provides loans to landlords and residential
property investors using,our extensive

underwriting experience in this specialist market,

We are currently one of the leading buy-to-let
providers in the UK with balances of £15.1bn.

SELF-CERT
TOTAL BALANCES | £4.76n

These loans are for individuals who have
complex income streams such as the self-
employed and those with muttiple jobs. Bradford
& Bingley is a major player in this market We use
credit scoring techniques and manually
underwrite loans to minimise credit risk.

LIFETIME
POSITION IN MARKET 3rd

Lifetime loans enable customers over 60 years
old to gradually release the equity they have
built up in their main residence as an income
stream. Bradford & Bingley has been one of
the pioneers of this product in the last two
years and is one of the top three lenders in
this fast-growing segment of the market.

STANDARD MORTGAGES
TOTAL BALANCES | £5.8bn

Bradford & Bingley has a portfolio of
traditional residential mortgages, mainly
criginated through the branches prior to
conversion to plc status at the end of 2000.
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COMMERCIAL _PROPERTY FINANCE
TOTAL BALANCES | £2.7bn

This division predominantly provides loans to
investors in income producing commercial real
estate in the UK. These loans are, for the most
part, secured on retail, office or industrial
property. The division also has a small business
making loans to developers of pre-sold or pre-
let commercial property, and residential
development schemes.

HOUSING ASSOCIATION LENDING
TOTAL BALANCES | £2.3bn

Bradford & Bingley provides funding to housing
associations throughout the UK. Housing
associations are non-profit organisations that
provide affordable rented homes for people
unable to satisfy their housing needs in the
open market. Funding for development of new
stock or refurbishment of existing properties is
partially funded by a grant payment from the
Housing Corporation but housing associations
must raise the remainder from private sources.
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Quarterly report re: Aire Valley Mortgages Trustee Limited, Aire Valley Funding 1
Limited and Aire Valley Mortgages 2004 -1 plc, Aire Valley Mortgages 2005 - 1 Plc

The latest Quarterly Report for Aire Valley Trustee Limited is now available at
www.bbg.co.uk/bbg/ir/dis/securitisation/

During the previous quarter the following movements have occurred:

Portfolio Characteristics March 2006 December 2005

Qutstanding current balance of mortgages £7,211,446,224 £7,610,479,679

Number of mortgages 60,680 64,211

Average loan balance £118,845 £118,523

Weighted average current LTV 77.35% 77.46%

Arrears:

"1'month + 2.38% 2.14%
3 months + 1.28% 1.05%
12 months + 0.07% 0.04%
Repossessions 0.11% 0.05%

If you would like to discuss the information in this statement, please contact:

Investor Relations:

Katherine Conway

Tel: +44 (0) 1274 554928

Email: katherine.conway@bbg.co.uk

Neil Vanham
Tel: +44 (0) 1274 806341
Email: neil.vanham@bbg.co.uk

Press Office:

Nickie Aiken

Tel: +44 (0) 20 7067 5632
Email: nickie.aiken@bbg.co.uk

END




Bradford & Bingley plc

Annual Report & Accounts and Annual General Meeting documentation

Two copies of the Annual Report and Accounts 2005, Notice of Annual General
Meeting and Form of Proxy posted to shareholders in connection with the Annual
General Meeting of Bradford & Bingley plc to be held on 25 April 2006, were
forwarded to the UK Listing Authority today. These documents will be available to
the public for inspection at the Document Viewing Facility.

End
20 March 2006
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Before completing this form, please see the explanatory notes overleaf.

PLEASE USE BLACK OR BLUE INK AND MARK AN X INTHE BOXES
AS APPROPRIATE. Alternatively, you can vote electronically via the
internet or; if you are a CREST system user, by transmitting an appropriate
CREST message (see explanatory notes overleaf),

If you wish to appoint someone other than the Chairman of the Annual
General Meeting (AGM or the Meeting)to act as your proxy, please
insert their name below:

Your proxy, who need not be a shareholder of Bradford & Bingley plc (the
Company), must attend the Meeting in person in order to represent you,

In the case of joint holders only the first named holder need sign.To be valid
this Form of Proxy must arrive at the Company's Registrar; Computershare
Investar Services PLC, no later than 1100 am. on Sunday 23 April 2006 (or
if the Meeting is adjourned, not less than 48 hours before the time for holding
the adjourned Meeting). If you are under | 8, please ensure that this Form of

Proxy is signed by a parent or legal guardian. A prepaid envelope is provided. -

I/We, being the holder(s) of ordinary shares of 25 pence each in the capital
of Bradford & Bingley plc, hereby appoint the Chairman of the Meeting,
unless l/we name another person above, to act as my/our proxy at the
AGM of the Company to be held at |1.00 am. on Tuesday 25 April 2006
at the Ramada Jarvis Hotel, Bingley and at any adjournment. I/\Ve request
such proxy to vote on the resolutions as indicated opposite. In the absence
of instructions, the proxy is authorised to vote at his or her discretion on
the specified resolutions. The proxy is also authorised to vote on any other
business which may properly come before the Meeting.

If you are voting or appointing a proxy by post, you must sign this Form of
Proxy in the box.below in order for your votes and appointment to be valid.

Signature (Please sign in the box abové)’ ‘

2006

Date (Please enter today's date in the box above)

Resolutions

l. To receive the Report & Accounts.

2. To approve the Directors' Remuneration
Report.

3. To declare a final dividend.
4. To re-appoint StephendVebster as

a Director. ¢

S.V To re-appoint Robert Dickie as
a Director.

6. To .re»appoint Chris Gillespie as
a Director.

7. To re-appoint Chris Willford as
a Director,
8. To re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditer.
9. To authorise the Directors to determine
the auditor's remuneration.

10.To renew the Directors' authority to
issue shares.

1. To renew the disapplication of
pre-emption rights.

12. 76 authorise the Company to purchase
its own shares.

13.To amend the Articles of Association.

No Members of the Remuneration
Committee are seeking re-appointment
this year.

| ‘Shareholder
AGM 2006 Form of Proxy

For

N T I 0 I O Y

Against Withheld
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E136
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Please detach here and bring to the AGM

Bradford & Bingley”

Annual General Meeting 2006 Attendance Slip

The AGM is being held at 11.00 am. bnTuesday 25 Aprit 2006 at the Ramada
Jarvis Hotel, Bingley. If you wish to attend, please bring this section with you
and hand it in on arrival, This will facilitate entrance to the Meeting,

A map of the hotel location and travel details are included within the Notice

of Annual General Meeting 2006 booklet.

62878A/9v1 0000353/705/C2U







Please read the enclosed No‘uce of Annual General Meetmg 2006 booklet for more detalls on the AGM and the resolutions to be
proposed at the AGM, If, after reading these explanatory notes and booklet you have any gueries, please call our Shareholder Helpline on
0870 703 0003, Please note that the helpline staff will not be able to advise you whether you should withhold your vote or vote for or
against the resolutions to be proposed at the AGM.

You may attend the Meeting in person, in which case you do not have 1o return the Form of Proxy. Alternatively, you may choose to vote by pest
or electronically via the internet. To vote electronically please access our-Registrar's website at www.computershare.comivating/uk and follow the
online instructions using the PIN and Securityholder Reference Number (SRN) quoted on your Form of Proxy.

If you are a CREST system user (including CREST personal member) you can appoint one or more proxies or give an instruction to a proxy by
having an appropriate CREST message transmitted. To appoint a proxy or to give an instruction 1o a proxy (whether previously appointed or
otherwise) via the CREST system, the CREST message must be received by Computershare (1D number 3RA50) no later than close of business on
Friday 21 April 2006. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the timestamp generated by the CREST
system) from which Computershare is able to retrieve the message. CREST personal members or other CREST sponsored mernbers should
contact their CREST sponsor for assistance with appointing proxies via CREST. For further informriation on CREST procedures, limitations and
systern timings, please refer to the CREST manual. The Company may treat as invafid a proxy appointment sent by CREST in the cmcumstances set
out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 200] .«

Please note that the Company takes all rezsonable precautions to ensure no viruses are present in any electronic communication it sends out.
However, the Company cannct accept responsibility for loss or damage arising from the opening or use of any e-mail or attachments from the
Company and recommends that shareholders subject all messages to virus checking procedures prior to use. Any electronic communication
received by the Company, including the lodgement of an electronic proxy form, that is found to contain any virus will not be accepted.

Whether you are voting by post or electronically, please ensure that your Form of Proxy and, if applicable, any Power of Attorney or other valid
authority under which it is signed, or your electronic instruction, reaches the Company's Registrar, Computershare Investor Services PLC, no later
than 11.00 am. on Sunday 23 April 2006 (or; if the Meeting is adjourned, not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the adjourned
Meeting). A prepaid envelope is provided for postal voting,

If you are voting by post, you must sign the voting form in order for your votes to be valid. If you are a joint account holder, only the first named
holder need sign. in the case of a corporation, this Form of Proxy must be given under its Common Seal (if any), or be signed on its behalf by an
officer or attorney of the corporation or other person or agent duly authorised to sign it The person signing should state the capacity in which they
are signing. In the case of an individua! this Form of Proxy must be signed by the shareholder or their attorney,

This Form of Proxy is issued only to the addressee(s) and is specific to the class of security and the unique designated account printed hereon. This
personalised Form of Proxy is not transferable between (i) account holders; (i) classes of security; or (iil) uniquely designated accounts. Bradford &
Bingley plc and Computershare Investor Services PLC accept ne liability for any instruction that does not comply with these conditions.

Only those persons entered on the register of members of the Company at 6.00 p.m. on the date which is two days prior to the Meeting
or any adjournment of it shall be entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting or adjourned Meeting. Changes to entries on the register after
this time shall be disregarded in determining the rights of persens to attend or vote (and the number of votes they may cast) at the
Meeting or any adjourned Meeting. Such a shareholder is entitied to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote instead of
the shareholder: A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company. Appointing a proxy will not prevent members from attending and
voting at the AGM if they later decide to do so.

The "Withheld option on the voting form is provided to enable you to abstain on any particular resolution. However, it should be noted that a vote
withheld is not a vote in law and will not be counted in the calculation of the proportion of the votes ‘For' and ‘Against’ a resolution.

. If you do not indicate your voting intention, the proxy is authorised 1o vote (or abstain from voting) at his or her discretion on the specified

resolutions. The proxy is also authorised to vote (or abstain, from voting) on any other business which may pr‘operly come before the Meeting.

. The results of the postal and electronic votes will be rade avallable to shareholders at the Meeting and followmg the Meeting on the Company

website at wwwibbg co. uk

. If you have more than one holding of the Company's shares you may be able to amalgamate these free of charge by writing separately to the

Company's Registrar, Computershare Investor Services PLC, quoting the SRN for each holding. This may reduce the number of mailings you receive
as a holder of the Company’s shares. Please note that the name (designation, if any) and address must be the same for all the holdings that you wish
1o amalgamate and you should indicate which SRN you wish to retain.

(02/2008)
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Notice of Annual
General Meeting

This document is important and requires your immediate attention.

If you are in any doubt about the action to be taken you should
consult an independent adviser immediately.

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your shareholding

in Bradford & Bingley plc, please pass this document and the
accompanying voting form to the purchaser or transferee, or to

the stockbroker; bank or other person through whom the sale or
transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

Bradford & Bingley”



Shareholder helpline 0870 703 0003

. March 2006

Dear Shareholder
Annual General Meeting 2006

I am pleased to send you details about the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM") of Bradford & Bingley plc (the ‘Company’) to be
held at |1.00 am. on Tuesday 25 April 2006 at the Ramada Jarvis Bradford/Bingley Hotel, Bradford Road, Bingley. Please note
that this is a change of venue for our AGM.

The formal notice of our AGM starts on page 2 of this document and there is information relating to the business of the AGM
on page |. Included in the Ordinary Business of the AGM will be Resoiutions 10 and | | which seek to renew the Directors’
authority to allot up to 200 million shares and to disapply the statutory pre-emption rights over shares equivalent to 5% in
number of the shares currently in issue, without further shareholder consent. These authorities were previously approved by
shareholders at the AGM in 2005. Resolution |2, which has been proposed and approved by shareholders for each of the last
five years, would allow the Board to buy back shares equivalent to |0% in number of the shares currently in issue, without
further shareholder consent. The Directors are also proposing one item of Special Business. Resolution 13 will amend the
Articles of Association so that the Company can indemnify Directors against liability to third parties. The Directors consider that
the passing of all resolutions is in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. Accordingly, they recommend that you
vote in favour of all the resolutions, as they intend to do in respect of their own beneficial holdings.

Whether you have a share certificate (or CREST account) for your ordinary shares in the Company or hold your shares
through the Bradford & Bingley Nominee Account (which means that you do not have a share certificate), you are entitled to
come to the AGM and vote on the resolutions.

Vou can vote electronically or by using the enclosed personalised voting form. If you are voting by post, please complete the form
and return it to the Company's Registrar in the prepaid envelope to arrive no later than the date indicated on the voting form. If
you choose to vote electronically, you must do so by the date indicated on your voting form by accessing the Registrar's website
at www.computershare.com/voting/uk and use the unique PIN and your Securityholder Reference Number {'SRN') printed on
your voting form: If you would like to receive communications such as the Notice of Meeting and Annual Report & Accounts
electronically in the future you can register for this service at the same time as you vote online, or by lodging your email address
via the www.bbg:co.uk website.

Details of votes lodged by post or via the internet will be given at the AGM after each vote is taken. These details will also be
published on the www.bbg.co.uk website.

The separate Annual Review & Summary Financial Statement 2005 and the Annual Report & Accounts 2005 give information
about the Group's progress during the year and the recommended final dividend for 2005.

Yours sincerely

& |

Rod Kent
Chairman

Bradford & Bingley plc Registered Office: PO Box 88, Croft Road, Crossflatts, Bingley, West Yorkshire BD16 2UA Registered in England No. 3338288
Authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority (FSA'). The FSA does not regulate credit cards, non-regulated mortgage contracts, unsecured personal loans or savings.
Visit our website: www.bbg.co.uk
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Explanatory Notes

The AGM will cover twelve items of Ordinary Business (Resolutions
| - 12) and one item of Special Business (Resolution |3). The formal
notice of our AGM starts on page 2 of this document.

Ordinary Business

Resolutions to receive the Annual Report & Accounts, approve the
Directors' Remuneration Report, approve the final dividend, re-appoint
Directors and to re-appoint as well as to determine the remuneration
of the auditor will be proposed as ordinary resolutions. To pass these
resolutions more than 50% of the votes cast on each resolution must
be in favour: Other items of Ordinary Business are detailed below.
Resolution 10 will be proposed as an ordinary resolution and
resolutions | | and |2 will be proposed as special resolutions. To pass
special resolutions not less than 75% of the votes cast on the
resolution must be in favour

Resolution 10 - Authority to allot shares

The aim of Resolution 10 is to renew the Directors’ authority to issue
shares for five years from the date of the AGM up to an aggregate
nominal value of £50,000,000 which represents 31.5% of the total
ordinary share capital in issue as at |5 February 2006, At present the
Directors have no specific plans to issue shares, other than in respect of
employee share plans, but the authority will enable them to act at short
notice without the need to hold an extraordinary general meeting, As
at 28 February 2006 the Company holds no shares in treasury.

Resolution |1 - Disapplication of pre-emption rights

ff Directors wish to issue shares they have to abide by the statutory
pre-emption right in the Companies Act 1985 (the 'Act)). This means
that Directors have to offer any shares they want to issue to existing
shareholders first. Because this would introduce practical difficulties
where the number of shares to be issued was small (for example in the
case of shares issued to a member of staff relating to an employee
share scheme or shares to be issued as part of the consideration to
buy a small company) the Act allows the statutory pre-emption right to
be disapplied in limited circumstances. Resolution |1 is seeking to give
the Directors authority to disapply the statutory pre-emption where,
inter alia, the share issue relates to a "rights” issue (in which case all
shareholders would be made an offer to participate anyway) or where
allotment is limited to shares having a maximum aggregate nominal
value of £7,930,000 which is equivalent to 5% of the Company's issued
ordirary share capital as at |5 February 2006. Under the rules of the
UK Listing Authority, this approval may remain in force so long as the
general authority to issue shares (Resolution 10) remains in force and,
subject to shareholder approval, this could be five years. However, the
intention is that Resolutions 10 and | | will be renewed each year

Resclution 12 - Approval of market purchases of ordinary shares
The Act permits a company to purchase its own shares provided
that the purchase has been authorised by the company at general

" meetings. It is common practice for listed companies to seek such
authority and the Directors are proposing Resolution 12 as they
consider that it is prudent to seek a renewal of the authority given
by shareholders at the AGM in 2005.

Resolution 12, if passed, would give the Company the authority to
purchase its own issued Ordinary Shares at a price of not less than
25 pence per share and not more than 5% above the average of the
middle market quotations of the Company's shares as shown in the
London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the five business days
before the purchase is made. The authority is for the purchase of a
maximum number of 63,400,000 shares, being approximately 10% of
the Company's issued share capital-as at |5 February 2006, and will
expire at the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company or 18
months from the date of the Resolution, whichever is the earlier.

R AUl I WAL W AT I}Jl\J)\.«\.‘ ~ G A \J}JUUI 12 WS SUUOLT LA TV
Ordinary Shares outstanding as at |5 February 2006 was 74 million,
representing approximately |.16% of the issued share capital of the
Company at that date. If the authority to buy back shares under this
resolution was exercised in full, the total number of options to
subscribe for Ordinary Shares outstanding as at |5 February 2006
would represent approximately 1.29% of the issued share capital The
obligations of the Company in respect of Ordinary Shares issuable
under employee share options outstanding are partly hedged by the
Company's employee share ownership trusts, details of which can be
found in the Annual Report & Accounts 2005.

The Directors have no current plans to purchase shares and would
only propose to exercise their authority to make purchases where
the expected effect of the purchase would be to increase earnings
per share of the remaining Ordinary Shares in the capital of the
Company and, having reviewed the overall financial position of the
Company, such purchases were considered to be in the best
interests of the Company. Any Ordinary Shares purchased under
this authority can be efther treated as cancelled, and the number of
Ordinary Shares in issue reduced accordingly, or held as treasury
shares. The treasury share regulations allow listed companies, with
authorisation from shareholders, to buy and then hold their own
shares in treasury instead of cancelling them immediately. Shares
purchased under this authority can in the future be cancelled, re-
sold or used to provide shares for employee share schemes. The
Directors intend at the current time that any Ordinary Shares
purchased under this authority will be treated as cancelled. The
Directors also presently intend that a resolution to renew this
authority will be proposed at the AGM in 2007.

Special Business

Resolution 13 - Change to the Articles of Association

The Companies (Audit, Investigations and Community Enterprise)
Act 2004 ("C(AICE)A") inserts new Sections 309A-C and Section
337A into the Companies Act 1985 and amends Section 310.
These provisions broadly allow a company to indemnify its
directors against liability to third parties arising in connection with
any negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust by the
directors in relation to the company. Such an indemnity may not,
however, indemnify a director against liability to the company or
any associated company. Neither may the company provide an
indemnity against any liability incurred by a director in defending
criminal proceedings in which he is convicted, nor against any
liability to pay 2 fine imposed in criminal proceedings or by a
regulatory authority, nor against any liability incurred by a director
in defending civil proceedings brought by the company (or an
associated company) in which judgement is given against the
director. The C(AICE)A also allows a company to fund a director’s
defence costs as they are incurred in both civil and criminal
proceedings, through the granting of a loan to a director: The loan
must be repaid by the director however if he is convicted in the
proceedings or judgement is given against him. Previously,
companies have only been able to fund a director’s defence costs
once final judgement in the director’s favour has been reached.

Directors are increasingly being added as defendants in.legal actions
against companies and litigation is often very lengthy and expensive.
The Board believes that the provision of appropriate indemnities
and the funding of directors’ defence costs as they are incurred, as
permitted by the new legislation, are reasonable protections for the
directors, and are important in ensuring that the Company
continues to attract and retain the highest calibre of director.

The Board therefore proposes that the Company's Articles of
Association are amended to reflect the new statutory provisions.
The proposed resolution is a special resolution to delete the
existing article and replace it with a new Article 160.
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Place and time

Venue: Ramada farvis Bradford/Bingley Hotel, Bradford Road,
Bingley, West Yorkshire BD16 1 TU. Please note that this is a change
of venue from last time.

Time: 11.00 am.Tuesday 25 April 2006

Doors will open at 10.00 am. and refreshments will be available
before the Meeting starts.

Who may attend?

Holders of Ordinary Shares in the Company or their proxies may
attend the Meeting. Also those holding shares in the Bradford &
Bingley Nominee Account who have completed their voting form
asking to be appointed as Computershare Company Nominees
Limited's proxy may attend. Non-shareholders who are accompanying
shareholders will be admitted at the discretion of the Company.

Admission :

You will be asked to show. your attendance slip (enclosed with
this pack) and not having it available will delay your admission.
On admission you will receive a voting card in exchange for your
attendance slip. If you have been appointed as a shareholder’s
proxy, please make this known to the admission staff.

Security .

There will be security checks at the entrance to the venue.

We ask you not to bring any cameras, recording equipment or
laptop computers and that mobile phones be switched off during
the Meeting,

Shareholders with disabilities

There will be an induction loop and sign language interpreter in the
auditorium. Access will be available for shareholders who use a
wheelchair: Stewards will be available in the room to assist if required.

Asking questions at the Meeting
During the Meeting the Chairman will give shareholders or their
proxies the opportunity tc ask questions.

Smoking
Smoking will not be permitted at the venue.

G Y Nl S Wi WV

How to get there:

If you travel by car:

From the M62, exit at Junction 26 onto the Mé06.

From the M604, follow the A650 (Keighley, Skipton),

the hotel is located seven miles from the Mé06 on the A650.

If you travel by public transport:

Local trains from Leeds, Bradford and Skipton stop at Bingley. The 662
bus departs from both Bradford and Keighley, its route taking it
through Bingley and past the hotel. The hotel is situated approximately
one mile outside Bingley centre and five miles outside Bradford centre.
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Shareholder Helpline 0870 703 0003
www.bbg.co.uk
Email: enquiries@bbg.co.uk

The paper used for this document comes from sustainable
paper sources and is elementally chlorine free.

Bradford & Bingley”
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting (AGM'
or the ‘Meeting) of Bradford & Bingley plc (the Company') will be held
at the Ramada Jarvis Bradford/Bingley Hotel, Bradford Road, Bingley,
West Yorkshire BD 16 1TU, at 11.00 am. on Tuesday 25 April 2006.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the resclutions set out
below, of which Resolutions 1 to |Q will be proposed as ordinary
resolutions and Resolutions |1, 12 and |13 will be proposed as
special resolutions.

Ordinary Business

|. To receive the Report of the Directors and the Accounts for
the vear ended 3| December 2005, together with the Report
of the Auditor thereon.

2. To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report, as set out in

the Annual Report & Accounts 2005, for the year ended 31

December 2005.

To declare a final dividend of 12.3 pence per Ordinary Share.

To re-appoint Stephen Webster as a Directon.

To re-appoint Robert Dickie as a Director.

To re-appoint Chris Gillespie as a Director

To re-appoint Chris Willford as a Director:

To re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditor

To authorise the Directors to determine the auditor's remuneration,

0. THAT the Directors of the Company be and they are hereby

generally and unconditionally authorised in accordance with
Section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 (the 'Act), to exercise all
the powers of the Company to allot relevant securities (as defined
in Section 80(2) of the Act) up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£50,000,000 provided that this authority shall expire on 24 April
2011, save that the Company may, at any time prior to the expiry
of such authority, make offers or agreements which would or
might require relevant securities to be allotted after such expiry
and the Directors may allot relevant securities pursuant to any
such offer or agreement as if this authority had not expired.

I'l. THAT the Directors be and they are hereby empowered
pursuant to Section 95 of the Act to allot equity securities
within the meaning of Section 94 of the Act for cash pursuant
to the authority conferred by Resolution 10 above or by way
of sale of treasury shares for the period to 24 April 2011 as if
Section 89(1) of the Act did not apply to such allotment but
limiting such power to:

(a) the allotment of equity securities in connection with a
rights issue, open offer or other offer of securities in favour
of the holders of ordinary shares of 25 pence each in the
Company (‘Ordinary Shares’) on the register of members at
such record date(s) as the Directors may determine where
the equity securities respectively attributable to the interests
of the ordinary shareholders are proportionate (as nearly as
may be) to the respective numbers of Ordinary Shares held
or deemed to be held by them on any such record dates,
subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the
Directors may deem necessary or expedient to deal with
treasury share, fractional entitiements or legal or practical
problems arising under the faws of any overseas territory or
the requirements of any regulatory body or stock exchange
or by virtue of the shares being represented by depositary
receipts or any other matter whatever; and

(b) the allotment (ctherwise than pursuant to (a) above) to any
person or persons of equity securities up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £7,930,000; save that the Company shalt
be entitled to make offers or agreemenits before the expiry of
such power which would or might require equity securities to
be allotted after such expiry and the Directors shall be
entitled to allot equity securities pursuant to any such offer or
agreement as if the power conferred hereby had not expired.
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authorised for the purposes of Section 166 of the Act to make

market purchases (within the meaning of Section 163(3) of the

Act) of Ordinary Shares provided that:

(a) the maximum number of Ordinary Shares authorised to be
acquired is 63,400,000,

(b) the minimum price which may be paid for an Ordinary
Share is 25 pence;

() the maximum price which may be paid for an Ordinary
Share is an amount equal to 105% of the average of the
middle market quotations for an Ordinary Share as derived
from The London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the
five business days immediately preceding the day on which
that Ordinary Share is contracted to be purchased
(exclusive of associated expenses);

(d) the authority hereby conferred shall expire at the conclusion of
the next AGM or |8 months from the date of this Resolution,
whichever is the earlier; and

(e) the Company may make a contract to purchase its
Ordinary Shares under this authority before the expiry of
the authority, which will or may be completed wholly or
partly thereafter; and a purchase of shares may be made in
pursuance of any such contract.

Special Business

13. THAT the Articles of Association of the Company shall be
amended by the deletion of the existing Article 160 and the
insertion of a new Article 160 as set out below:

“160. Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Company may:

(a) indemnify any person who is or was a director, directly or
indirectly (including by funding any expenditure incurred or
to be incurred by him), against any loss or liability, whether

. in connection with any proven or alleged negligence, default,

breach of duty or breach of trust by him or otherwise, in
relation to the Company or any associated company; and/or

(b) purchase and maintain insurance for any person who is or
was a director against any loss or liability or any
expenditure he may incur, whether in connection with any
proven or alleged negligence, default, breach of duty or
breach of trust by him or otherwise, in relation to the
Company or any associated company.

For the purposes of this article, "associated company' has the
same meaning as in Section 309A of the Act”

By order of the Board

Alan Shankley
Company Secretary
28 February 2006

Notes
None of the Directors seeking re-appointment is a member of the

Remuneration Committee. Information about the Directors segking
re-appointment is included on page 3.

Please read the explanatory notes to the Notice of Meeting on
page | and the notes on the voting form.

Shareholders may attend and vote at the Meeting in person or
may alternatively vote by post or electronically. See the details
about appointing a proxy or proxies to vote on your behalf on the
notes to your voting form. Shareholders wishing to appoint a proxy
or proxies using CREST should refer to the notes included on the
proxy voting form.
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re-appointment of Directors

This year Stephen Webster and Robert Dickie will retire by
rotation at the AGM and offer themselves for re-appointment
under the terms of the Articles of Association. Chris Gillespie and
Chris Willford, who were appointed since the last AGM, are
required to retire at the AGM and seek re-appointment in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

When considering the re-appointments to the Board, the
Nominations Committee considered the qualities and skills of the
new appointees together with the performance and commitment
of the existing Directors and what they could deliver to enhance
the future performance of the Company.

Stephen Webster has brought his considerable financial skills and
experience as a director to bear on the operation of the Audit
Committee which he chairs. He continues to add value and insight
to the deliberations of the full Board.

Robert Dickie has led a number of operational initiatives which
have had significant impacts on the day-to-day operation of our
business and our continued success.in the lending and savings
markets. His contributions to the Board are insightful and valuable.

Chris Giltespie and Chris Willford have had considerable
experience in a variety of financial institutions. This experience and
their accounting and management skills will be of great value to the
Board and the Company in the future.

Non-executive Director

Stephen (age 53) joined the Board in May 2003. He is Group
Finance Director of Wolseley plc, the building materials distribution
company. He is a chartered accountant and was formerly a Partner
at Price Waterhouse. He is a member of the Hundred Group
Financial Reporting Committee. He is Chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nominations Committee.

2 Robert Dickie

" Group Operations Director

Robert (age 46) joined Bradford & Bingley on 2 January 2003 and
was appointed to the Board in August 2003. He joined from Zurich
Financial Services Group (UK) Ltd where he was Managing Director,
UK Enterprise. Prior to this, Robert held a variety of senior positions
at National Australia Bank which he joined from Clydesdale Bank.
He is responsible for the information technology, human resources,
property & procurement, lending operations, retail operations and
customer relations functions. )

3 Chris Gillespie

Group Lending Director

Chris (age 42) joined Bradford & Bingley in March 2005 and was
appointed to the Board in September 2005 to take responsibility
for the lending activities in the residential and commercial property
sectors and the treasury function. He previously held senior
positions at Barclays and HFC.

4 Chris Willford

Group Finance Director

Chris (age 43) was appointed to the Board as Group Finance
Director in October 2005. He previously held senior finance roles at
Abbey, Barclays and British Airways. He is responsible for the finance,
compliance, risk, audit, legal and company secretarial functions.

Directors’ service contracts

Robert Dickie and Chris Gillespie have service contracts with
entitlements to |2 months’ notice and six months' notice respectively.
Chris Willford has a service contract with an entitlement to 24
months' notice for the first year of his appointrent, reverting to |2
months thereafter. Stephen Webster does not have a service contract.
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Retail

The Retall business is run through the Group's nationwide
network of 207 branches, 145 franchise outlets and also
through interet and telephone channels. The Savings
business has a dual role for the Group — to gather
deposits to help fund the Lending business and to help
generate customers for other Retail products.

BRANCH BASED ACCOUNTS
TOTAL DEPOSITS | £12.6bn

The Group provides a wide range of retail savings
accounts including instant access deposit accounts,
regular savings accounts, fixed and variable rate
bonds, tax efficient accounts (ISAs), children’s
accounts and tracker accourts on which the
interest rates are automatically linked to Bank of
England base rates.

. INTERNET ACCOUNTS

TOTAL BALANCES | £2.0bn

in late 2004, as part of its drive to diversify the
channels used for gathering savings deposits,
Bradford & Bingley entered the market with the
launch of a range of highly competitive internet
accounts. This addition to the Group’s savings
range has proved to be extremely successful.

DIRECT ACCOUNTS
BY POST ;| TELEPHONE

Bradford & Bingley provides direct savings
accounts which can be accessed via the
telephone or by post. It is also possible for
customers to open and operate the majority of
our branch based accounts by post.

OFFSHORE SAVINGS
TOTAL DEPOSITS | £2.4bn

Bradford & Bingley also operates an offshore
savings business, Bradford & Bingley International
Limited, based in the Isle of Man, It attracts funds
predominantly from outside the United Kingdom
from both corporate and personal customers,

! RECORD HALF-YEAR PERIOD
i FOR RESIDENTIAL LENDING

£4.7bn

RETAIL PROFIT BEFORE TAX

+14%

MORTGAGES

The Group offers customers a wide choice of
highty competitive mortgages from a panel of
mortgage providers.

INVESTMENT PRODUCTS

The Group also offers financial planning advice
and a wide range of products through our
partnership with Legal & General ('L&G"). Their
advisers are located in our branch network and
provide advice and products in the investment,
retirement and life protection areas.

INSURANCE PRODUCTS

Competitive personal general insurance
products are also offered through our
branches including motor insurance and home
insurance sales from a panel of providers,
Bradford & Bingley also sells travel insurance
through introductions to a tied partner.
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Continued success

| Rod Kene “The Group's success in
2005 is directly attributable
to the restructuring exercise
we started in 2004. Bradford
& Bingley's strategy provides
the right direction for
continued success for a
differentiated and innovative
specialist mortgage lender”

Bradford & Bingley has grown profits and
continued the successful developrment of its
Lending and Retail businesses in 2005. This
performance is particularly pleasing given the
extent of the changes that the Group has
undergone in the last eighteen months,
Underlying profit increased 1% to £310.1 million
and underlying earnings per share increased 9%
to 35.4 pence per share, Profit before tax and
loss on sale of discontinued operations
increased by 14% to £263.5 million (2004
£231.9 million).

Dividend

The Board is pleased to propose a final dividend
of 12.3 pence per share for payment on 5 May
2006 to shareholders on the register as at

24 March 2006. If aporoved, the full year
dividend for 2005 will be 18.3 pence per share
(2004: [7.1 pence), an increase of 7%, The
Board will continue to seek to balance dividend
payments with the capital requirements of the
Group's growing Balance Sheet.

Lending

Our total lending balances increased 7% to
£31.1 billion (2004: £29.0 bilion) and total new
lending was £8.8 billion (2004: £9.2 billion)
including acquired assets.




Growth was predominantly driven by our
residential lending business where we grew
balances by 10% to £26.1 billion including
acquired assets, the Group's best ever
residential lending performance.

Net interest margin decline has slowed
appreciably as our asset and liability mixes
have stabilised. We expect a more stable trend
moving forward,

The arrears performance across all our
portfolios has continued to be good. The
Group's experience in the specialist lending
markets and prudent approach to
underwriting is a substantial driver of this.

Balance Sheet and capital

We have continued to improve the diversity
and balance of our funding platform in 2005.
We made issues through our master trust
securitisation programme, our covered bond
programme and into the wholesale markets. In
addition, the Savings business has made an
important contribution,

The Group remains well capitalised and capital
ratios are within target ranges.

Retail

We have made progress with simplifying and
enhancing our customer proposition in our retail
branches. Efficiency gains made in 2004 have
been improved upon and our partnership with
L&G has continued to be fruitful.

Savings has had a strong year with balances
increasing by £1.5 billion to £17.7 billion.

! WE HAVE GROWN PROFTS WELL AND CONTINUED
THE SUCCESSFUL DEVELOPMENT OF OUR LENDING

S PARTICULARLY PLEASING GIVEN THE EXTENT OF
THE CHANGES THAT THE GROUP HAS UNDERGONE
N THE LAST BIGHTEEN MONTHS,

Costs

Our cost cutting initiative has now been
successfully concluded. This has driven a
wholesale improvement in the cost dynamics
of the Group, driving profit growth in 2005
and allowing us to convert a higher proportion
of income into benefits for our shareholders in
the future. A stronger vigilance against cost has
developed within the Group.

There has been a cost attached to the Group’s
reorganisation amounting to £7.9 million. The
Board remains confident that this cost will be
rapidly offset by the benefits of the substantial
savings we have achieved,

In common with financial services firms across
the market, we have experienced an increased
level of claims for compensation for mis-sold
investment and endowment products. This has
exceeded the level we had previously
provided and a further charge of £38.7 million
is required. In 2004 the Group closed its
independent financial advisory business which
was responsible for selling these products.

Board

| was pleased to welcome two new Executive
Directors to the Board in the second half of
the year. Chris Willford was appointed Group
Finance Director and Chris Gillespie was
appointed Group Lending Director.

' would like to express my sincere thanks to
Rosemary Thorne, who left the Board and the
Group in late 2005, for her contribution over
the last six years.

AND RETAIL BUSINESSES IN 2005. THIS PERFORMANCE

£31.1bn

i TOTAL LENDING BALANCES

People

Bradford & Bingley's continued success comes
about as a direct result of the efforts of the
people who work for the Group. We went
through substantial change and saw many
challenges during 2005. The commitment of
our employees has formed the bedrock of our
performance during a testing period.

Outlook

The Group is well placed moving into 2006.
Bradford & Bingley is stronger, leaner and
better equipped to convert growth into profit.

The mortgage and housing markets are looking
robust, our lending pipeline is strong and we
expect our chosen segments of the lending
market to continue to outperform the wider
mortgage market. Our Retail businesses will
continue to build on the stronger foundations
we have been laying and we will continue to
improve our customers' experience.

Bradford & Bingley's strategic aims are clear and
the Group will continue to do what it does
best in 2006: build our strong specialist lending
business and grow our retail operations.

Lending balances
£bn
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

Positioned for growth

| Steven Crawshaw "We have continued to build
on our strong track record in
the specialist lending sector.
Our chosen markets
performed very well during
the second half of 2005 and
we started 2006 in a good
position with a stable, healthy
lending environment.”

2005 was a challenging and successful year for
the Group, a year of two halves in the
residential lending market and a period where
we have consolidated on the intense changes
that we went through in 2004.

My ambitions for the Group in 2005 have
been fulfilled. The Lending business has shown
good growth, Retail continues to improve and
the cost cutting programme has been
completed with a new, ongoing vigilance
against unnecessary cost inflation now
embedded in the business.

| am delighted that the actions we undertook to
simplify and reinvigorate Bradford & Bingley are
showing such success. VWe have become a
stronger, healthier organisation and have driven
profit growth off that improved platform with
underlying profit increasing 11% to £310.1 million
over the year (2004 £280.4 million). The
Group’s profit before tax and loss on sale of
discontinued operations also increased to
£263.5 million (2004: £231.9 million).

During the year, | was pleased to welcome,
Chris Gillespie and Chris Willford to the
Group. Their experience from careers in
financial services and other industries brings
added strength and depth to our Board.




Lending

We have continued to build on our proposition
of lending in more profitable, specialist
segments of the residential mortgage market.
We believe that good growth and attractive
margins are available in our markets and, by
balancing innovative product design with
prudent risk management, Bradford & Bingley
will continue to prosper. We are unique as a
lending institution in our preference for high
quality selective assets with a fully secured loan
portfolio and no exposure to unsecured
consumer lending,

Our Balance Sheet has continued to show
heafthy growth with total assets increasing 7%
to £40.8 billion (2004: £38.2 billion). Total new
advances were £8.8 billion (2004: £9.2 billion)
including acquired assets. The bulk of this was
attributable to our residential lending activities
with the remainder coming from our
Commercial and Housing Association business.

The residential lending market went through a
significant change during the course of 2005.

In the first half of the year the mortgage market
experienced very low lending volumes and
transaction levels. We had run down business
levels in the autumn of 2004 to reduce
operational pressure over M-Day when
mortgage regulation was introduced and as we
implemented a major operational upgrade that
included switching our residential lending
operations to a new mortgage system. As we
tried to rebuild volumes in the first quarter of
2005, the market stowed markedly and we
took a decision to preserve credit quality rather
than compete for the light volumes that were
available in an uncertain credit environment.

In the second quarter the market started to
recover and we became more comfortable
with the credit outlook. We delivered a steady
improvement in the level of applications and
new loans as we moved through the year to
achieve record lending in the second half,
moving back to a more natural position in the
new lending market compared to the first half.
This change is particularly clear from our new
residential lending performance — £2.5 billion in
the first half and a record £4.7 billion in the
second, representing a share of the total
market of 2% and 3% respectively.

i WE ARE UNIQUE AS A LENDING INSTITUTION IN OQUR
i PREFERENCE FOR HIGH QUALITY SELECTIVE ASSETS

i WITH A FULLY SECURED LOAN PORTFOLIO AND NO

i EXPOSURE TO UNSECURED CONSUMER LENDING.

This was not a phenomenon confined to
Bradford & Bingley. The overall mortgage
market also had its highest ever half year for
gross lending in the second half of 2005.
However, within the wider recovery, it is highly
significant that buy-to-let and self-cert, two of
our main products, grew particularly strongly.
This supports our view that the growth of
these markets is likely to keep on
outperforming the wider mortgage market.
These specialist areas continue to be
supported by strong demographic drivers, a
fundamental shortage of housing stock and, in
the case of buy-to-let, good demand from
landlords for property, as well as from tenants.
The market for buy-to-let loans remains
competitive, but we have not seen any
fundamental change in the nature of the
market or pricing of loans.

We remain committed to strengthening our
position as a leading player in the specialist
fending markets. Our share of the buy-to-let
market was around 20% in the second half of
the year and we are building on our strong
positions in the self-cert and lifetime markets.

Mortgage portfolio acquisitions have continued
to play a part in our lending business with the
Group acquiring £1.4 billion of loan portfolios
over the period (2004: £1.3 billion). Our
primary focus for growth is our organic
lending. However, mortgage portfolio
acquisitions will continue to provide an
opportunistic, alternative channel.

The environment for our Commercial and
Housing Association lending businesses stayed
fiercely competitive during the year, as it had
done in 2004. Commercial property has been
a popular asset class for investors throughout
2005 and is expected to remain so in 2006.
We made new loans where margins and credit
terms were at acceptable levels and protected
the loans we already held on our balance
sheet. At 31 December 2005 the Commercial
and Housing Association book stood at

£5.0 billion (2004: £5.3 billion) with £1.6 billion
(2004: £1.5 billion) new lending in the year

Credit quality and impairment

The UK secured lending credit cycle appears to
have turned for the better: Record high
employment and low interest rates over the last
few years conspired to generate an
exceptionally benign credit environment that.
deteriorated in the first half of 2004. Since then
a combination of base rate rises, slight
deterioration in employment levels and other
stresses on the UK consumer and economy
have led to a modest rise in arrears across the
market. This upward trend represents a, return
to more normal levels of credit default rather
than a material deterioration. The absolute
numbers of distressed loans in the market
remain very low by historical standards.

We have seen a similar movement within the
Group to that reported in the external market.
Arrears levels across all our portfolios have
been showing a modest upward trend well
within management expectations. We expect
this to continue alongside trends in the overall
mortgage market and, specifically for Bradford
& Bingley, as the significant new lending growth
we have achieved in the past three years
translates into a more mature balance sheet.

At 3| December 2005 residential loans more
than three months in arrears stood at 1,19%
(2004: 0.77%) for the whole book and |.06%
(2004: 0.52%) for our buy-to-let book.

We are confident that our arrears and bad
debts will remain low as a direct result of our
conservative underwriting processes and
lending policies ensuring that the quality of our
loan books is maintained. Increases in arrears
do not necessarily translate into losses, We
have a high equity cushion in our portfolio, the
average loan-to-value ('LTV') of the whole
residential book was 50% (2004: 45%) on an
indexed basis (taking account of house price
inflation) and 68% (2004: 67%) on an original
basis (at the time the loan was made) at

31 December 2005. The average LTV of new
lending remained steady at 73% (2004: 74%).
In addition, we remain well provided for with
an impairment allowance representing 0.18%
of residential assets (2004: 0.16%).

We continue to have a fully secured balance
sheet and, as such, have no exposure to the
current deterioration in the consumer
credit market.
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Balance Sheet and capital

We worked hard during 2004 and 2005 to
improve the diversification of our funding
structure to promote a stronger balance sheet.
At the end of 2005 our success in this task is
evident from our more balanced funding mix —
43% of total liabilities and equity from retail
deposits, 34% wholesale and 14% from
secured funding sources (2004: 42%, 39%, and
[1% respectively).

This does not tell the whole of the
diversification story though. We have
broadened our presence in the capital
markets, targeting the full spectrum of
investors in a geographically diverse spread
of financial markets. We have seen good
appetite from investors for our securitisation
master trust, covered bond and wholesale
borrowing programmes.

Although we have experienced some pressure
on our net interest margin as a consequence
of this diversification process, a combination of
favourable changes in the relative cost of these
different types of funds and a more stable mix
has reduced this effect. On the asset side, the
run-off of the back book has continued to

diminish in absclute terms and as a percentage
of the book.

As a consequence, Group net interest margin
improved in the second half of the year relative
to the first half and only reduced slightly on
2004 (2005: 1.21%, 2004: 1.25%). Locking
forward, our balance sheet and net interest
margin are expected to be more stable.

As a regulated bank, we are required to hold
reserves of capital and the amounts are defined
as the tier | and total capital ratios. In line with
our conservative approach to lending, we
remain a well capitalised bank with our year end
tier | capital ratio at 7.9% (2004: 7.5%), well
above the regulatory minimum. This is further
bolstered when taken in the context of our
relative lack of life assurance, proprietary trading,
commercial and unsecured lending activities. We
will continue to manage our tier | capital within
our stated range of 7% to 8%. Our total capital
ratio also increased to 13.5% (2004: 13.2%).

Retail

We have continued to improve efficiency by
simplifying our sales and distribution processes.
Qur relationship with L&G continues to develop
and this arrangement offers good growth and
income prospects for the coming year General
insurance sales stabilised as we have successfully
moved new sales to the counters in our
branches rather than being related to our old
Building Society mortgage sales.

Savings showed an excellent performance
during 2005. Balances have increased 9% to
£17.7 billion (2004: £16.2 billion). The bulk of this
increase has come from our eSavings offering
(£1.2 billion) with a strong performance from
our operation in the Isle of Man (£0.3 billion).
In our branch-based accounts we managed a
significant volume of maturities during the year
and improved our customer retention rates.

| am particularly pleased with our Savings
performance because of the funding it provides
to the Lending business and the customers it
generates for the other Retail businesses.

Costs

The Group's cost base was £264.8 million in
2005, £167.4 million down on the whole
business and £20.1 million down on the
continuing business in 2004. This is a material
improvement and brings our underlying

i CORE COSTS REDUCED BY -

77

costincome ratio down to 45.6% compared to
60.7% in 2004 for the Group and 49.8% for
the continuing business.

These improvements have come about as a
consequence of simplifying the organisation
around fewer lines of business, a smaller
central overhead and more efficient front and
back office processes. The number of
employees in the Group now stands at 3,043
compared to 3,152 for the core business at the
end of 2004, with a reduction of nearly 500 in
the average number of people employed to
3,062 (2004: 3,530) in the continuing business.

Qur formal cost cutting programme has

now concluded and we have exceeded the
£50 million target that we set in May 2004,
We now have a stronger, more vigilant stance
toward costs in the operating businesses. It is
this dynamic that will drive our cost
performance in the future rather than another
structured programme.,

Market outlook

The housing market is in good shape. After
the lull seen in the first half of the year,
confidence has returned to the market and
demand has been buoyant. House price
inflation has stabilised over the past eighteen
months, with the risk of a wholesale fall in
house prices now remote, which will boost
confidence in the market for the year ahead.

The housing market will also continue to be
supported by the structural pressure arising
from the UK's shortage of housing supply
relative to household creation, although it will
be limited on the upside by current
affordability constrainits.

We expect the mortgage market to remain
robust. The favourable social, demographic
and economic factors that underpin our
specialist markets will continue to drive
their outperformance.

Risks from prudent mortgage lending continue
to be low. We continue to believe that the
independent management of monetary policy by
the Bank of England will prevent any marked
swings in interest rates. Although the
employment level, a majer driver of secured
lending arrears, appears to have passed its
cyclical peak, the UK economy remains relatively
healthy and significant deterioration is unlikely,




We expect our arrears levels to continue to
remain low in a historical context but to show
a moderate upward trend. This partly reflects
ihe mild increases in credft stress from the
extremely benign conditions experienced in
the recent past, but is also due to the overall
growth in the Group's assets and the
seasoning of our lending book.

Overall, we expect the environment to be
stable in 2006.

Business outlook

Our Lending business began the year in a very
good position. The momentum of record
lending volumes in the second half of 2005 has
continued with a strong pipeline in early 2006.
Margins are stable and we are competing
effectively in the market. This should translate
into good growth of lending income.

We are operating in a robust mortgage market
and see good prospects for our chosen
specialist segments, which positions us well for
future growth.

Retail is now better placed to deliver
profitable growth and will support our Lending
business through continued improvement in
savings balances.

Costs remain under tight control and we have
a sound capital base for future expansion.

We have had a strong start to 2006. Our
business is stronger; leaner, and better able to
convert growth into profit.

o T ST Y

Housing & rental market

Both the housing and mortgage markets showed a strong
recovery in the second half of 2005 following sluggish:=
demand in the first half. Indeed, gross mortgage lending
reached new record levels by the end of the year.

House prices, which had shown little increase in the latter part of 2004, were flat in
the first half of 2005, However, there was a mpdest rise in prices towards the end of
the year, indicative of the increasing confidence in the market. In 2006 we expect the
market environiient to remain stable with théf'soft landing' achieved in 2005 being
sustained. The main drivers of the housing maljket, the mortgage market and
mortgage arrears seem unlikely to show any n]aterial change in the neartermX

nand is expecied to improve through 2006, 1 nterest rates are low and
stable with market consensus cur rently suggesting room for some small cuts in interest 12

Employment levels seem to have peaked, but with growth only marginally below its
trend rate, we expect the rise in unemployment will have little material impact onle
of demand in the market. Earnings are expected to show steady growth, potentia
helping to improve mortgage afferdability, afthough the growth in disposable incol
be limited by price rises including lafger council tax and utility bills,

The UK private rental sector is healthy with demand from tenants looking for renta

_ property remaining strong. As a consequence, interest from people wanting to -

become landlords continues at higigdevels. Social changes toward renting,
ments and some affordabilitg@ues in the housing market all remain pg
Jguy-to-let sector, :

Bastomers to give us insight into the vi
rivate rental sector, The v
onigst landlords and tenants

geaular surveys 5
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Significant progress

 Chris Willford Underlying profit improved

to £310.1m, up 1% from
£280.4m in 2004. The Group's
profit before tax and loss on
sale of discontinued operations
improved by 4% to £263.5m
(2004: £231.9m). The increase
in profits reflects the significant
progress the Group has made
during the year.

The implementation of International Financial
Reporting Standards {'IFRS"), and the
restructuring undertaken by the Group in
2004, complicate the comparison of
performance between 2004 and 2005. The
Board believes it is appropriate to assess
performance based on the underlying profit of
the business which excludes the cost of
restructuring and compensation payments and
takes accounts of certain changes under IFRS.
Therefore, the discussion of results in this
statement uses underlying profit and its
components as the measure of performance.
Analysis of the difference between the
accounting measures of profit and the
underlying profit of the Group is provided on
page 12. Full details of the accounting changes
under IFRS are set out in the Appendix.

The increase in underlying profit in 2005 has
been delivered through the benefits of the
restructuring in 2004 and the completion of a
rigorous programme of cost reduction in our
core business that achieved greater than the
planned level of savings. | am pleased to report
that whilst undertaking this programme our
Lending and Retail businesses were not diverted
and continued to make good progress.

The Group's core net income increased to
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Segmental Summary income Statements

Group key indicators

Continuing  Discontinued Proforma
Treasury & Group (core) (non-core) Total 2005 2004
Lending Retail Reserves Services  Group Businesses Group % %
£m £m £m fm £ fm £ Net interest margin 121 .25
For the period ended 31 December 2005 Costincome ratio* 45.6 60.7
Net interest income 2943 1273 47.7 - 4693 - 4693 | Costincome ratio® 45.6 498
Non-interest income 326 66.1 2.0 10.6 1.3 - 1.3 (core business)
Net income 3269 1934 49.7 10.6 580.6 - 5806 | Return on equity* 17.2 6.1
Administrative expenses Return on equity 14.7 26
- Underlying costs (71.0) (123.2) (l04)  (60.2) (264.8) - (264.8) | Effective tax rate* 285 27.5
- Restructuring and - - - (46.6) (46.6) - (46.6) p p
compensation costs Earnings per share* 354 324
Impairment (loss)/credit (5.7) - - - (5.7) - (57) | Basic earnings per share 30.1 52
Profit/(loss) before taxation 250.2 70.2 39.3 (96.2) 2635 - 2635 | Diyted earnings per share 30.0 5.
Restructuring and - - - 466 466 - 46,6 | Interim dividend 6.0 57
compensation costs Proposed final dividend 12.3 1.4
Underlying profit/(loss) 2502 702 393 (49.6) 300 - 310.1  Total dividend per share 18.3 17.]
Proforma for the period ended 3| December 2004 * Underlying basis
Net interest income 2895 1217 35.1 - 4463 - 4463 During th he G ‘ dch
Non-interest income 270 777 00 e 1263 390 2653 | —uing the year the Lroup incurred charges
- associated with the cost reduction
Net income 3165 1994 45.1 .6 5726 139.0 71.6 programme of £7.9m (2004 £14.6m) and
Adm;mstrafuve expenses in connection with compensation claims for
- Under!ymg costs (67.7) (137.8) (82)  (71.2) (2849) (1473)  (4322) . old investment orodudts of £38.7m
- Restructurl.ng and - - - (314) (314 203y (517 (2004 £37.1m).
compensation costs
Impairment (loss)/credit 10 _ _ _ 1.0 - 10 The total tax charge for 2005 was £74.7m
Profit/(loss) before taxation  249.8 61.6 369 (91.0) 2573 (286) 2287 (2004: £67.0m) resulting in Group profit for
and loss on sale of the financial year of £188.8m.
discontinued operations
Restructuring and - - - 34 314 203 517 On an underlying basis, this represents
compensation costs earnings per share (‘EPS') of 35.4 pence, an
Underlying profit/(loss) 2498 61.6 369 (59.6) 2887 (83) 2804 | increase of 9% (2004: 32.4 pence) and return
Statutory for the period ended 3! December 2004 on equity of 17.2% (2004: 16.1%). The basic
Net interest income 2818 1217 445 - 4484 - 4484  earnings per share increased to 30.1 pence
Non-interest income 239 777 100 96 112 1390 2602  from 52 pence in 2004.
Net income 3057 1994 549 96 569.6 1390 7086 ‘
Administrative expenses On 9 December 2005, t‘lj\e Group issued a .
- Underlying costs (68.4) (137.8) (82)  (756) (2900)  (147.3) (4373 tradingstatement saying“we expect underlying
- Restructuring and ) . i 3Bl4)  (314) 203 (17 profit before tax‘to be at the top end of the
compensation costs range of analysts forecais‘ts‘ varying between
Impairment (loss)/credit 3 - : Nk . 123 | £2805mand £3060m". The comparable
Profiv(loss) before taxation 2496 616 467  (974) 2605 (286) 2319  Profitfigure is the Group's uncerlying profit of

and loss on sale of
discontinued operations

The terms Underlying, Proforma and Statutory, and the reasons for the need to present the numbers in this way, are
explained and a reconciliation is provided on page 12. References to comparative financial information in the Group Financial

Director's Review are on a Proforma basis as defined.

£580.6m (2004: £572.6m). Net interest income | business. Core underlying costs decreased by

increased by 5% to £469.3m (2004: £446.3m).
This was partially offset by lower non-interest
income of £111.3m (2004: £126.3m) in the core

- £20.1m to £264.8m (2004: £284.9m).
Impairment losses in 2005 were £5.7m
| compared to a small credit of £1.0m in 2004.

£310.1m, a difference of |.3%.

Net interest income

The Group's net interest income increased by
5% to £469.3m (2004: £446.3m). This has
been driven by a £2.4bn growth in residential
lending assets, the Group's average interest-
earning assets increasing by 8% to £38.7bn.

This growth in balances has been substantially
translated into net interest income growth as
the Group's net interest margin has begun to
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ANALYSIS OF PROFITS AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

Details of the profit before tax, profit attributable to shareholders and EPS on each basis are

In order to aid comparison of the 2005
results with those of 2004, comparatives

on a statutory and proforma IFRS basis have
been provided. In addition, the results are
presented on an Underlying basis to exclude
restructuring and compensation costs.

presented in the following table:

2005 2004
Statutory basis
Profit before tax and loss on sale of discontinued businesses (£m) 263.5 2319
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (£m) 188.8 286
Basic EPS (pence) 301 4.6
Proforma basis
Profit before tax and loss on sale of discontinued businesses (£m) 263.5 2287
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (£m) [88.8 331
Basic EPS (pence) 30.1 52
Underlying basis
Profit before tax loss on sale of discontinued businesses (£m) 310.1 2804
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (£m) 2217 2029
Basic EPS (pence) 354 324
Reconciliation of Statutory, Proforma and Underlying profits (£m)
Statutory profit before tax and loss on sale of discontinued businesses 263.5 2319
Impact of changes due to 'the Financial instruments Standards’ - (3.2)
Proforma profit before tax and loss on sale of discontinued businesses 263.5 2287
Restructuring costs 7.9 14.6
Compensation costs 38.7 37.1
Underlying profit before tax and loss on sale of discontinued businesses 310.1 2804
Underlying segmental profits (£m)
Lending 250.2 2498
Retail 70.2 6l.6
Treasury & Reserves 393 369
Group Services (49.6) (59.6)
Underlying profit before tax — core business 310.1 288.7
Non-core business - (8.3)
Underlying profit before tax 310.1 2804

Accounting bases

These results are the first full set of Financial
Statements reported by the Group under IFRS. This
has become the standard accounting convention for
the consolidated accounts of all listed companies
within the European Union. Transition to [FRS has
been undertaken in two stages; most of the
standards are implemented and reported in these
results on the basis that they had been in place since
| January 2004, with 2004 information restated in
line with those standards. There are two further
standards, International Accounting Standard 32
"Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation’
('IAS 32 and International Accounting Standard 3%
‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement' (1AS 39°) (‘the Financial Instruments
Standards’), that are implemented on the basis of
being in effect from | January 2005. The 2004
information need not be restated in line with those
two standards. The Board has therefore prepared
the 2004 Group results on three bases.

Statutory basis. The "Statutory" basis excludes the
Financial Instruments Standards — this exclusion is
permitted for 2004 only and was introduced

because IAS 39 was only issued in December 2004,
therefore it was not practical for companies to comply
with the IAS 39 hedge accounting rules for the start of
the 2004 year. Information on the Statutory basis
therefore forms the comparative information in the
audited financial statements on pages 37 to 98.

Proforma basis. The “Proforma’' basis applies, in
addition to the Statutory basis, all elements of IAS 32
and IAS 39 with the exception of those sections
relating to hedging, hedge effectiveness and fair value.
In the Proforma basis 2004 information, derivative
and available-for-sale instruments have been
accounted for under UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (UK GAAP"). This restatement
is not required for 2004; however, the Board believes
this information is necessary for a comparable
assessment of performance between 2004 and 2005
accounting periods. This conclusion arises because
the Financial Instruments Standards include other
changes in addition to the hedge accounting changes,
relating to the accounting for interest receivable and
payable and for impairment which are, for the
Group, the most material differences between UK
GAAP and IFRS. To omit these changes from a

consideration of the performance of the Group
could be misleading, In‘ormation on the Proforma
basis is included in the Appendix on page 88.

Underlying basis. The “Underlying” basis applies
to certain measures of performance. References
to underlying performance measures exclude
restructuring costs, compensation for claims for
regulated investment tusiness written in the past,
and losses on the sale of businesses in 2004
Following the transition to IFRS, the net fair value
gains are included in the Group's financial
information for the first time. While information
and awareness of the final impacts of IFRS hedge
accounting convention were developing, these net
gains were also omitted from underlying profit in
our results announced for the six months to

30 June 2005. However, further experience of these
impacts and of accounting under the new IFRS
regime has led us to conclude that they should
form part of the underlying profits of the Group.

A reconciliation between the Statutory profit, the
Proforma profit and the underlying profit is
provided above.




Net interest income

Proforma
2005 2004
£m £m
Net interest income 469.3 4463
Average balances
Interest-earning assets ('IEA") 38,660 35777
Financed by:
Interest-bearing liabilities 37,085 34,390
Interest-free liabilities 1,575 1,387
% %
Average rates
Gross yield on average IEA 5.53 522
Cost of interest-bearing liabilities (4.50)  (4.13)
Interest spread 1.03 1.09
Interest-free liabilities 0.18 0.16
Net interest margin on 1.21 1.25
average IEA
Average bank base rate 4.65 436
Average 3-month LIBOR 476 4.64

stabilise, and declined by only 4 basis points to
1.21% in 2005, This reduction in margin is
significantly lower than in previous years
reflecting a stabilisation in the structure of the
balance sheet notwithstanding continued asset
growth. In particular, the lending interest margin
declined by only 2 basis points in 2005 to |.03%.
Total lending assets closed 7% higher at
£31.1bn (2004: £29.0bn). This growth was
funded principally by a £1.5bn increase in retail
deposits driven largely by the continued
success of eSavings. Total retail deposits

Non-interest income

increased by 9% to £17.7bn (2004: £16.2bn)
with Retail interest income growing by 5% to
£127.3m (2004: £121.7m).

Treasury operations maintained liquidity and
access to a diversified range of funding opticns
ensuring a stable platform for further balance
sheet growth. The £12.6m interest income
growth to £47.7m (2004: £35.1m) reflected a
combination of improved investment returns on
the Group’s reserves and lower borrowing costs.

The 31 basis points increase in the gross yield
on average interest earning assets in 2005 was
consistent with the 29 basis points growth in
the average bank base rate during the year,
The majority of the Group’s lending assets are
base rate linked. The cost of interest bearing
liabilities increased by a higher amount,
reflecting in part the change in mix to higher
cost eSavings balances. Together this resulted
in a 6 basis point narrowing of the Group’s
interest spread to 1.03% (2004: 1.09%).

Non-interest income

Total core non-interest income fell in 2005 to
£111.3m (2004: £A126.3m). Activity in our
markets, particularly the mortgage market, was
subdued in the first half of 2005 but recovered
somewhat through the year In addition, as a
result of a deliberate policy to refocus the Retail
business and improve its profitability, non-
interest income fell to £66.1m (2004: £77.7m).
Mortgage broking income reduced to £12.5m
from £17.6m as the impact of slower conditions

Proforma

Continuing  Discontinued
Total {core)  (non-core) Total
Operations  Operations  Operations  Operations
2005 2004 2004 2004
£m m m £m
Mortgage broking 12.5 7.6 289 46.5
Investment 32.0 35.0 55 40.5
General insurance 18.6 211 0.2 203
Other Retall 3.0 40 0.7 47
Retalil 66.1 777 353 3.0
Property services - - 103.7 103.7
Lending related income 3.7 270 - 270
Income from sale and leaseback transactions 8.1 6.4 - 6.4
Other 2.5 52 - 52
Gains less losses on sale of debt securities 1.8 10.0 - 10.0
Fair value net gains 1.1 - - -
Total .3 1263 139.0 265.3

and a reduced, but more profitable, sales force
were felt. Mortgage broking is now operating at
a reduced level of complexity realising savings in
management and support costs.

Similarly, our investment related income fell to
£32.0m (2004: £35.0m) following the successful
outsourcing of new sales in an agreement with
L&G completed towards the end of 2004,
General insurance income reduced to £8.6m
(2004: £21.1m) owing to a reduction in renewal
income on policies linked to our legacy building
society mortgage business.

Lending related income improved during 2005
to £31.7m (2004: £27.0m). The increase was
due to higher fee income in the residential part
of the Lending business. In addition, fees earned
in our Commercial Lending business increased
as a result of charges made on redemption and
refinancing of loans.

Income from the sale of properties increased
to £8.1m from £6.4m. In 2005, the Group has
continued a programme of selling freehold
assets and leasing back the required elements
of the property designed to improve efficiency
that has been underway for a number of years.

In 2005, income from the sale of debt securities
has been disclosed separately in the Income
Statement for the first time under IFRS.
Previcusly this income has been within net
interest income. Gains or losses may be
incurred if debt securities are sold prior to their
contractual maturity. Our Treasury business may
sell such securities from time to time according
to the prevailing interest rate conditions and the
structure of the Group's Balance Sheet. These
transactions are primarily driven by actions
taken to manage interest rate and credit risk
that occurs as a natural consequence of our
Lending and Retail businesses. In 2005, gains of
£1.8m were realised (2004: £10.0m).

Administrative expenses

Core underlying costs fell by 7% to £264.8m
(2004: £284.9m) reflecting the successful
completion of a programme of cost reduction,
net of increases arising as the Group invested
to provide improvements in its Lending and
Retail businesses. As a conseguence of the
reduced cost base, the Group's underlying
costiincome ratio in the continuing business
improved 1o 45.6% from 49.8% in 2004.
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Administrative expenses

Proforma

Continuing ~ Discontinued
Total (core) (non-core) Total
Operations ~ Operations  Operations  Operations
2005 2004 2004 2004
£m £m £m £m
Staff related 123.6 1430 89.4 2324
Premises 18.9 7.7 2.8 305
Marketing 15.2 [7.1 1.2 283
Other administrative expenses 94.5 938 331 1269
Depreciation 12.6 13.3 08 4.1
Underlying costs 264.8 284.9 147.3 432.2
Restructuring costs 79 7.7 69 14.6
Compensation costs 38.7 237 134 37.4
Total 34 3163 167.6 4839

The main area of cost savings was staff related
expenditure which fell by 14% to £123.6m
(2004: £143.0m core). This is primarily a result
of reducing the number of people employed
by the Group to 3,043 (2004 3,152) from
more than 3,700 in the core business over the
two-year period to the end of 2005.

Premises costs increased by £1.2m to £18.9m
(2004: £17.7m core). The increase reflects rises
in the number of properties we lease, as well
as utility costs. Marketing costs were £l 9m
lower at £152m (2004: £17.1m core).

Other administrative expenses and depreciation
were held flat at £107.1m (2004: £107.Im core)
with cost savings offset by expenditure on a
new lending administration system installed
towards the end of 2004.

Restructuring charges ofl £7.9m were incurred
in 2005 (2004: £7.7m core) primarily due to
redundancy costs. The cost reduction
programme is now complete and has
contributed to the achievement of a material
reduction in absolute costs.

Although this cost reduction programme is
over, we remain vigilant on costs and will
continue to target a healthy gap between top
line growth and cost growth.

The level of complaints about mis-selling of
endowment and investment products increased
throughout the UK market in 2005, exceeding
our previous expectations. As a conseguence,
a charge of £38.7m (2004: £37.1m) has been
incurred and is based onian estimate of the
total liability for future claims assessed using

current experience and analysis of the total
population of products sold. The independent
financial advisory business which made these
sales was closed in 2004,

Arrears and loan impairment

During 2005, arrears levels have increased as
predicted following increases in borrowing
costs driven by base rate rises in 2003 and
2004, The number of cases over 3 months in
arrears and in possession increased to 3,730
(2004: 2,388) representing 1.19% (2004
0.77%) of the total cases.

Residential non-performing loans

Proforma
2005 2004
Arrears over 3 months
- number of cases 3,458 2,278
- % of total cases I.10 0.73
- value (£m) 378.1 198.2
- % of book | .45 0.84
Possessions
- number of cases 272 110
- % of total cases 0.09 0.04
- value (£m) 42.2 0.2
- % of book 0.16 0.04
Total
- number of cases 3,730 2,388
- % of total cases 1.19 077
- value (£m) 4203 2084
- % of book |.6l 0.87

Residential loan impairment allowance

Impairment allowance 46.1 389
- % of residential assets 0.18 0.16
- % of residential 1.0 18.7
non-performing loans

It takes a period of around 18 months for
interest rate changes to translate into arrears
and a further period of time before arrears
result in realised losses. The amount of
impaired balances on the balance sheet has
increased correspondingly to £48.4m (2004:
£42.0m). This amount represents the balance
of mortgages we anticipate may not be repaid
resulting in a potential loss and has been
increased as a proportion of total lending
balances to 0.18% (2004: 0.16%).

The charge to the Income Statement is
derived from the amount of impaired balances
less any recovered amounts in excess of
balances previously written-off. As a result of
these movements, a net charge of £5.7m
(2004: credit £1.0m) was made in 2005.

Taxation

The tax charge for 2005 was below the
standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
30% due to elements of earnings being derived
from overseas and taxed at a lower rate than in
the UK and ongoing temporary adjustments.
Based on the underlying profit of £310.1m
(2004: £280.4m), the total tax charge is £74.7m
(2004: £67.0m). This equates to an underlying
effective tax rate of 28.5% (2004: 27.6%).

BUSINESS SEGMENT
PERFORMANCE

Lending

The Lending business developed well in 2005
generating £250.2m (2004: £249.8m) profit
before tax. Qur strategy of being a leading
provider of specialist lending products continues
to contribute significant profits to the Group.

Net interest income in the Lending business
improved by £4.8m to £294.3m (2004
£289.5m). The rate of increase in interest
income is slower than that of the loan growth
as the majority of the increase in loans was in
the second half of the year. Gross residential
lending in the second half was £4.7bn
compared to £2.5bn in the first half when the
market was less buoyant and our business was
rebuilding following measured reduction in new
lending as we implemented the new mortgage
administration system in 2004. This increase
positions the Lending business well as growth
in balances will translate to improved income
levels. The change in mix between mature




Analysis of lending balances

Proforma
Residential  Commercial Total
£m £m £m
Gross advances 5,754 1,663 7,417
Net advances 2,66l (294) 2,367
Acquired mortgages 1,406 - 1,406
Balances as at 3| December 2005 26,116 5,011 31,127
Gross advances 6,396 [,496 7.892
Net advances 1,697 17 [.814
Acguired mortgages 1,259 - 1,259
Balances as at 31 December 2004 23,676 5,292 28968
Product mix
For the 12 months to 31 December 2005 New Mortgages Balance
£m % £m %
Buy-to-let 4,386 6l 15,107 58
Self-cert 1,936 27 4,733 18
Lifetime 205 3 449 2
Standard 633 9 5,827 22
Total 7,160 100 26,116 100

higher margin loans and new lending continued,
leading to a small decrease in the lending
margin to 1.03% (2004: 1.05%). New business
margins remained stable reflecting the strength

Lending
Proforma
2005 2004
£m £m
Net interest income 2943 2895
Non-interest income 326 270
Net income 326.9 3165
Administrative expenses 7.0y (677)
fmpairment (loss)/credit (5.7) 1.0
Underlying profit before
taxation 250.2 2498
Lending key indicators
Proforma
2005 2004
Net interest margin (%) 1.03 1.05
Total lending assets (£bn) 31 290
Residential assets (£bn) 26.1 237

Residential advances (£bn) 72 77

Residential redemptions (£bn) 4.5 4.7

Residential redemptions 190 226
(% opening book)

Residential mortgage market 28 27
share (% new advances)

Commercial advances (£bn) 1.7 1.5

Commercial book (£on) 50 53

Lending risk weighted assets (£bn) 14.9 148

of the Mortgage Express brand and products.
Non-interest income improved to £32.6m
from £27.0m in the previous year The
increase is driven by a higher level of fee
income per loan across the whole spectrum of
loans. In total, Lending net income increased
by 3% to £326.9m (2004: £316.5m).

Administrative expenses increased to £71.0m
(2004: £67.7m) as a consequence of higher
volumes of new applications and investment in
the new mortgage administration system.
Impairment charges increased to £5.7m (2004:
credit £1.0m) reflecting a larger number of
cases in arrears and increased loan balances.
Overall, arrears levels remain low and the
increases in 2005 reflect the higher cost of
borrowing and tighter fiscal conditions in the
UK generally. Arrears have moved in line with
our expectations and economic conditions.

Lending balances grew by 7% to £31.1bn
(2004: £29.0bn). Gross new lending, including
loan book acquisitions, was £8.8bn (2004:
£9.2bn). Residential advances were £7.2bn
(2004: £7.7bn) including acquisitions of £1.4bn
(2004: £1.3bn). Commercial lending originated
£1.7bn (2004: £1.5bn) of new loans.

The rate of redemptions on residential
mortgages improved to 19% (2004: 23%).
Commercial redemptions increased in 2005 to
£2.0bn (2004: £1 4bn) as competition in the

| market for commercial property intensified
| and a number of borrowers refinanced

facilities at prices we chose not to match.

The structure of the lending balances analysed
by main product type reflects the Group's
policy to specialise in segments of the mortgage
market where the returns are superior to the
majority of standard mortgages. The largest
segment is the buy-tc-let market where
Bradford & Bingley is the market leader with
around a fifth of the lending stock. The next
largest product group is self-cert mortgages,
designed to meet the needs of self-employed
workers or people whose income contains
significant elements of bonus or commission.
Lifetime mortgages are a relatively new product
area for the Group where we have established
a strong position as one of the largest lenders in
this strategically important market.

Treasury & Reserves

Net income in Treasury & Reserves increased
to £49.7m (2004: £45.1m). The growth in
income reflects improved returns on the
Group's reserves and a reduction in the overall
cost of borrowing.

Treasury & Reserves

Proforma
2005 2004
£m £m
Net interest income 477 35.1
Gains less losses on sale of 0.9 10.0
debt securities
Fair value net gains N -
Net income 49.7 45,1
Administrative expenses (10.4) (8.2)
Underlying profit before taxation 39.3 369
Risk weighted assets (£bn) 42 4.0

During 2005 the Treasury team has continued
to improve the strength and stability of the
balance sheet by attracting new investors in
both the secured and unsecured wholesale
markets, New funds have been raised in the
form of securitised bonds £2.0bn (2004
£2.0bn) and using the reputation and strength
of Bradford & Bingley to issue a further £/.0bn
(2004: £2.6bn) to the wholesale money
markets. Administrative expenses increased to
£10.4m (2004: £8.2m) owing to investment in
the Treasury infrastructure and the wider
range of funding activities.
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Retail

The Retail improvement programme
continued in 2005 leading to an increase in
profits of 14% to £70.2m (2004: £61.6m).

The Retail business provides savings deposit,
mortgage broking, general insurance and other
financial products through our branches and
online. In addition, investment services are
provided via L&G with advisers operating in
Bradford & Bingley branches.

Retail
Proforma
2005 2004
£m £m
Net interest income 1273 1217
Non-interest income 66.1 777
Net income 934 1594
Administrative expenses (123.2) (137.8)
Underlying profit before taxation 70.2 61.6
Retail key indicators
Proforma
2005 2004
£m £m
Net interest margin (%) 073 080
Savings balances
- branch based (£bn) 12.6 12.5
- direct (£bn) 2.7 [.6
- Isle of Man (£bn) 2.4 2.
Operating margin 36.3 309

Retall deposits form an important part of our
balance sheet funding, This business continued
1o flourish leading to an increase in deposit
balances of £1.5bn to £17.7bn (2004 £16.2bn)
and in net interest income of 5% to £127.3m
(2004: £21.7m). The development of our online
savings account has been particularly strong
adding £1.2bn in the year to reach a total
balance of £2.0bn (2004: £0.8bn).

Income in the remainder of the Retail business
fell to £66.1m from £77.7m in 2004 as the
Group sold fewer financial services products
but at an improved level of profitability. The
change of approach in Retail is most
significantly demonstrated by a reduction of
[1% in administrative expenses to £123.2m
(2004: £137.8m). Consequently the operating
margin improved to 36.3% from 30.9% in the
previous year.

Group Services

The net underlying cost of Group Services
improved by £10.0m to £49.6m (2004 £59.6m).
The improvement in the net cost has been the

Group Services

Proforma

2005 2004

£m £m

Net income 10.6 .6
Administrative expenses* (60.2) (71.2)
Underlying loss (49.6) (59.6)

before taxation
* Underlying basis

result of the successful cost reduction programme
which contributed to 15% lower administrative
expenses of £60.2m (2004: £71.2m).

Balance Sheet

The Group’s total assets increased to £40.8bn
(2004: £38.2bn} in 2005 due mainly to the
success of our Lending business increasing
total loans to £31.1bn (2004: £29.0bn),

Treasury wholesale assets were £9.0bn,
compared to the £8.9bn balances at the end of
2004. Fixed and other assets remained at £0.3bn

Retail deposits increased by 9% to £17.7bn
(2004: £16.2bn) reflecting strong growth in our
eSavings product. A net £0.7bn was also
added to non-retail deposits mainly through
increased access to securitisation markets.

Capital

The Group's capital for regulatory purposes has
increased to £2.6bn (2004: £2.5bn). The increase
is in tier | capital up to £1 5bn (2004: £1 4bn).
Tier 2 capital remained £1.1bn (2004: £1.1bn).

The Group's solvency position has improved
with a total capital ratio of 13.5% (2004:13.2%)
and a tier | ratio of 7.9% (2004: 7.5%). This
improvement has arisen in part due to
increased use of securitisation as a source of
funds, now £4.4bn (2004: £2.7bn). These
amounts are excluded from the Group’s risk
weighted assets of £19.1bn (2004: £18.8bn).

Capital structure

(2004: £0.3bn). Of the increase in balances in Proforma
2005, £0.4bn is as a consequence of changes 2005 2004
under IFRS requiring the fair value of derivatives - £m il
to be included among total assets. Similarty, Share capital and reserves 13403 11,2347
£0.3bn has been added to liabilities, Deductions 694)  (29.)
Net pension deficit 78.5 59.2
Innovative tier | 148.5 148.1
Balance Sheet Total tier | capital 14979 14129
Proforma -
2005 2004 Upper tier 2 567.9 5717
£m ¢m | Lowertier2 567.2 570.6
Assets Total tier 2 capital 1,135.1 11,1423
Wholesale assets 8,978 8905 | Deductions (63.2) (79.6)
Derivatives and fair value 418 - Total capital 2.569.8 24756
adjustments Risk weighted assets (£bn) 19.1 18.8
Loans and advances Tier | ratio (%) 79 75
to customers: Total capital ratio (%) 3.5 32
Readentaa! mortgages 26,116 23676 | Tier 7 1o tier | ratio %) 758 808
Commercial and other 501 5292
secured loans
31,127 28968
Fixed and other assets 317 315
Total assets 40,840 38,188
Liabilities and equity RISK MANAGEMENT
Retail deposits 766l 16161 AND CONTROL
Non-retail deposits 19,688 19,013
Derivatives and fair value 331 - 1 Inthe ordinary course of business, the Group
adjustrments is exposed to, and manages, a variety of risks,
Other liabilities 48| 512 . with operational, credit, market and liquidity
Subordinated liabilities 1165 [,119 | risk being of particular significance. The
Other capital instruments* 174 |48 | management of risk is fundamental to the
Equity 1,340 [,235  Group, with the Board having responsibility for
Total iabilties and equity 40,840 38,188 the overall system of internal control and for

* Minority interest in 2004

reviewing its effectiveness.




The Board has delegated specific risk
monitoring and control responsibilities to the
Audit Committee, the Group Risk Committee
and the Asset & Liability Management
Committee (ALCO".

Each business area within the Group is
responsible for the identification and
assessment of their particular risk exposures,
and implementing risk management policies,
limits and procedures as approved by the
Board. The key areas of risk the Group faces
are discussed below,

Operational risk

Operational risk is defined as the potential risk
of financial loss or impairment to reputation
resuiting from inadequate or failed internal
processes and systems, from the actions of
people or from external events. The Group's
business units manage this risk through
appropriate controls and loss mitigation
actions, including insurance. These actions
include a balance of policies, appropriate
procedures and internal controls to ensure
compliance with laws and regulations. In
addition, specialist support functions provide
expertise in operational risk areas such as
information security, financial services
compliance, fraud management, security and
business continuity management.

Credit risk

Credit risk is defined as the potential of
financial loss if counterparties (borrowers) are
not able to meet their obligations as they fall
due. The Group is firmly committed to the
management of this risk in both its lending and
wholesale money market activities. In its core
lending activities, the Group employs
sophisticated credit scoring, underwriting and
fraud detection techniques that support sound
credit decision making and work to minimise
losses. A proactive approach to the
identification and control of loan impairment is
maintained in the Credit Risk Management and
Credit Control areas.

Lending policies and limits are reviewed and
approved annually by the Board, with the
associated credit risk processes defined and
managed centrally. The Group Risk Committee
ensures that any exposure to credit risk,
significant changes in policy, or expansion into

| new areas of business remain within overall

risk exposure levels as agreed by the Board.
Authorised credit risk limits for wholesale
money market counterparties reflect the size,
depth and quality of a counterparty's capital
base and, where published, credit ratings
assigned by the major credit rating agencies.
The policies and limits covering Treasury
counterparty credit risk exposure are
reviewed and approved annually by the Board.

Social, environmental and ethical ('SEE’) risks
Having identified the need to consider SEE
risks within our risk management and control
policies, our Group Strategy function now
includes SEE risks on their monthly risk analysis.

Markert risk

Market risk is defined as the potential adverse
change in Group income or Group net worth
arising from movements in interest rates,
exchange rates or other market prices, Market
risk exists to some extent in all of the Group’s
businesses. Effective identification and
management of market risk is essential for
maintaining stable net interest income.

Interest rate risk is the most significant form of
market risk to which the Group is exposed. 1t
arises from mismatches between the repricing
dates of the interest-bearing assets and
liabilities on the Group's balance sheet, and
from the investment profile of the Group's
free reserves. Treasury is responsible for
rnanaging this exposure within the market risk
exposure limits set out in the Group's policies.
The Group's exposure to market risk is
governed by the Balance Sheet Management
policy as approved by the Board. This policy
sets out the nature of the market risks that
may be taken along with aggregate risk limits,
and stipulates the procedures, instruments and
controls to be used in managing market risk.

The Board has delegated responsibility for
managing the Group’s exposure to market risk
to the ALCO. It is the ALCO's responsibility to
approve strategies for managing market risk
exposures and ensuring that Treasury
implements the strategies so that the exposures
are managed within the Group's approved
policy limits. The ALCO meets regularly and
reviews reports and other analyses showing the
Group's exposure to market risk.

| Foreign exchange risk

The Group raises and invests funds in
currencies other than sterling. Accordingly,
foreign exchange risk arises from activities
related to the Group managing borrowing
costs and investment returns. As with interest
vate risk, Treasury is responsible for managing
this exposure within the limits as set out in the
Group's policies.

Foreign exchange risk is managed primarily
through the use of currency swaps and
forward foreign exchange contracts. It can
also be managed, when appropriate, by
foreign currency denominated liabilities being
matched with assets denominated in the same
foreign currency.

Liquidity risk

It is Group policy to ensure that funds are
available at all times to meet the Group's
obligations, including the withdrawal of
customer deposits, the draw-down of customer
facilities and growth in the balance sheet. The
development and implementation of liquidity
policy is the responsibility of the ALCO.

The day-to-day management of liquidity is the
responsibility of Treasury, which provides
funding to, and takes surplus funds from, each
of the Group's businesses as required. Liquidity
policy is approved by the Board and agreed
within a framework established by the Financial
Services Authority (FSA'). Regulatory guidelines
and potential outflows of funds drive the scope
and nature of the Group’s holdings of readily
realisable liquid assets.

Derivatives

The Board, through the Balance Sheet
Management policy, has authorised the use of
certain derivative instruments for the
purposes of supporting the strategies and
operational business activities of the Group.
These instruments are also used to manage

| the risk arising due to changes in interest rates

and foreign exchange rates.

Detailed disclosures on interest rate risk,
foreign exchange risk, and the use of derivatives
are set out in Note 40 to the Financial
Statements in accordance with 1AS 32, ‘Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation’,




BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS AT 15 FEBRUARY 2006

0l | Rod Kent

Chairman

Rod (age 58) joined the Board in September
2002 and became Chairman in November
2002. He was Managing Director of Close
Brothers for 28 years, during which time he
led the management buy-out in 1979 and took
the company public in 1984; he remains a
Non-executive Director of Close Brothers
Group ple. He is also Chairman of Grosvenor
Limited, a Non-executive Director of
Grosvenor Group Limited and Whitbread
Group plc and a Trustee of The Esmee
Fairbairn Foundation. He'is Chairman of the
Nominations Committee.

02 Steven Crawshaw

Group Chief Executive

Steven (age 44) joined Bradford & Bingley from
Lloyds TSB in 1999 as Flotation Director before
he was appointed to the Board in January 2002
taking responsibility for Group Strategy, HR &
IT. He became Managing Director; Lending in
January 2003. He was appointed Group Chief
Executive in March 2004. He is a member of
the Nominations Committee.

03 lan Cheshire

Non-executive Director

lan (age 46) joined the Board in August 2003.
He is Chief Executive of B&Q, part of the
Kingfisher plc group. He has been an Executive
Director of Kingfisher plc since June 2000 and
prior to his appointment at B&Q was Chief
Executive, International and Development.
Since joining Kingfisher in 1998, he has been
Group Director of Strategy & Development and
from May 2000 Chief Executive of e-Kingfisher:
Before joining Kingfisher he worked for Boston
Consutting Group, Guinness and a number of
retail businesses including Sears. He was
previously a Non-executive Director of Hit
Entertainment. He is a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nominations Committee.

04 = Nicholas Cosh

Non-executive Director

Nicholas (age 59) joined the Board of Bradford
& Bingley Building Society in July 1999 and the
plc Board in April 2000. He is a chartered
accountant and was formerly Group Finance
Director of a number of companies including

¢ JIB Group, MAI and Charterhouse Japhet. He is
. Chairman of Kiln plc and a Non-executive

Director of ICAP plc, Computacenter plc and
Homby ple. He is a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nominations Committee.

05 | George Cox

Non-executive Director

George (age 65) joined the Board of Bradford &
Bingley Building Society in March 2000 and the
plc Board in Aprit 2000. He is Chairman of the
Design Council, a member of the Supervisory
Board of Euronext, a Director of Short Brothers
plc and Enterprise Insight Ltd. Former
appointments include Director General of the
Institute of Directors, Chairman and Managing
Director of Unisys, Chief Executive of P-E
International, Non-executive Director of the
Lendon International Financial Futures Exchange
(LIFFE) and Managing Director of Butler Cox,
He received a knighthood in the Queen's
birthday honours fist in June 2005. He is
Chairman of the Rermuneration Committee, a
member of the Nominations Committee and
the recognised Senicr Independent Director




06 Robert Dickie

Group Operaticns Director

Robert (age 46) joined Bradford & Bingley in
January 2003 and was appointed to the Board
in August 2003. He joined from Zurich
Financial Services Group (UK) Ltd where he
was Managing Director; UK Enterprise. Prior
to this, Rabert held a variety of senior
positions at National Australia Bank which he
joined from Clydesdale Bank. He is responsible
for the information technology, human
resources, property and procurement, lending
operations, retail operations and customer
relations functions.

07 . Chris Gillespie -

Group Lending Director

Chris (age 42) joined Bradford & Bingley in
March 2005 and was appointed to the Board
in September 2005 to take responsibility for
the lending activities in the residential and
commercial property sectors and the treasury
function. He previously held senior positions at
Barclays and HFC.

08 Louise Patten

Non-executive Director

Louise (age 52) joined the Board in December
2003. She is currently Non-executive Chairman
of Brixton plc and a Non-executive Director
of Marks and Spencer Group plc as well as
senior adviser to Bain & Co. She began her
career at Citibank and remained in financial
services until 1993, when she joined the
management consultancy, Bain & Co,

as a Partner. Her previous experience as

a Non-executive Director includes the Hilton
Group, GUS and Somerfield. She is a
member of the Remuneration Committee
and Nominations Committee.

09 | Stephen Webster

Non-executive Director

Stephen (age 53) joined the Board in May
2003. He is Group Finance Director of
Wolseley plc, the building materials distribution
company. He is a chartered accountant and
was formerly a Partner at Price Waterhouse.
He is a member of the Hundred Group
Financial Reporting Committee. He is
Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nominations Committee.

10 Chris Willford
Group Finance Director
Chris (age 43) was appointed to the Board as
Group Finance Director in October 2005, He
previously held senior finance roles at Abbey,
Barclays and British Airways, He is responsible
for the finance, compliance, risk, audit, legal
and company secretarial functions.




CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

. To increase the number of departments who are Carbon
Neutral (Achieved)
-+ To congipue tg increase the percentage of staff giving to charity via
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Bradford & Bingley believes in placing
Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR") at the
heart of our business activities. We aim to
conduct our business in a socially responsible
manner in respect of the environment, staff,

customers, shareholders and local communities.

We continue to structure our CSR reporting
along the FORGE framework for CSR
Management and Reporting for the Financial
Services Sector. We report against the four
major themes identified by FORGE as being
those most relevant to financial services
organisations — Marketplace, Workplace,
Community and Environment. The FORGE
Group is a consortium of financial institutions
and involves the British Bankers' Association
and the Association of British Insurers.

Bradford & Bingley is a national member of
Business in the Community and the London
Benchmarking Group.

g —————

Bradford & Bingley continues to be a member
of the FTSE4Good Index of socially
responsible companies and in 2005 we were
pleased to be recognised as one of the top
[00 Companies That Count by the Sunday
Times where we were ranked 57th in the UK
in the Business in the Community Corporate
Responsibility Index.

Bradford & Bingley was awarded two ‘Big
Ticks’in Business in the Community's Awards
for Excellence; one for our work with

Shelter, and a collaborative action award for
our support of West Midlands Business Action
on Homelessness.

Our CSR report has for the first time been
independently verified this year by Bureau
Veritas, who carried out our environmental
audit in 2004,

Mark Stevens, Manzging Director Group
Strategy, continues as the executive responsible
for the Group’s CSR. programme.

Doing the right thing in the marketplace
Following our strategic refocus in 2004 we now
have two well estabiished arms to our business:

+» Lending providing a range of residential
mortgages, secured commercial property
loans and loans to housing associations

* Retail: selling Bradford & Bingley's own
savings products and a choice of other
financial products through our branches and
direct channels.

Both of these arms have their own approach
to CSR but significantly, both have been able
to demonstrate their CSR credentials through
their product and services range this year.




Bradford & Bingley's lending business develops
and manufactures a range of lending products
primarily secured on residential property. As a
company, we have made a policy decision not
to participate in the unsecured consumer
lending markets as we believe our underwriting
expertise is in secured lending.

Bradford & Bingley's residential lending activity
focuses on a range of niche areas providing
mortgages for individuals who need a more
specialist product than those available in the
mainstream market. These products are sold
under the Mortgage Express brand.

Bradford & Bingley has the largest buy-to-let
customer base in the UK, and in November
completed its 6,000th lifetime mortgage.
Over 30% of lifetime mortgages sold
through mortgage intermediaries such as
Independent Financial Advisers are Mortgage
Express products.

These products are ones that address some of
the growing concerns within the housing
market in the UK The growth of buy-to-let
has increased the availability of rental housing
stock in the UK, making it easier for people to
find affordable housing. Lifetime mortgages
enable homeowners over the age of 60 to
release some of the equity they have buift up
in their properties to enhance their lifestyle

in retirement.

Bradford & Bingley continues to be a member
of Safe Home Income Plans (‘'SHIP'). SHIP is
the UK’s leading professional body for equity
release providers, launched in 1991 and
dedicated entirely to the protection of
borrowers and promotion of safe home
income and equity release plans. We observe
the SHIP Code of Practice which has been
welcomed by Age Concern. As a member of
SHIPR, Bradford & Bingley guarantees that

borrowers cannot lose their home — whatever
happens to the stock market or interest rates.
Mare details about SHIP are available on its
website, wwwiship-itd.org

Bradford & Bingley also continues to be active
in tending to Housing Associations throughout
the UK. Housing Associations are non-profit
organisations that provide affordable rented
homes for people unable to satisfy their
housing needs in the open market.

We have provided loans to over 120 housing
associations and now finance over 00,000
social rented homes throughout the UK.
Bradford & Bingley's commitment to the
housing association sector at £2.3 billion,
equates to over 7% of the Group’s total
mortgage commitments,

The Savings business develops and sells
Bradford & Bingley's competitive range of
deposit based investment products through our
branch network, online and via post/telephone.
In August, we launched two new savings
accounts for children, FirstSave and SmartSave.

FirstSave, an instant access account for
children up to the age of 12, is an ideal
account to begin building up savings for the
future. SmartSave is also an instant access
account and is available for young adults up to
the age of 25

FirstSave and SmartSave were launched in
association with Aardman Animations and
Wallace & Gromit's Children's Foundation. For
every new account opened, Bradford &
Bingley made a £! donation to the Foundation
and in 2005 over £11,000 was donated. In
addition, the branch network sold a range of
pin badges provided by Wallace & Gromit's
Children's Foundation which raised a further
£27,700 ~ the hignest amount ever raised by a

i POSITION IN THE BUSINESS IN THE COMMUNITY
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pin badge campaign at Bradford & Bingley.

The Foundation is a national charity raising funds
to improve the quality of life for children in
hospitals and hospices throughout the UK. The
Foundation funds an innovative range of projects
to ensure children in hospitals and hospices have
a better; brighter future. Created in 2003, the
Foundation has funded projects in 23 hospitals
and hospices.

Doing the right thing in the workplace

QOur employment practices continue to reflect
the human rights standards enshrined in the
United Nations Universal Declaration of
Human Rights and the International Labour
Organisation Conventions, and cover such
items as minimum working age, working
hours, health and safety and discrimination.

Our workforce should reflect the communities
in which we live and work, and our
employment practices help us to deliver on
this goal. Bradford & Bingley is a member of
Employers' Forum on Disability,. Employers
Forum on Age, Race for Opportunity and
Opportunity Now. These organisations look at
ways to promote awareness of disability, age,
race and gender within the workplace.
Women now occupy 45% of management roles
(2004: 44%) and 24% of senior management
roles (2004: 23%) within the Group. Women
represent 10% of the Board (2004: 22%).

Ethnic minorities occupy 5% of management
roles (2004: 7%) and 6% of senior management
roles. We have seen a slight drop in the number
of ethnic minorities employed in the workforce
(2005: 10%. 2004: 1i%) but Bradford & Bingley
continues to support and work with Quest for
Economic Development, an organisation
supporting the South Asian community within
the UK, to ensure we have robust and fair
employment policies for all staff.
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We recognise that the well being of our
employees is vital to our business. We have
comprehensive policies agreed with the
recognised staff union (UBAC') on Flexible
Working and Fair Treatment at Work. We
continue to offer a confidential counselling
service, provided free of charge to employees
and their families, to enable discussion of any
issue affecting their lives at work or at home.

Bradford & Bingley was awarded the 'two ticks’
symbol by the Employment Service in June 1995.
This publicises our commitment to people with
disabilities. Using the ‘two ticks' symbol means
we are working towards the guidelines in the
Employment Service Code of Good Practice on
the Employment of Disabled People. We have
induction loops in all branches, and have
wheelchair access and power assisted doors
across the branch network. Bradford & Bingley
also provides sign language and manual
interpreting services in conjunction with the
Royal National Institute for the Deaf (RNID")
and offer RNID’s Typetalk service. We have
undertaken further Typetalk training and will
continue to do so throughout 2006.

Bradford & Bingley is also committed to ensuring
accessibility across our product range and we
continue to provide customers with literature in
different formats, such as Braille, audio and large
print. Our corporate and customer facing
websites were also relaunched in 2005, having
undergone accessibility audits by the Royal
National Institute for the Blind to ensure the
websites are as user friendly as possible.

Bradford & Bingley has carried out a thorough
review of all Health & Safety, Business
Continuity and Security policies in 2005,

The Group's Health & Safety Policy Statement
was updated and a full copy was issued to
every branch and department. This Policy
Statement is reviewed by the Board of
Directors every twelve months.

To help meet the objectives set out in the policy
statement, Bradford & Bingley has established a
clear and simple structure for managing health
and safety which identifies the roles and
responsibilities everyone has in ensuring a safe
place of work. This was communicated to all
staff through an online training session.

Robert Dickie, Group Operations Director,

is the nominated member of the Board of
Directors responsible for Heatth & Safety and
chairs the Group Health & Safety Committee.
Bradford & Bingley consults with its staff,
management and UBAC on health and

safety matters through the Group Health & Safety
Committee. As part of cur ongoing development
in this area, all line managers undertook a half day
training course on Health & Safety in 2005.

We continue to encourage employees to
benefit from the Group's success through
share schemes. Currently, 39% of employees
hold at least one Sharesave account {2004:
52%), enabling them to save to buy
Bradford & Bingley shares.

We carried out our staff opinion survey in
September, giving all staff an opportunity to
feed back in confidence their views and
opinions of Bradford & Bingley. A series of
roadshows were then carried out where the
senior executive team fed back the results and
invited further discussion.

Doing the right thing in the community

In 2005, there was an increase in Bradford &
Bingley's community programme (2005:
£1,320,612; 2004: £1.295,639), continuing for a
sixth consecutive year the investment of over
£l million in the communities in which we live
and work. Preventing and alleviating the causes
of homelessness continues to be our main
corporate area of support. However, in 2005,
we gave a larger focus to our support of
charities and organisations throughout VWest
Yorkshire, specifically in Bradford and the Aire
Valley where our Head Office is based.

Preventing and alleviating the causes

of homelessness

Bradford & Bingley continues to support Shelter;
the UK campaigning charity for homeless and
badly housed people. Our support helps
Shelter's freephone housing advice line, the
gateway to the majority of Shelter's services.

Bradford & Bingley is a national member of
Business Action on Homelessness ((BAOH").
BAOH is a unique partnership between
leading businesses, homelessness agencies and
the Government which aims to break the
vicious cycle of no job, no home, through
helping homeless people to find employment
and achieve independent fiving, Steven
Crawshaw, Bradford & Bingley's Group Chief
Executive sits on the BAOH executive forum.

During 2005, we continued to strengthen our
links with many community groups across
West Yorkshire. Our Community Action Team




has continued to encourage and co-ordinate
employee involvement across West Yorkshire,

The Community Action team has used central
budgets 1o specifically support local cormmunities
and consists of staff from across all functions of
the business and a representative from the
Community Affairs team. They meet on a
monthly basis to consider requests from local
charities and community groups and make small
grants of about £300 on average. During 2005,
39 charities received funding in the Bingley area.

Bradford & Bingley continues to support
employee involvement, in particular through
supporting their fundraising activities. All
employees are able to apply for funds to
match their own fundraising efforts for charity
in a scheme which matches the first £250 of
funds raised per employee. During the vear,
85 employees received matching (2004: 147)
totalling £19, 151 (2004: £26,908). Although this
is a decrease from 2004, it should be
remembered that staff numbers were lower in
2005 compared to most of 2004.

Bradford & Bingley also matches employee
donations through the payroll-giving
programme, Give As You Earn. We continued
to promote the scheme to new and existing
employees via online and internal promotions
and have seen an increase both in take up and
amount donated and we now have 7.6%
(2004: 8.8%) of our workforce donating via
Give As You Earn. We have set ourselves a
target to increase this to 0% in 2006.
Bradford & Bingley matched £74,628 of
employee donations (2004: £65,900).

Doing the right thing in the environment

In 2005, Bradford & Bingley has built on the
work carried out in our environmental audit of
2004 to deliver increased environmental
performance and disclosure.

In preparation for the EU Accounts
Mcdernisation Directive, we have worked with
Trucost, an independent environmental research
organisation to identify the Environmental Key
Performance Indicators relevant to Bradford &
Bingley. To do this, we have worked from the
consuttation document Environmental Key
Performance Indicators — Reporting Guidelines
for UK Business published by the Department of
Environment, Food & Rural Affairs in 2005.

The main waste streams produced by Bradford
& Bingley consist of general office waste,
confidential paper waste and IT equipment.

In 2005, we have reported on a weekly basis
the amount of waste generated and the
percentage recycled. In 2006, we have set a
target for 65% of our waste to be recycled.
There are procedures in place to recycle
paper, plastic cups, toners, metals, IT
components and mobile telephones at central
locations, whilst our branches recycle toners,
[T components and mobile telephones.

Mowlem Technical Services are in the second
year of a three year facilities management
contract for Bradford & Bingley. Energy
management forms part of the service, which
is being delivered nationally via a team of
mobile engineers checking on site controls and
a central management provision monitoring
consumption. Water conservation measures
are being put in place in central facilities to
help reduce water consumption.

Printing managers Williams Lea purchase print
services on behalf of Bradford & Bingley. All
products purchased are derived from
sustainable managed forestry (plantation crop).

Bradford & Bingley continues to use the Financial
Services Purchasing Forum collaborative
environmental best practice principles. This
document, developed by the financial industry,
outlines six principles and Bradford & Bingley's
progress against these principles is explored in
detail in our CSR Report.

To demonstrate our commitment to disclosure
of our CSR programme, we have also
published our confidential feedback from the
Corporate Responsibility Index on our
www.bbg.co.uk website.

Bradford & Bingley produces a separate CSR
Report which is available on our website,
wwwibbg.co.uk or on request to csr@bbg.co.uk.
Alternatively, please write to CSR Department,
Bradford & Bingley, 134b New Street,
Birmingham B2 4INP to request a printed copy.

This is a summary of the full CSR Report. For
more details, please refer to the full report
which includes a much larger range of key
performance indicators than is possible to
include in this summary.

BRADFORD & BINGLEY'S COMMUNITY PROGRAMME
IN 2005

£1,320,612

Bradford & Bingley continues to see
Carbon Neutral® as a positive way to
offset the Carbon emissions from
our business. Both the CSR Report

' and the Annual Report & Accounts

w are Carbon Neutral®to minimise

" their environmental impacts. In 2005,
we made the Insurance Marketing,
Internal Communications and Group
Strategy departments Carbon
Neutral®. In a sign of his
commitment to leadership in this
area, Steven Crawshaw, Group
Chief Executive also made his office
Carbon Neutral®.

We continue to use the Carbon
Neutral Company (formerly known
as Future Forests) as our partner
for the programme of tree planting

to offset the carbon emissions.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their
Report for the year ended 31 December 2005.

Principal activities
The principal business activities of
Bradford & Bingley are to:

* provide a range of residential mortgages,
secured commercial property loans and
loans to Housing Associations; and

offer a range of Bradford & Bingley’s own
savings products and a wide choice of other
financial products through its branches and
direct channels (including products regulated
under the Financial Services and Markets
Act 2000).

The Group’s activities during 2005 and outlock
are reviewed in the Chairman's Statement and
the Group Chief Executive's Review on pages
410 9, whilst financial aspects, including
financial risk management, are covered in the
Group Finance Director’s Review on pages

10 to I7. A list of the principal subsidiaries, and
the nature of each company's business, is given
in note 19 to the Financial Statements,

Results and dividend

The profit before tax and loss on sale of
discontinued operations for the year ended

31 December 2005 was £263.5 miltion

(2004: £231 .9 million). The Directors are
proposing the payment of a final dividend of
12.3 pence per share on 5 May 2006 to
shareholders on the Register at the close of
business on 24 March 2006. Together with the
interim dividend of 6.0 pence per share, this will
make a total dividend for the year of 18.3 pence
per share (2004: 17.1 pence per share). For
further details on the Group’s results, please
see the Group Finance Director's Review on
pages 10 to I7.

Directors and their interests

The current Directors of Bradford & Bingley
plc and their biographical details are shown on
pages 18 and 19. Chris Gillespie was appointed
to the Board on 26 September 2005 as Group
Lending Director. Chris Willford was
appointed to the Board on 3 QOctober 2005
as Group Finance Director: Rosemary Thorme
stepped down as Group Finance Director on
3 October 2005 and resigned from the Board
on 29 Novermber 2005.

Stephen Webster and Robert Dickie will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting ( AGM") and offer themselves for
re-appointment under the terms of the
Articles of Association. Chris Gillespie and
Chris Willford, who were appointed since the
last AGM, are required to retire at the AGM
and seek re-appointment in accordance with
the Articles of Association. Details of the
service contract notice periods for Messrs
Dickie, Gillespie and Willford are contained in
the table on page 33. Stephen Webster does
not have a service contract.

The beneficial holdings in shares shown below
include the Directors’ personal holdings and
those of their spouses and minor children,

At 3l At 3

December  December

2005 2004

Rod Kent 25,000 25,000

lan Cheshire 328 328

Nicholas Cosh 8,000 8,000

George Cox - -

Steven Crawshaw 104,084 49,102

Robert Dickie },000 1,000
Chris Gillespie 3,100 3,100%

Louise Patten 3,500 3,500

Stephen Webster 3,000 3.000
Chris Willford 250 250%*

* As at date of appointment

The details of share options and other share
awards made to Directors are shown in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages
29 to 34. Further information regarding
employee share schemes is given in note 5
1o the Financial Statements,

There has been no change in the Directors’
interests in shares or options granted by the
Company between the end of the financial
year and one month prior to the notice of the
AGM. The Register of Directors’ Interests,
which is open to inspection by shareholders,
contains full details of Directors’ shareholdings
and options to subscribe for shares.

Ordinary shares held

No Director had any material interest during
the year in any contract of significance to the
Group's business.

Corporate governance

Full details of the Board's approach to
corporate governance are contained in the
separate report on pages 26 to 28,

Share capital

Full details of the authorised and issued
share capital are provided in note 32 to the
Financial Statements.

a) Issue of ordinary shares

During 2005, 341,990 new ordinary shares were
issued to satisfy awards under the terms of the
Executive Incentive Plan. The current number of
issued ordinary shares is 634,424,534,

b) Purchase of ordinary shares

At the AGM in 2005, the shareholders
authorised the Company to purchase up to
63.4 million of the Ordinary 25 pence shares.
This was a renewal of the authority granted in
previous years. During the year no shares
were purchased. The authority to purchase
shares remains valid until the earlier of the
AGM in 2006 or 25 October 2006. A
resolution will be put to shareholders to
renew the authority at the forthcoming AGM.

Major shareholders

At the date of this report the following
interests of 3% or more in the issued share
capital of the Company had been notified in
accordance with Sections 198 to 208 of the
Companies Act 1985:

Legal & General Group plc 3.10%
The Capital Group Companies 399%
Barclays PLC 461%

Corporate social responsibility

Bradford & Bingley is committed to carrying
out its activities in a socially responsible
manner in respect of the environment,
employees (including equal opportunities,
employee participation and staff incentives),
customers, shareholders, local communities
and other stakeholders. Further details are
included in the report on corporate social
responsibility on pages 20 to 23.

Charitable and political donations

During 2005, the Group allocated £1,320,612
to its programme of community investment,
including payments to charitable orgarisations
of £443,250. Details of the projects supported
are given on pages 20 to 23.
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No contributions were made for political
purposes in 2005, We doinot plan any
payments that might be deemed to be political
in nature.

Creditor payment policy

ft is the policy of the Company to pay creditor
invoices within 30 days of the invoice date.
The Company is willing to consider requests
by small suppliers for a shorter settlement
period. The average number of creditor days
in 2005 was 12 days (2004: 14 days).

Annual General Meeting

The Notice of the AGM to be held on

25 April 2006 is given in the separate AGM
booklet. Included in the ordinary business of
the Meeting will be resolutions to seek
shareholder authority to renew the authority
for the Directors to issue shares, to not apply
the statutory pre-emption rights to certain
share issues and to enable the Company to
make market purchases of its own shares, up
to a maximum of 63.4 million shares. The
special business of the Meeting will seek
shareholder authority for a change to the
Avrticles of Association.

Auditor

A resolution to re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc as
auditors will be put to members at the
forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
Alan Shankley

COMPANY SECRETARY
I5 February 2006

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Bradford & Bingley is committed to high
standards of corporate governance in its business.

The Directors are pleased to report that
throughout the year ended 31 December 2005
the Company complied with the provisions of
the Combined Code (‘the Code’). This
Corporate Governance Report, coupled with
the Directors’ Remuneration Report, explains
how the Company has applied the governance
principles set out in the Code.

The Board

During the year, the Directors satisfied the
main and supporting principles and provisions
of the Code by the following actions,
procedures and policies:

+ The Board met nine times during the year.
This included one meeting devoted to
strategic matters. In addition, the Chairman
held two meetings with the Non-executive
Directors without the Executive Directors
being present. One meeting of the
Non-executive Directors chaired by the
Senior Independent Director was also held
without the Chairman present.

* As a matter of policy the roles of Chairman
and Group Chief Executive are distinct and
the offices are held by different people -
Rod Kent and Steven Crawshaw
respectively. The role of each is recorded in
writing and has been agreed by the Board.

+ During the year the constitution of the
Board satisfied the Code at all times, At the
end of the year the Board consisted of a
Non-executive Chairman, five independent
Non-executive Directors and four
Executive Directors. The five independent
Non-executive Directors bring wide
experience from varied backgrounds to the
workings of the Board and the Board
considers that all independent directors
meet the independence criteria set out in
the Code.

* The recognised Senior Independent Director
throughout the year was George Cox.

* The purpose of the Board is to govern the
Group's strategic direction, supervise its
operational management and define and
monitor acceptable risk parameters for the
Group. The Board has adopted a structure of
mandates, granted to individuals and
committees throughout the Group, whilst
retaining specified matters for its exclusive

decision. The specified matters include the
approval of interim and final financial
statements, the approval of recommendations
in connection with the payment of dividends,
approval of corporate governance
arrangements, the approval of the Group's
strategic direction and the approval of various
policies to be adopted by the Group. The
mandate structure enables authorised
individuals to approve levels of expenditure
and commit to contracts or other agreements
in the normal course of business.

The Board reviews its constitution every year
and during 2005, for the second year running,
the Chairman took the lead role in the
evaluation of the performance of the Board,
the principal committees and the performance
and commitment of each Director: The
process included detailed questionnaires, one-
to-one interviews with the Chairman and a full
discussion at a Board Meeting. George Cox,
the Senior Independent Director, led the
Non-executive Directors in the evaluation of
the Chairman and a separate meeting, at
which the Chairman was not present, was
held for the purpcse.

All Directors are subject to election by
shareholders at the first AGM after their
appointment by the Board and each Director is
subject to re-appointment every three years in
accordance with the Articles of Association.
The Board has decided that Stephen Webster
and Robert Dickie will retire by rotation at
the AGM in 2006 and offer themselves for
re-appointment by shareholders under the
terms of the Articles of Association. Chris
Gillespie and Chris Willford, who were
appointed since the last AGM, are required to
retire at the AGM and seek re-appointment in
accordance with the Articles of Association.
Following the evaluation process, these
re-appointments were considered by the
Nominations Committee which recommended
to the Board that the performance of the
individuals concerned was effective and their
commitment exemplary. Further information
about the recommended re-appointments is
included in the Notice of the AGM.

« An appropriate training programme is
established for new Directors to ensure that
they are fully conversant with their
responsibilities as a Director, with the
business of the Group and with major




shareholders' views about the Company.
During 2005, Chris Gillespie and Chris
Wiliford followed an appropriate
familiarisation programme in respect of their
new Executive Director roles. A number of
Non-executive Directors undertook visits to
operational locations and branches, to
enhance their understanding of the Group.
Throughout their period in office all Directors
are updated on Group business, the
competitive and regulatory environment in
which it operates and other changes as they
occur, via presentations at Board or
committee meetings, as appropriate.

* All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary, who is
responsible for ensuring that Board
procedures and applicable rules and
regulations are observed. The Company
Secretary also assists the Chairman in
facilitating the Directors' training. The Directors
are able to take independent professional
advice at the Company's expense.

Principal Board committees

The Board has established a number of
cormmittees, each of which has detailed terms
of reference. The three principal committees
are the Audit, Remuneration.and Nominations
Committees. The Audit and the Remuneration
Committees comprise only independent
Non-executive Directors. The terms of reference
of all these committees are available on request
to the Registered Office and by vistting the
‘Corporate Governance' section within the 'Our
Business' part of the www.bbg.co.uk website,

During the year, the Audit Committee
monitored the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management process and its financial and other
internal control systems, including effective
internal audit, risk management and compliance
functions. The Committee also reviewed the
Group's accounting policies, financial statements
and external reporting responsibilities with
particular regard to International Financial
Reporting Standards. it met with the external
auditors and received all reports by them
addressed to the Group. The Committee
reviewed the arrangements for staff to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in the
area of financial reporting or other issues. The
Committee also undertock corporate
governance and other duties as required under
the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000

I and applicable regulations made under it As a
© result of the 2004 evaluation of the operation

of the Audit Committee, administrative
improvements were made during 2005 in terms
of the presentation of papers and the
attendance at the Committee. Following the
evaluation in 2005, the Committee established
that they needed to develop a better
understanding of the Group’s risks and that the
interaction between the Group's Risk and
Compliance functions shouid be reviewed to
ensure an appropriate division of duties. The
Committee has agreed that there will be a
review of the provision of external audit
services with a tender process to take place
during 2006.

The Audit Committee also considered the
position of the auditors including any risk of
conflict of interest. The Group recognises the
importance of internal and external auditor
independence and has adopted principles to
safeguard this, as follows:

» the Group will continue to use the
external auditors for non-audit work,
where appropriate;

+ the Group recognises the need for
transparency around the services being
provided and for a central independent
overview. This is provided by the Audit
Committee which monitors audit and
non-audit fees paid; and

* there is an appropriate approval process for
non-audit work to ensure the auditors’
independence is not compromised.

The members of the Committee are Stephen
Webster (Chairman), lan Cheshire and
Nicholas Cosh. The Board is satisfied that
MrWebster fulfils the Code requirement that
at least one member of the Committee has
recent and relevant financial experience.

The Remuneration Committee, during the yean,
reviewed the remuneration policy for the Group
overall, and the salary, bonus and benefits
arrangements for the Executive Directors and
other members of the senior management team.
The Committee also reviewed the grants and
awards of schemes established by the Company
and addressed the implications of the tax
simplification changes that come into effect in
Aprit 2006 on the Company's pension
arrangemerits. Further detail is provided in the

i Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 29 to
¢ 34 The members of the Committee are George

Cox (Chairman), lan Cheshire and Louise Patten,
The Nominations Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board. Chris Gillespie and
Chris Willford were recommended for
appointment to the Board. In making the
recommendation, the Committee made
reference to the succession plans and sought the
advice of external recruitment consuttants. The
Board unanimously agreed to appoint Chris
Gillespie and Chris Willford. In addition, the
Committee recommended Directors for
re-appointment at the AGM based on the
performance evaluation resutts. The members of
the Committee are Rod Kent (Chairman),
Nicholas Cosh, George Cox, Louise Patten and
Steven Crawshaw together with lan Cheshire and
Stephen Webster who joined the Committee
with effect from 29 November 2005 following
the 2005 committee evaluation process.

Shareholder relations

The Company is committed to ongoing,
transparent communication across the
shareholder base, whether to institutional
investors, private or employee shareholders. The
Summary Financial Statement, which details key
facts about the Group's performance. is
distributed to those private shareholders who
have requested it. All Annual Report & Accounts
and AGM documents, announcements,
presentations and press releases are available on
our www,bbg co.uk website. The Company
engages in two-way communication with
institutional shareholders, fund managers and
analysts to discuss publicly available information
on its strategy, performance and policies. The
Board receives feedback on these
communications from the Directors attending
the meeting, and is also regularly apprised of
comments from institutional shareholders and
analysts so that all Directors can develop a
balanced understanding of the issues and
concerns of shareholders. The Chairman and
Senior Independent Director are available to
meet shareholders on request and will ensure
that the Board is aware of any shareholder
concerns not resolved through the usual investor
communications routes. At each AGM there is a
review of the Group’s performance and the
Board welcomes the opportunity to gather views
and take questions from shareholders.
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In connection with the AGM, the Company
discloses the level of proxy voting (including
for, against and votes withheld), proposes
separate resolutions and has a policy that the
committee chairmen should attend the
Meeting. In addition, the Notice of the AGM
and any related papers are sent out to arrive
at least 20 business days before the Meeting to
ensure that shareholders have sufficient time in
which to consider the items of business.

Internal control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system
of internal control. It seeks regular assurance to
satisfy itself that the system is functioning
effectively in managing risks in the manner
which it has approved. Such a system can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as it is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

Throughout the year ended 3! December 2005,
the Group has operated a system of internal
control, which includes aniongoing risk
management process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group. During the year; the Board has continued
to review the effectiveness of the Group’s system
of financial and non-financial controls, including
operational and compliance controls, risk
management and the Group’s highest level
internal control arrangements. In addition, as part
of the process of preparing this statement, the
Board has also performed'its annual assessment
of the effectiveness of intetnal controls.

Changes in financial regulation continue within
the industry, and the Group’s risk management
processes are kept under regular review to
ensure that the Group responds appropriately
both to actual and proposed regulatory changes.

The Group's management operate a risk
management process, producing a Group-
wide risk profile that identifies the Group's
significant risks, the probability of those risks
occurring and their impact should they occur,
and has the prime responsibility for the design
and operation of suitable cantrols and
mitigating actions. The risk management
process is complemented by a formalised
reporting and escalation process for control
issues. Internal audit has a key role in
maintaining the control environment by

providing independent assurance on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
systems. The Group Risk Committee oversees
the risk management process, considers the
Group-wide risk profile regularly and receives
monitoring reports to update it on progress.
Further information on risk management and
control is set out on pages 16 to 7.

The Group is committed to developing and
maintaining an appropriate risk management
framework and culture with the aim of
continuing to ensure that the management
understand the key risks that the businesses face.
This is achieved through an organisational
structure with clear reporting lines and governed
by appropriate business monitoring mechanisms,
codes of conduct and policy statements.

The system of internal control has been in place
throughout 2005 and up to the date of approval
of the Annual Report & Accounts. It accords

with the guidance from the Turnbull Committee.

In reviewing the effectiveness of this system,
the Board takes into account the work of the
Audit Committee, which receives reports from
the Group Risk Committee on the Group's
significant risks and how these are being
managed. The Board also considers reports
from internal audit, external audit, compliance
and management on the system of internal
control, adherence to regulatory requirements

Board Meeting and committee attendance 2005

and material control weaknesses, together with
actions taken to address them. The Chairman
of the Audit Committee reports on the
outcome of each meeting to the Board, where
appropriate, and the Board also receives
minutes of these cornmittee meetings.

Going concern

The Directors confirm that they are satisfied
that the Company has sufficient resources
0 continue in operation for the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the
Financial Statements,

The table below shows the attendance by Directors at the Board Meetings and at the principal
committees of which they were members during the year. Director absences were the result of
unavoidable diary clashes and, in all cases, were agreed with the Chairman in advance.

Audit Remuneration Nominations

Board Committee Committee Committee

Rod Kent 9/9 - - 22
Steven Crawshaw 9/9 - - 22
lan Cheshire 8/9 4/5 2/4 -
Nicholas Cosh 8/9 5/5 - 2/2
George Cox 7/9 - 4/4 272
Robert Dickie 9/9 - - -
Chris Gillespie 3/3 - - -
Louise Patten 8/9 - 4/4 212
Rosemary Thorne 7/8 - - -
Stephen Webster 8/9 5/5 - -
Chris Willford 217 - - -
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The following report has been prepared in
accordance with the Directors’ Remuneration
Report Regulations 2002 (the 'Regulations’,
now contained in Schedule 7A to the
Companies Act 1985) and approved by the
Board for agreement with the shareholders.

The Remuneration Committee

The role of the Remuneration Committee
(the ‘Committee’) is to assist the Board in the
development and application of remuneration
policy for the Chairman, the Group Chief
Executive, Executive Directors and certain
senior executives. The Committee also
reviews and approves overall remuneration
policy for all staff. The belief is that neither
Directors’ remuneration nor staff pay can be
considered in isolation from one another.

The overall aim of the Committee is to ensure
that the Group has remuneration policies
which attract and retain the right executives
and staff, and which incentivise them to deliver
strong performance in pursuit of the Group's
plans and objectives. The Committee regularly
reviews arrangements and incentives to ensure
that they remain effective and appropriate to
the Group's circumstances and prospects and
to monitor the level of potential awards.

The terms of reference of the Committee
are available on the www.bbg.co.uk website
and from the Registered Office on request.

Committee membership

The Committee is composed entirely of
independent Non-executive Directors, as
detailed in the table below:

George Cox (Chairman) All year
lan Cheshire All year
Louise Patten All year

George Cox was appointed chairman of the
Committee in November 2003. The Chairman,
Rod Kent, and the Group Chief Executive,
Steven Crawshaw, are normally invited to
attend Committee meetings for those items
other than their own arrangements. In addition,
Andrew Law (General Manager, Human
Resources) is also available to provide advice.

Attendance at meetings during 2005 is
recorded in the Corporate Governance
section of this Annual Report & Accounts.

Adpvisers

Towers Perrin provides external advice to the
Board and the Committee on executive
compensation levels, structure and design, and
also provides services to the Group on
employee reward, retirement and administration.
Mercer Human Resource Consulting is
appointed as the Company's pension scheme
actuaries and provides advice to the Company
on its pension arrangements. Watson Wyatt
Consultants provide advice to the Committee on
pensions issues. The Monks Partriership is the
Committee's appointed independent adviser and
provides no other services to the Group.

Remuneration policy

The Committee considers total remuneration as
its primary measure of reward and seeks to
provide median remuneration for on-target
performance, with the potential to achieve upper
quartle remuneration for outstanding
performance. Total remuneration for executives,
therefore, is geared heavily towards performance,
whilst any base salary increases are generally kept
in line with those given to all Group employees.

The remuneration package comprises two
main components:

« fixed pay, i.e. base salary and benefits
including pension; and

* variable pay, i.e. short-term incentive
delivered in the form of cash and deferred
shares, and a long-term incentive in the form
of matching shares, delivered through a single
scheme, the Executive Incentive Plan (EIP).

As Figure | illustrates, at 'target’ performance
levels, where matching shares commence to
vest, a significant proportion (48%) of the total
remuneration package is dependent on
performance. Similarly, at 'upper end’
performance, the variable pay element accounts
for over three-quarters of the total package.
Similar to last year, the relative importance of
performance and non-performance related
elements of remuneration for the purposes of
the Regulations, has been determined according
to a number of assumptions on the Company’s
share price growth over the next three years.
For the purposes of Figure |, the value of
pensions has been excluded in calculating
benefits, as these values can vary significantly
from year to year and from person to person.

Figure |
Total remuneration at ‘target’ performance

Variable pay 48% Fixed pay 52%

Total remuneration at ‘upper end’
performance

Fixed pay 22%

{

Going forward, therefore, the main
remuneration principles are te:

T

Variable pay 78%

» provide Executive Directors and senior
executives with competitive levels of total
remuneration with respect to comparable
companies in the UK financial services
sector; and

* provide share-based incentive plans that
facilitate Executive Directors to build a
significant stake in the Company and hence
maintain alignment with shareholder interests.

The criteria and performance levels are set at
the start of each year. Once set, they would
not normally be adjusted during the course of
the vear and, in fact, no changes were made
over the course of the past financial year.

The following sections of this report address
the current elements of executive
remuneration, previous executive incentive
plans where performance cycles are still
running for grants made in 2001 to 2004,
executive benefits including pensions, contracts
and variable pay plans open to all employees.

CURRENT ELEMENTS OF
REMUNERATION

Base salary

Base salaries for Executive Directors are
reviewed annually in April where consideration
of wider remuneration and employment factors
elsewhere in the Company is also taken into
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account. Base salary increases for Executive
Directors in April 2005 were broadly in line with
increases throughout the Group. Base salary is
the only element of pay that is pensionable.

The Executive Incentive IPlan

The EIP is a single plan introduced with
shareholders’ approval in 2004 that encompasses
both annual and three-year performance.

The EIP applies to those individuals whose
personal performance has a significant impact
on the Group's results, namely the Executive
Directors and certain other senior executives.
In 2005 there were 18 participants in total. In
2006 we are extending the plan to a further
25 participants albeit at a lower bonus level.

Short-term performance component
Under the EIR the short-term component is
composed of two parts.

Under the first part, a bonus with an ‘on-
target’ payout of 30% of base salary and a
maximum of 60% of base salary can be paid
in cash as a reward for the achievement of
pre-determined short-term performance
measures during the vear.

The second part consists of an equivalent
amount of deferred shares, which will form a
stake in the longer-term future of the Company.
However, these shares will not vest for three
years and if a participant leaves the Company
they will have no automatic right to the shares,
thus creating a retention element within the plan.

The performance measures are reviewed
annually to ensure they continue to be
appropriate to the current market conditions
and position of the Company. Those selected
for 2005, in order to align Executive Directors’
performance with the Group’s business
strategy, were underlying Group profit before
tax, restructuring and compensation cost, and
a set of personal objectives for each executive.

Bonus payments earned for the past year
totalled on average 39.3% of salary in cash and
39.3% of salary in deferred shares. The value of
the deferred shares element will be disclosed
at the time of vesting in the relevant report.

Long-term performance component
if the Company performs well during the
three-year deferral period, participants will be

entitled to an additional award of matching
performance shares. The performance
conditions, determining the level of match to
be applied to the bonus relating to 2005
performance (paid in 2006), will be as follows:

Performance Share Match
Compound EPS growth No match
< RPI + 3% pa
Compound EPS growth [ x match
= RPI + 3% pa
Compound EPS growth 2 x match
= RPI + 5% pa
Compound EPS growth 3 x match

> or = RP| + 8% pa

Matching is calculated on a pro-rata basis
between the above points. The maximum
number of matching shares will be three matching
performance shares for each deferred share.

On change in control of the Company,
participants’ deferred shares are released in
full. In addition, matching performance shares
are also released but pro-rated on the basis of
(i) the proportion of the performance period
that has elapsed; and (i) the extent to which
the Committee considers the performance
conditions would have been met had the
performance period run its full term.

Previous executive incentive plans

Final awards under the Performance Share Plan
('PSP’) were made in February 2004 to Executive
Directors and other senior executives. Awards
under the PSP will vest subject to out-performing
similar financial services companies over the
longer-term, as measured by Total Shareholder
Return (TSR)). The 2004 comparator group was
disclosed in last year's report which is available on
the Company's website.

Under the terms of the 2004 PSR Executive
Directors received a ‘standard’ award up to a
maximum of one times basic salary and a ‘stretch’
award of up 1o a further one times basic salary.

Shares are released depending on the
Company's TSR performance relative to the
performance of the comparator group
companies at the end of three years, as shown
in Figure 2. Under the standard award, 30%
vests for median performance rising on a
straight line basis to full vesting for upper
quartile performance. Under the separate
stretch award, vesting commences at median

performance and rises on a straight line basis to
full vesting at the 85th percentile or above. The
Committee must also be satisfied that the
underlying financial performance of the
Company warrants vesting.

Final grants of share options to Executive
Directors and other senior executives were made
in 2003. In order for these share options to
become exercisable, the Company's earmnings per
share (‘EPS") growth must exceed the increase in
the retail price index by at least 9% over a three
year period. The definition of EPS used to assess
performance for 2005, is EPS before restructuring
and compensation costs. This assumes earnings to
be the profit of the Group after all payments,
including taxation, are made. If the performance
condition has not been achieved at the end of
three years, the test may be repeated on three
further consecutive occasions, otherwise the
options fapse.

In relation to the share option awards made in
2002, the Company's EPS growth exceeded
the applicable performance condition. The
Remuneration Committee determined,
therefore, that the awards should become
exercisable in full in accordance with the
applicable performance condition.

Pensions and other benefits

Steven Crawshaw, Rosemary Thormne and Robert
Dickie are members of the Company's Defined
Benefit pension scheme under which pension is
accrued at retirement based on one-fortieth of
the base salary paid over the prior twelve months
(final salary’) for each year of pensionable service
up to 31 December 2000 (7 August 2003 for
Robert Dickie) and one-thirtieth thereafter.
Executive Directors’ contributions were at the
rate of 2.5% of base salary for 2005 and increase
to 5% of base salary from April 2006 onwards.
Chris Gillespie participates in the Company’s
Defined Contribution pension scheme to which
the Company contributes 15% and the participant
3% of base salary. Chris Willford does not
participate in the Company pension schemes, but
receives a salary supplement equal to 20% of his
base salary instead.

Both of the Company's pension schemes
provide a lump sum death-in-service benefit of
the higher of four times basic salary or four
times earnings in the previous tax year, together
with spouse’s or dependants’ pensions. The
normal retirement age is now 65.




As a result of the new UK legislation affecting
the taxation of pensions, the Company has
reviewed the pension arrangements it provides
to Executive Directors. It has agreed to
replicate internally a notional cap (initially
£105,600) for any defined benefit arrangements
— a provision in excess of this limit will be
provided by way of defined contribution
arrangements. In addition, Executive Directors
with unapproved pension benefits will be given
the option of rolling those benefits into the
Company’s Defined Benefit scheme. Currently
none of the Executive Directors have benefits
in excess of the lifetime allowance (initially
£1.5m). A cash supplement in lieu of pension
benefits will be offered in such a circumstance
10 be agreed by the Committee.

In line with typical market practice, executive
benefits are provided in the form of a
company car {or cash allowance), housing
allowance, private medical insurance and
permanent disability and accident insurance.

Contracts

Group policy is to employ Executive Directors
on one-year rolling contracts (that expire at their
respective normal retirement ages) atthough, on
recruitment, longer initial terms may be
approved by the Remuneration Committee. In
line with this policy, the Company's notice of
termination (or payment in lieu) and the
Directors' notice periods are shown in the table
Directors' service contracts on page 33. With
respect to Chris Willford, the Remuneration
Committee considered it appropriate, in order
to secure his joining the Company, that his
contract has an initial 24-month notice period,
reducing to |12 months with effect from the first
anniversary of his joining.

The principle applied on termination is that all
legal and contractual arrangements are met, with
no addftional payments. Executive Directors
receive a maximum of 12 months' basic safary and
other contractual benefits in the event of the
Company terminating the contract without notice
for any reason other than gross misconduct
(when there will be no compensation).

The date of each service contract and the

age of each current Executive Director (as at
31 December 2005) are shown in the table on
the page 33.

Rosemary Thorne resigned from the Board on
29 November 2005 and her employment with
the Company ceased on 31 December 2005,
Chris Willford was appointed as Executive
Director on 3 October 2005. Chris Gillespie
was appointed as Executive Director on

26 September 2005.

Employee variable pay plans

The Company continues to encourage wider
share ownership through the use of a savings
related share option scheme in which
approximately 40% of its employees (including
Executive Directors) were participants.

In addition, restricted shares are awarded to a
very few key, high-performing individuals following
achievernent of specified performance measures.
These shares are released to individuals in three
annual tranches or on the third anniversary of the
award. Executive Directors are not eligible to
receive restricted shares.

Chairman and Non-executive Directors’ fees
Fee levels for the Chairman are determined by
the Remuneration Committee with reference
to a similar peer group used for Executive
Directors and other senior executives.
Consistent with current best practice, the
Chairman is not eligible to participate in any
form of performance-related incentive plan.

Fee levels for the Non-executive Directors are
determined by a committee, the current
membership being the Chairman, the Group
Chief Executive and the Group Finance
Director. Towers Perrin provides independent
advice on best practice and market fee levels,
taking into account the responsibilities and time
commitment of each Non-executive Director.

Fee levels were not reviewed in 2005, but

are likely to be reviewed in 2006. The
Non-executive Directors do not participate in
any incentive arrangements and none of them
have a service contract. Each receives a letter of
engagement indicating that their initial term of
appointment will be three years. Non-executive
Directors do not receive any other benefits,

Non-executive directorships

Executive Directors who hold non-executive
directorships in other companies are permitted
to retain their earnings from these posts,

Rosemary Thorne is a Non-executive Director
of Cadbury Schweppes plc. The Non-executive
Directors of Cadbury Schweppes have chosen to
utilise a percentage of their fees (between 50%
and 60%) to purchase shares in the company,
which are bought within five business days of
each relevant payment. Each Non-executive
Director has undertaken to hold such shares
during the term of his or her appointment.
Rosemary received a fee of £46,250 for 2005.

Performance graph

Bradford & Bingley is currently a constituent
member of the FTSE 250 Index. Figure 2
therefore shows Bradford & Bingley's TSR
compared with the companies comprising the
FTSE 250 Index for the past five years.

Compliance

This report sets out the framework of our
remuneration policies and the tables show
how this framework is applied to each
individual Director in the year under review.
The tables on pages 32 to 34 have been
audited in compliance with the Regulations.

Figure 2 - Historical TSR performance
growth in the value of a hypothetical £100 holding
over the period 3| December 2000 - 2005
FTSE 250 comparison based on spot values
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 3| December 2005

Other payments  Short-term Total Total
to former performance emcluments emoluments

(£'s) Salary/fees Benefits Director remuneration 2005 2004
Executive
Steven Crawshaw 518,750 18,541 - 288750 826,04l 596050
Rosemary Thorne (resighed 29 November 2005) 330,250 27519 341,064 99,900 798,733 471655
Chris Willford (appointed 3 October 2005) 75,833 21,370 - 37916 135,19 -
Robert Dickie 276,750 [7,799 - H2000 406,549 368,450
Chris Gillespie (appointed 26 September 2005) 73,056 915 - 36946 110,917 -
Christopher Redrigues (resigned 31 March 2004) - - - - - 132,436
lan Darby (resigned 6 August 2004) - - - - - 939363
Total 1,274,639 86,144 341,064 575512 2,277,359 2,507,954
Non-executive
Rod Kent 210,000 - - - 210,000 210,000
Nicholas Cosh 60,000 - - - 60,000 58,958
George Cox 47,500 - - - 47,500 47,500
Stephen Webster 60,000 - - - 60,000 60,000
lan Cheshire 42,500 - - - 42,500 42,500
Louise Patten 42,500 - - - 4?2 500 42,500
Total 462,500 - - - 462,500 461,458
Total Directors’ emolumenits 1,737,139 86,144 341,064 575512 2,739,859 2,969,412
Notes

Short-term performance remuneration shown above reflects amounts payable in respect of 2005 performance.

Taxable benefits received by Directors consist principally of the provision of a company car, health benefits and housing allowance as appropriate. Taxable benefits for Chris Willford also
include an amount in lieu of pension entitlement,

The Total emoluments 2004 reflact payments made to Directors for the period they served on the Board during 2004.

Rosemary Thorne resigned fromithe Board on 29 November 2005 but served as an officer of the Group until 3! December 2005. Under the employment terms agreed with the Group,
Rosemary is entitled to receive monthly salary and other benefits until 30 September 2006. The salary, benefits and short-term performance remuneration in the above table relate to the
period of service between | January 2005 and 31-December 2005, The additional sums shown as ‘Other payments to former Director' represent the contractual value of salary and other
benefits payable under the above agreement for the period | January 2006 through to 30 September 2006.

Directors’ accrued pension entitlements

Accrued Pension Change Transfer Transfer Transfer Value Company’s

Age as at Entitlement in Accrued Value as at Value as at Change in of increase Pension

31 Dec 31 Dec Benefit 31 Dec 31 Dec  TransferValue inaccrued  Contribution

(£000's) 2005 2005 during 2005 2005 2004  during 2005 pension 2005
Executive

Steven Crawshaw 44 95 32 [,106 61l 493 328 26

Rosemary Thorne 53 59 8 973 767 204 39 24

Robert Dickie 46 22 8 277 152 123 86 26

Chris Gillespie (appointed 26 September 2005) 42 - - - - - - I

Benefits have been valued at a retirement age of 60, with an adjustment made to the post | April 2005 benefits to reflect the fact these are reduced if paid before the age of 5.

Pension disclosures are reported above in accordance with the Directors' Remuneration Report Regulations 2002. The transfer values reported above reflect the capital value of the relevant
pension assessed under market conditions at the end of 2005 and 2004 respectively. The ¢hange in transfer value during 2005 is reduced by the Directors’ contributions to the scheme during
2005. The increase in accrued pension entitlement represents the change in the annual pension to which each Director is entitled as a result of changes in pensionable earnings, excluding
inflation and increases in pensionable service.

The accrued pension figure for Steven Crawshaw allows for the fact that his total pension at normal retirement date will be restricted to 2/3rds of his final pensionable salary (FPS), offset by his
retained benefits held in other pension schemes. The accrued pension figure for Robert Dickie allows for the fact that his pension at normal retirement date will be restricted to 2/3rds of his
FPS, offset by his retained benefits held in other pension schemes and a change of accrual rate backdated to | August 2003,

Chris Gillespie is not a member ¢f the defined benefit pension scheme but the Company contributes to a money purchase scheme.

Rosemary Thorne ceased to be a Director of the Company on 29 Novernber 2005, and her total deferred pension at that date was £59,098 p.a. However, she opted 1o cash in the
unapproved element of this pension and a cash payment of £0.7m is included within the pension payments to former Direciors. The remaining deferred pension is £16.300 per annum

In 2005 pension payments due to former Directors amounted to £1.0m (2004: £0.3m).

The changes in transfer values during 2005 are net of employee contributions.




Directors’ service contracts

Age at 3

Date of Company's Director's
Executive Director Dec 2005 service contract notice period notice period
Steven Crawshaw 44 6 Apr 1999 12 months 12 months
Rosemary Thorne 53 29 Nov 1999 12 months 6 moriths
Robert Dickie 46 31 Dec 2002 12 months 12 months
Chris Willford 43 30 Sep 2005 24 months for first 24 months for first
year then 12 months year then 12 months
Chris Gillespie 42 2 Mar 2005 6 months 6 months
Directors’ share option grants
Earliest Market
At 3] Dec  Granted in At 3! Dec Exercise exercise Last exercise price on Date of
2004 year  Exercised Lapsed 2005 price (p) date date exercise (p)  exercise
Steven Crawshaw
Executive share option scheme
Prior to appt as Executive Director 48,863 - - - 48863 29183 Mar04 Marll - -
Post appt as Executive Director 60,205 - - - 60205 31558 Mar05 Mari2 - -
81,655 - - - BIE55 28167 Feb-06 Feb-13 - -
Savings related share option scheme
Prior to appt as Executive Director 8,437 - - - 8437 20000 Mar06 Aug-06 - -
Robert Dickie
Executive share option scheme
Prior to appt as Executive Director 81,655 - - - 81655 28167 Feb-06 Feb-I3 - -
Savings refated share option scheme
Prior to appt as Executive Director 4,223 - - - 4223 22374 May-06 Oct-06 - -
Rosemary Thorne
Executive share option scheme
90,357 - - - 90357 29183 Mar04  Marl - -
87,140 - - - 87,40 30558 Mar05 Marl2 - -
106,507 - - - 106507 28167 Feb-06  Feb-13 - -
Savings related share option scheme
1,609 - 1,609 - - 25267 May-05 Oct-05 30225 3-May-05
2202 - - - 2202 24474 May-07  Oct-07 - -
- 1,572 - - 1,572 25793 May-08 Oct-08 - -
Notes
The exercises of share options are subject to a performance condition related to the improvement of the Company's EPS.
No Executive Share Options have been granted since 2003,
Directors’ executive incentive plan
Deferred Performance Market
shares Award  Performance conditions price on
At 3l Dec  awarded in At 31 Dec value (p) period Vesting for matching vesting Date of
2004 year Vested Lapsed 2005 per share ends date shares P vesting
Steven Crawshaw - 54,752 - - 54752 32300  Dec-07 Feb-08 EPS growth - -
Robert Dickie - 31,026 - - 31,026 32300  Dec07 Feb-08 EPS growth - -
Rosemary Thorne - 39,178 - - 39,178 32300  Dec-07 Feb-08 EPS growth - -
Notes

Deferred shares will vest at the end of the three year period. Matching shares will be added subject to the achievernent of EPS growth equivalent to RPI plus 3-8%. The maximum matching
share multiple will be three times the deferred amount of shares. For a description see the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 34.




DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

Directors’ performance share plan awards

Award Performance Market

At 3l Dec  Awarded At 31 Dec value (p) period Vesting Performance price on Date of
2004 in year Vested Lapsed 2005  per share ends date conditions  vesting (p) vesting

Steven Crawshaw
48,164 - 33329 (4,835 - 31558 Dec-04 Mar-05 Standard 32575 7-Mar-05
22,303 - 15,433 6,870 - 33200 Dec-04 Mar05 Standard 32575 7-Mar05
70,468 - 28,187 42728l - 33200 Dec-04 Mar05 Stretch 32575 7-Mar-05
81,656 - - - 81656 28167 Dec-05 Feb-0é Standard - -
81,655 - - - 81,655 28167 Dec05 Feb-06 Stretch - -
84,990 - - - 84990 30592 Dec-06 Feb-07 Standard - -
84,989 - - - 84989 30592 Dec06 Feb-07 Stretch - -

Robert Dickie

Prior to appt as Executive Director 81,656 - - - 8l656 281.67 Dec-05 Feb-06 Standard - -
81,655 - - - 81655 28167 Dec-05 Feb-06 Stretch - -
Post appt as Executive Director 80,904 - - - 80904 30592 Dec06 Feb-07 Standard - -
80,903 - - - 80903 30592 Dec-06 Feb-07 Stretch - -

Rosemary Thorne
69,712 - 48240 21472 - 31558 Dec-04 Mar05 Standard 32575 7-Mar-05
22,372 - 15,481 6,891 - 33200 Dec-04 Mar05 Standard 32575 7-Mar-05
92,085 - 36834 55251 - 33200 Dec-04 Mar-05 Stretch 32575 7-Mar-05
106,508 - - - 106508 28167 Dec-05 Feb-06 Standard - -
106,507 - - - 106507 28167 Dec-05 Feb-06 Stretch - -
102,151 - - - 102,15t 30592 Dec-06 Feb-07 Standard - -
(02,150 - - - 102,150 30592 Dec-06 Feb-07 Stretch - -

Notes

Performance Share Plan awards are subject to the achievernent of a performance criterion which measures the Company's TSR against a peer group of companies. For the description see the
Directors' Remuneration Report.on page 30. Awards in respect of 2002 had a percentage vesting of 69.2% under the standard performance criterion and 40% under the stretch criterion. The
performance period for the 2003 allocation made under the 200) Performance Share Plan ended on 31 December 2005. Full details concerning any shares released to Executive Directors in

2006 will be contained in the Annual Report & Accounts for 2006. No Performance Share Plan awards have been made since 2004.

Directors’ 1998 long-term incentive plan - share award*

Award Market
At 31 Dec Granted in At 3| Dec value {p) Exercise Last exercise price on Date of
2004 vear Exercised Lapsed 2005 per share date date  exercise (p) exercise
Steven Crawshaw** 9,647 - 9,647 - - 24935  Dec-00  Dec-05 326 15-Aug-05
Rosemary Thorne 5,147 - 15,147 - - 24935  Dec-00  Dec-05 326 [5-Aug-05

Notes
*No awards have been made under this plan since December 2000,

**Award made prior to appointment as Executive Director:

Long-term Incentive Plan participants were entitled to choose cash ar shares.

Where shares were chosen, nil cost options were granted. However, in order to receive these options participants sacrificed cash entitlements equivalent to 249.35p per share,

Chris Gillespie and Chris Willford currently have no share options or awards,
On 31 December 2005 the closing mid-market price of ordinary shares in Bradford & Bingley plc was 410.5p and the range during the year to 31 December 2005 was 297.5p to 418.25p:

Approved by the Board on |5 February 2006 and signed on its behalf by:

George Cox
CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE




STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in
respect of the Annual Report & Accounts
and the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the
Annual Report & Accounts and the Group and
parent Company Financial Statemenits in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to
prepare Group and Company Financial
Statements for each financial year. Under that
law they are required to prepare the Group
Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS
as adopted by the European Union (the ‘EU')
and have elected to prepare the Company
Financial Statements on the same basis.

The Group and Company Financial Statements
are required by law and IFRS as adopted by the
EU to present fairly the financial position of the
Group and the Company and the performance
of the Group for that period; the Companies
Act 1985 provides in relation to such financial
statements that references in the relevant part
of that Act to financial statements giving a true
and fair view are references to their achieving a
fair presentation.

In preparing each of the Group and Company

Financial Statements, the Directors are

required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

* make judgements and estimates that are

reasonable and prudent;

state whether the Financial Statements have

been prepared in accordance with IFRS as

adopted by the EU; and

+ prepare the Financial Statements on the
going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the Group and Company
will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping
proper accounting records that disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to
ensure that its Financial Statements comply
with the Companies Act 1985. They have
general responsibility for taking such steps as
are reasonably open to them to safeguard the
assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the
Directors are also responsible for preparing a
Directors' Report, Directors’ Remuneration
Report and a Corporate Governance Statement
that comply with that law and those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial information included on the
Company's website. Legislation in the UK
governing the preparation and dissemination
of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Steven Crawshaw
GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE

15 February 2006




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BRADFORD & BINGLEY PLC

We have audited the Group and parent
Company financial statements (the ‘Financial
Statements’) of Bradford & Bingley plc for the
year ended 3| December 2005 which
comprise the Group Income Statement, the
Group and Company Balance Sheets, the
Group and Company Cash Flow Statements,
the Group and Company Statements of
Recognised Income and Expense, the related
notes and the Appendix except for the
Proforma information described on pages 88,
91, 93, 95 and 98 as unaudited. These Financial
Statements have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out therein. We have
also audited the information in the Directors'
Remuneration Report om pages 32 to 34.

This report is made solely to the Company's
members, as a body, in accordance with
section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor's report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors

and auditors

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing
the Annual Report & Acqounts, the Directors’
Remuneration Report and the Financial
Statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS’) as adopted by the EU are set out in
the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

on page 35.

Our responsibility is to audit the Financial
Statements and the part of the Directors'
Remuneration Report to be audited in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report 1o you our opinion as to whether
the Financial Statements give a true and fair
view and whether the Financial Statements
and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985 and, as regards the Financial

Statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation.
We also report to you if, in our opinion, the
Directors’ Report is not consistent with the
Financial Statements, if the Company has not
kept proper accounting records, if we have
not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or if
information specified by law regarding
Directors’ remuneration and other transactions
is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate

¢ Governance Statement reflects the

Company's compliance with the nine
provisions of the 2003 FRC Combined Code
specified for our review by the Listing Rules of
the Financial Services Authority, and we
report if it does not. We are not required to
consider whether the Board's statements on
internal control cover all risks and controls, or
form an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's corporate governance procedures or
its risk and control procedures.

We read other information contained in the
Annual Report & Accounts and consider
whether it is consistent with the audited
Financial Statements. We consider the
implications for our report if we become
aware of any apparent misstatements or
material inconsistencies with the Financial
Statements. Our responsibilities do not extend
to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Beard.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the Financial Statements and the
part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to
be audited. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made by
the Directors in the preparation of the Financial
Statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Group's and
Company’s circumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to
obtain all the information and explanations
which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance that the Financial

Statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming
our opinion, we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in
the Financial Statements and the part of the
Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited,

Opinion
In our opinion:

» the Group Financial Statements give a true
and fair view, in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the EU, of the state of the
Group’s affairs as at 3| December 2005 and
of its profit for the year then ended;

» the Company Financial Statements give a true

and fair view, in accordance with IFRS as

adopted by the EU as applied in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act

1985, of the state of the Company's affairs as

at 31 December 2005; and

the Financial Statements and the part of the

Directors' Remuneration Report to be

audited have been properly prepared in

accordance with the Companies Act 1985

and, as regards the Financial Statements,

Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

KPMG Audit Plc
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
REGISTERED AUDITOR

LEEDS

15 February 2006




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

Total  Continuing Discontinued Total
Operations  Operations ~ Operations ~ Operations
2005 2004 2004 2004
Note im im £m £m
Interest and similar income 2,136.1 1,.8584 - 1,858.4
Interest expense and similar charges (1,666.8)  (1,410.0) - (1,4100)
Net interest income 469.3 4484 - 4484
Fee and commission income 923 133.8 139.0 2728
Fee and commission expense - (35.6) - (35.6)
Net fee and commission income 923 98.2 139.0 2372
Gains less losses on sale of debt securities 1.8 10.0 - 10.0
Fair value movements on financial instruments I.1 - - -
Other operating income 8.0 6.6 - 6.6
Net operating income 5725 5632 139.0 7022
Administrative expenses 3 (311.4) (3214 (167.6) (489.0)
Impairment (loss)/credit 14 (5.7) 2.3 - 2.3
Non-operating income 8.1 6.4 - 64
Profit/(loss) before taxation and loss on sale of discontinued operations 2635 260.5 (28.6) 231.9
Taxation é (74.7) (68.5) 35 (65.0)
Profit/(loss) after taxation and before loss on sale of discontinued operations 188.8 1920 (25.1) 166.9
Loss on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxation 8 - - (128.6) (128.6)
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 188.8 192.0 (153.7) 383
Attributable to:

- Equity shareholders 188.8 182.3 (153.7) 286
- Minority interest (non-equity) - 9.7 - 9.7
188.8 192.0 (153.7) 383

Earnings per share:
- Basic 10 30.1p 29.2p (24.6)p 46p
- Diluted 10 30.0p 29.2p (24.6)p 4.6p

The notes on pages 41 to 87 form part of these Financial Statements.

As explained in note | (c), the 2004 information above does not reflect IAS 32 or IAS 39.

The Company’s profit after tax for the financial year was £160.8m (2004: £5.1m). As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the Company's Income Statement has not been

presented in these Financial Statements,




BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER

Group Group Company Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
Note £m £m £m £m
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 49.6 51.2 49.2 51.2
Treasury bills and other eligible bills I - 3804 - 3804
Loans and advances to banks 12 3,204.7 4,156.0 2,315.5 37717
Loans and advances to customers 13 31,127.1 28,8684 32,6266 28,7635
Fair value adjustments of portfolic hedging 16 I55.0 - 155.0 -
Debt securities 17 5,724.0 43177 5,163.5 3,693.7
Derivative financial instruments 40d 262.8 - 200.0 -
Prepayments and accrued income 18 336 167.9 40.6 87.2
Shares in Group undertakings 19 - - 557.6 557.6
Other assets 20 115.3 484 104.6 134
Deferred tax asset 7 27.7 357 242 339
Property, plant and equipment 21 92.9 949 8l.3 81.7
Intangible assets 22 47.5 29.1 13.7 8.5
Total assets 40,8402 38,1497 41,331.8 374428
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 23 1,721.6 1,274.3 1,009.2 649.3
Customer accounts 24 21,050.1 18954.1  26,783.5 217282
Derivative financial instruments 40d 331.1 - 341 .4 -
Debt securities in issue 25 14577.6 149389 10,181.1 12,305.6
Cther liabilities 26 140.8 7.2 129.8 964
Accruals and deferred income 27 128.2 [95.8 104.6 168.5
Current tax liabilities 64.4 68.2 10.4 50.2
Post-retirement benefit obligations 28 2.2 84.6 112.2 84.6
Provisions 29 349 48.3 349 483
Subordinated liabilities 30 1,164.7 1,122.5 1,489.0 1,271.2
Other capital instruments 3 i74.3 - - -
Total liabilities 39,4999 368039 40,196.1 364023
Equity
Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders:
Share capital 32, 33 158.6 158.5 158.6 1585
Share premium reserve 33 4.9 39 49 39
Capital redemption reserve 33 25.0 250 25.0 250
Other reserves 33 22.0 - 22.0 -
Retained earnings 33 1,129.8 1,009.8 925.2 853.1
Total attributable equity 1,340.3 1,197.2 {,135.7 1,040.5
Minority interest (non-equity) 31 - 148.6 - -
Total equity and liabilities 40,8402 38,1497 41,331.8 374428

The notes on pages 41 to 87 form part of these Financial Statements,
As explained in note | (c), the 2004 information above does not reflect 1AS 32 or IAS 39,
The Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on |5 February 2006 and signed on its behalf by:

Steven Crawshaw
GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Chris Willford
GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR




STATEMENTS OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

Group Group Company Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
£m £m £m m
Total equity and minority interest (non-equity) as at 3| December 2004 1,345.8 1,040.5
See Appendix: effect of adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39
on | January 2005 (with 2004 not restated) on:
Retained earnings 47.4 27.5
Available-for-sale reserve 9.0) (9.0
Minority interest (non-equity) (148.6) -
(110.2) 18.5
Total equity as at | January 2005 1,235.6 1,059.0
Available-for-sale instruments:
Net gains recognised in equity during the year 20.1 - 20.1 -
Amounts transferred from equity and recognised in profit during the year 1.6 - 1.6 -
Cash flow hedges:
Net gains recognised in equity during the year 17.2 - 7.2 -
Amounts transferred from equity during the year and recognised in the (1.4) - (1.4) -
carrying value of hedged items
Actuarial losses on post-retirement benefit obligations (26.0) (1.4) (26.0) (4
Taxation on items taken directly to equity : 1.3 0.4 i3 04
Net income recognised directly in equity 2.8 (1.0) 2.8 (1.0)
Profit for the financial vear 188.8 383 160.8 5.1
Total recognised income and expense for the vear 201.6 373 173.6 4.
Total recognised income and expense for the year is attributable to:
Equity shareholders 201.6 276 173.6 4.1
Minority interest (non-equity) - 9.7 - -
201.6 373 173.6 4.1
The notes on pages 4| to 87 form part of these Financial Statements,
As explained in note 1(c), the 2004 information above does not reflect IAS 32 or IAS 35.
CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
Group Group Company Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
£m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the financial year 188.8 383 160.8 5.1
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to cash flow from/(used in) operating activities:
Loss on sale of discontinued operations - 128.6 - 72.5
Income tax expense 74.7 65.0 38.6 250
Depreciation and amortisation . 12.0 178 8.6 9.6
Impairment losses on loans and advances 13.0 8.5 2.6 36
Loans and advances written off, net of recoveries (6.6) 5.8) 5.1) (5.8)
Interest on subordinated liabilities and other capital instruments 88.5 78.8 95.6 88.5
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets ‘ (7.9 3.7 (8.0) (37)
Gains less losses on sale of debt securities (1.8) (10.0) (0.9) (10.0)

Cash flows from operating activities before changes in operating assets and liabilities - carried forward ~ 360.7 3175 2922 188.8




CASH FLOW STATEMENTS CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

Group Group Company Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
£m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in operating assets and liabilities - brought forward 360.7 3175 2922 188.8
Net (increase)/decrease in operating assets:
Loans and advances to banks and customers (812.5) (1,7734) (3,7785) 47161
Acquisition of mortgage portfolio (1,406.2) (1265.5) - (9.201.6)
Derivative financial instruments (262.8) - (200.0) -
Fair value adjustments of portfolio hedging (155.0) - (155.0) -
Prepayments and accrued income 96.3 (35.7) 37.6 152
Other assets (93.8) (5.5) (119.6) (0.7)
Net increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Deposits by banks and custorner accounts 2,4202 13276 3,543.3 22413
ltems in course of collection 62.0 (30.9) 56.1 311D
Debt securities in issue (1,904.9) 3238  (1,971.0) 525.1
Provisions : (13.4) 450 (13.4) 45.1
Derivative financial instruments 3301 - 341 .4 -
Accruals and deferred income (154.7) 2050 (185.7) 1687
Other liabilities 274 (67) 373 (19.4)
Income taxes paid (81.4) ur)! (79.6) (40.1)
Other non-cash items .7 (1.6) 95.2 (0.9)
Net cash from operating activities (1,475.3) (976.3) (2,099.7) (1,393.5)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of - 369 - 319
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (35.2) (42.5) (13.9) (15.h
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4.3 315 10.3 20.7
Purchase of debt securities (3,2268) (25746) (2910.5) (1,995.1)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of debt securities 1,1748 29689 673.0 24019
Net cash from investing activities (2,072.9) 4202 (2,241.1) 4443
Cash flows from financing activities:
Purchase of own shares - (0.8) - 0.8)
Proceeds from disposal of own shares 74 1.9 74 1.9
Net proceeds from sale of surplus conversion shares - 49.7 - 49.7
Net proceeds from issue of subordinated liabilities - - 150.0 -
Net proceeds from secured funding 1,998.5 3,346.6 1,998.5 3,346.6
Repayments of secured funding (313.0) (197.7) (225.0) -
Interest paid on subordinated liabilities and perpetual preferred securities (88.5) (88.5) (95.6) (88.5)
Dividends paid (108.7) (104.0) (108.7) (104.0)
Net cash from financing activities 1,495.7 3017.2 1,726.6 32149
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,052.5)  246l.1 (2.614.2) 22657
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5,761.5 3,300.4 5,349.4 30837
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 3,709.0 5761.5 2,735.2 5,349.4
Represented by cash and assets with original maturity of 3 months or less within:
Cash and balances at céntra! banks 16.3 7.1 15.9 7.1
Loans and advances to banks 3,I51.5 4,156.0 2,315.5 37707
Debt securities 541.2 1,208.0 403.8 1,180.2
Treasury bills and other eligible bills - 380.4 - 3804
3,709.0 57615  2,7352 53494

The Group is required to maintain balances with the Bank of England which at 31 December 2005 amounted to £33.3m (2004: £34.1m), These balances are not included in cash for the

purposes of the Cash Flow Statement.
As explained in note [(c), the 2004 information above does not reflect IAS 32 or IAS 39.

The net cash inflow to the operating activities of discontinued operations during 2004 was: Group £33.5m (2005: Nif), Company £14.8m (2005 Nil),

There were no discontinued operations, investing or financing activities other than the net proceeds from disposal shown above.

The notes on pages 4| to 87 form part of these Financial Statements.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. Significant accounting policies

Bradford & Bingley plc ('the Company") is a
public limited company incorporated in the
United Kingdom under the Companies Act [985.

These Financial Statements were authorised
for issue by the Directors on 15 February 2006
and will be put to the shareholders for
approval at the Company's Annual General
Meeting to be held on 25 April 2006.

(a) Statement of compliance

The Group Financial Statements consolidate
those of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred 1o as the “Group”). The
Company Financial Statements present
information about the Company as a separate
entity and not about its Group.

Both the Group Financial Statements and the
Company Financial Statements have been
prepared and approved by the Directors in
accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union ("adopted IFRS™). In
publishing the Company Financial Statements
here together with the Group Financial
Statements, the Company has taken advantage
of the exemption in 5230 of the Companies
Act 1985 not to present its individual Income
Statement and related notes that form a part
of these approved Financial Statements.

As detailed in paragraph (u), the Group has
used “The FairValue Option” amendment to
IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” issued by the |ASB in June 2005.

The |ASB intended that compliance with the
following two statements should be voluntary
for 2005 and 2006 but mandatory for 2007;
the Group has not adopted them for these
2005 Financial Statements because the EU had
not endorsed them by 3| December 2005:
* The Capital Disclosures amendment to IAS
I issued by the IASB in August 2005; and
* IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”
issued by the IASB in August 2005.

These two statements relate to disclosures
only, and adoption of them would have no
impact on the Group’s or the Company's
Income Statements, Balance Sheets or Cash
Flow Statements.

The Group has also not adopted the
following statements:

* IFRIC 4 "Determining Whether an
Arrangement Contains a Lease” issued in
January 2004. This is effective for 2006, and
will require the Group to account for as
leases any rights to use assets in return for
payment. The Group is not aware of any
arrangements which will require any change
in accounting treatment in 2006 as a result
of IFRIC 4.

Amendment to I1AS 39 and IFRS 4 “Financial
Guarantee Contracts” issued in August 2005
and effective for 2006, A financial guarantee
contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment. The Group is
not aware of any arrangements which wil
require any change in accounting treatment
in 2006 as a resuft of this amendment.

Both the Group and the Company are presenting
their Financial Statements in accordance with
adopted IFRS for the first time and consequently
both have applied IFRS | *'First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards”. An
explanation of how the transition to adopted
IFRS has affected the reported financial position
and financial performance of the Group and
Company is provided in the Appendix. As at

| January 2004 the cumulative change to retained
earnings has been taken directly to reserves as
required by IFRS [.

(b) IFRS | exemptions

IFRS | sets out the procedures which the Group
and Company must follow on adoption of IFRS.
The Group and Company are required to
establish their IFRS accounting policies as at

31 December 2005 and, in general, to apply
them retrospectively to the whole of 2004 and
2005 and in determining their IFRS opening
Balance Sheet as at | January 2004. However,
IFRS | provides a number of optional
exemptions from this general principle. The most
significant of these are set out below, together
with a description in each case of the exemption
adopted by the Group and Company.

(i) IFRS 2 "“Share-based Payment”

The Group and Company have elected to
apply IFRS 2 only to share-based payment
transactions granted after 7 November 2002
and not vested as at | January 2005.

(ii) IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”

The Group has elected not to apply IFRS 3
retrospectively to business combinations that
took place before | January 2004, As a result,
in the | January 2004 opening IFRS Balance
Sheet, goodwill arising from past business
combinations remains as stated under UK
GAAP as at that date.

(i) 1AS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement”

Under IAS 39 a financial asset or liability which
was derecognised from the Balance Sheet
priorto | January 2004, due to sale or other
reason, cannot be reinstated to the Balance
Sheet other than as a result of a new event
occurring on or after | January 2004. IFRS |
allows an entity to adopt an earlier cut-off
date, and the Group and Company have
chosen to use | January 1999 for this purpose.
Therefore all financial liabilities which were
derecognised in the period 1999 to 2004 and
which should be carried on the Balance Sheet
under IFRS at | January 2005 have been
reinstated to the Balance Sheet as at that date.

(iv) IAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure
and Presentation” and IAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
As explained in 1(c) below, IFRS 1 allows
entities to apply 1AS 32 and IAS 39 with effect
from | January 2005 without retrospective
restatement of 2004. The Group and
Company have taken this exemption.

(c) 2004 comparative information

The 2004 comparative information contained
in these Financial Statements has been
restated from that presented in the Group’s
2004 Financial Statements in accordance with
IFRS. As at | January 2004 the cumulative
change to retained earnings has been taken
directly to reserves, as required by IFRS 1.
The accounting policies applied to 2005 differ
to those applied to the 2004 comparative
information with regards to financial
instruments, where those used under UK
GAAP have been applied.

The difference in policies between 2004 and
2005 arises from the exemption granted by
IFRS | from retrospective application of IAS 32
and IAS 39 in restating 2004 information. The
adjustments made as at | January 2005 in order
to reflect adoption of the new financial
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instruments accounting policies have been
treated as a change in accounting policies at that
date, except that, in accordance with IFRS 1,
the cumulative change to retained earnings has
been taken directly to reserves as at that date.

(d) Basis of preparation:

The Financial Statements are prepared on
the historical cost basis except that for the
2005 information:

(i) the following assets and liabilities are carried

at their fair value:

* derivative financial instruments;

* financial instruments categorised under AS 39
as “at fair value through profit or loss”; and

* financial instruments categorised under IAS 39
as “available-for-sale’’; and

(if) where hedge accounting has been applied
the carrying value of hedged items has been
adjusted to take account of the fair value of
the risk which has been hedged.

The 2004 information in these Financial
Statements complies with the Statements of
Recommended Practice (‘'SORPS') issued by the
British Bankers’ Association. In 2005 the SORPs
have been superseded by IFRS.

In the application of these accounting policies
the Directors have made judgements that have
a significant effect on the Financial Statements
and have also made estimates that may give
rise to adjustment in future years. These
judgements and estimates are discussed in
note 37.

The Directors consider that the accounting
policies set out in this note are the most
appropriate to the Group's and the Company's
circumstances, have been consistently applied
both to the Group and the Company in
dealing with items which are considered
material, and are supported by reasonable and
prudent estimates and judgements. Where
IFRS allows a choice of accounting policy, the
Directors have chosen the policy which they
consider most appropriate for the Group. The
accounting policies have been applied to alf
periods presented in these Financial
Statements and are consistent with the
accounting policies used by the Group in
preparing its Interim Financial Information for
the 6 months ended 30 june 2005.

The Financial Statements are presented in pounds
sterling, which is the currency of the Group’s and
Company's primary operating environment.

(e) Basis of consolidation

The Group's Financial Statements incorporate
on a fully consolidated basis the Financial
Statements of the Company and those entities
(including special purpose entities) which are
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has
the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an investee entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. VWhere subsidiaries
have been acquired during a period, their
resufts are consolidated in the Financial
Statements from the date control is transferred
to the Group. Where subsidiaries have been
disposed of, their results are consolidated to
the date of disposal. On the acquisition of a
business, fair values are attributed to the assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired. Any
difference between the consideration given and
the fair value of the net assets acquired is
capitalised as goodwill.

Accounting policies applied to both 2004
and 2005

(f) Fee and commission income
Where value added tax (VAT') is charged,
income is stated net of VAT,

Commission receivable from the sale of third
party regulated financial services products is
recognised as income within “fee and
commission income’ when the policy goes “on
risk”, net of any provision for repayment in the
event of early termination by the customer.

Fee and commission income arises on various
other activities and is accounted for within “fee
and commission income” in the Income
Statement on an accruals basis as the services
are performed. Fee and commission income
includes items relating to lending which do not
qualify for inclusion in the effective interest
rate (‘EIR’) on the loan,

(g) Employee benefits

(i) Post-retirement benefits

The Group operates a number of post-
retirement benefit plans for its employees,
including defined contribution plans, defined
benefit plans and other post-retirement

benefits (principally healthcare). The costs of
these plans are charged to the Income
Statement and retained earnings in accordance
with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” as amended
in December 2004.

A defined contribution plan is a pension
arrangement where the employer pays fixed
contributions into a separate fund. The
contributions are charged to the Income
Statement when employees have rendered the
related services, which is generally in the year
of contribution.

A defined benefit plan is a pension
arrangement that defines an amount of
pension benefit that an employee will receive
during retirement, usually dependent on one
or more factors such as age, years of service
and salary. The net deficit or surplus on the
plan is carried in the Balance Sheet, comprising
the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the Balance Sheet date less the
fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent
qualified actuaries using the projected unit
credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are
charged to retained earnings in full in the
pericd in which they occur, and pass through
the Statement of Recognised Income and
Expense rather than the Income Statement.

Post-retirement medical benefits are
accounted for in the same way as pension
benefits, with the present value of the liability
being carried on the Balance Sheet.

(i) Share-based payment

The Group operates various share-based
incentive schemes for employees and officers,
including a Sharesave Scheme. Grants of shares,
share options and other equity instruments
which were made after 7 November 2002 and
which had not vested as at | January 2005 are
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2
"Share-based Payment”, under which the fair
value of awards is measured at the date of grant
and charged to the Income Statement over the
period to vesting, with a corresponding credit
10 retained earnings. Further details of the
Group's fair value methodology are given in
note 5. The fair value takes into account vesting
conditions in addition to expected movements
in the Company's share price. The charge is
made only in respect of the number of awards




that are expected to vest; this expected
number is revised at each Balance Sheet date
and the difference due to estimate revisions is
charged or credited to the Income Statement
over the period to vesting with a corresponding
adjustment to retained earnings. The proceeds
received on exercise of options net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to retained earnings.

(h) Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the profit
for the year and takes into account taxation
deferred or accelerated arising from
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of certain items for taxation and for
accounting purposes. Deferred taxation is
provided for in full at the tax rate at the
Balance Sheet date in accordance with 1AS 12
“Income Taxes", including on tax losses carried
forward, and is not discounted to take account
of the expected timing of realisation. Deferred
taxation assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the
taxable differences can be utilised. Tax relating
to items which-are taken directly to reserves is
also taken directly to reserves.

(i) Dividends

In accordance with IAS 10 “Events after the
Balance Sheet Date”, dividends payable on
ordinary shares are recognised in retained
earnings once they are appropriately
authorised and are no longer at the discretion
of the Company.

Dividends receivable by the Company
(including those receivable from other Group
entities) are recognised by the Company once
the right to receive payment is established, in
accordance with IAS 18 “Revenue”.

(j) Purchases and sales of financial assets
Purchases and sales of mortgage portfolios are
accounted for on the completion date. All
other purchases and sales of financial assets
are accounted for on the date of commitment
to buy or sell (the "trade date”).

(k) Securitisation vehicles

The Group has securitised various residential
mortgage loans, generally by sale or transfer to
special purpose entities which in turn issue
securities to investors. The special purpose

structures are consolidated line by line into the
Group Financial Statements if they are, in
substance, controlled by the Company.

(1) Shares in Group undertakings

In the accounts of the Company, shares in
Group undertakings are carried at cost less
any impairment, as required by IAS 27
"Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements”. Shares are reviewed at each
published Balance Sheet date for any indication
of impairment, in accordance with 1AS 36
“Impairment of Assets". If there is indication of
impairment of any share, the carrying value of
the share is reviewed, and any impairment
identified is charged immediately in the
Income Statement.

{m) Property, plant and equipment

The cost of additions and major alterations to
land and buildings, equipment, fixtures and
motor vehicles is capitalised. All property,
plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation.

Depreciation is provided so as to write off the
cost less the estimated residual value of each
significant component of each item of
property, plant and equipment over that
component’s estimated useful life, as follows:
* Land is not depreciated;

* Freehold buildings at 2% per annum on a
straight line basis;

* Leasehold properties over the shorter of
the lease period and 50 years on a straight
line basis;

» Fixtures and fittings at 20% per annum on a
straight line basis;

» Motor vehicles at 25% per annum on a
reducing balance basis;

» Computer equipment at rates ranging from
209% to 33% per annum on a straight line
basis; and

*» Other equipment and major alterations to
buildings at 10% per annum on a straight
line basis.

All items of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed annually for impairment.

(n) Leases

Leases are accounted for as finance leases or
operating feases in accordance with IAS |7
“Leases’. A finance lease is a lease that
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards

of ownership of an asset; any other lease is an
operating lease.

Rentals under operating leases are charged to
“administrative expenses” on a straight line basis
to the date of change in the rental amount.
Typically, operating leases have rent review
dates in their terms, several years apart, and
between those dates the annual rent remains
constant. Lease premia paid are amortised over
the full lease period on a straight line basis,

(o) Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill

On acquisition of a business, goodwill
represents the difference between the fair
value of the consideration given and the net
aggregate fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired.
Goodwill is not subject to regular amertisation,
but is reviewed annually for impairment, Any
impairment identified is charged immediately
in the Income Statement and is nct
subsequently reversed. Goodwill is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and Josses on the disposal of a business include
the carrying amount of any goodwill relating to
the business sold.

In respect of acquisitions prior to | January 2004,
goodwill is included on the basis of its deemed
cost, being fts carrying amount at | January 2004
under previous UK GAAP

(i) Computer software

Computer software licences are capitalised as
intangible assets if they have a sufficiently
enduring nature. Thereafter they are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation,
Amortisation is provided on a straight line
basis over their useful economic lives, which
may be up to five years. Those which have a
life expectancy at the outset of less than two
years are not capitalised but instead their costs
are charged to the Income Statement as they
arise. Costs that are directly associated with
developing identifiable computer software
systems are capitalised if the criteria in |AS 38
“Intangible Assets” are satisfied; the main
criteria are that the successful completion of
the development project is reasonably certain
and that the software is expected to generate
future economic benefits. Each item of
capitalised developed computer software is
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation;
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amortisation is provided on a straight line basis |

over its estimated useful life. Costs that do not
qualify for capitalisation are charged to the
Income Statement as they arise.

(p) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when, and only

when, the following criteria are all met:

* there is a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event; and

* it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and

* a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are discounted to net present value
using rates which reflect the risks specific to the
provision, if the effect of discounting is material.

Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date, and are released if they no longer meet
the above criteria.

() Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise balances
which had an original maturity of three months
or less.

(r) Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities are accounted for in accordance with
IAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates”. The presentation currency of
the Group is pounds sterling, Transactions
which are not denominated in pounds sterling
are translated into sterling at the spot rate of
exchange on the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities which are not
denominated in pounds sterling are translated
into sterling at the closing rate of exchange at
the Balance Sheet date.

Any foreign exchange gains or losses arising
from settlement of transactions at rates
different from those at the date of the
transaction, and any unrealised foreign
currency exchange gains and losses on
unsettled foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities, are includec in the Income
Statement in “interest and similar income” or
“interest expense and similar charges”
depending on whether the underlying
instrument is an asset or a liability.

The assets and liabilities of subsidiaries which
have a functional currency other than pounds
sterling are translated into sterling at the
closing rate of exchange at the Balance Sheet
date, and the Income Statements and cash
flows of those entities are translated into
sterling at the average exchange rate for the
Income Statement period.

Financial instruments accounting policies
applied to 2005 only

(s) Interest income and expense

For all financial instruments (including loans
and advances), interest income and expense
are recognised in the Income Statement on
an EIR basis.

The EIR basis spreads the interest income or
interest expense over the expected life of the
instrument. The EIR is the rate that at the
inception of the instrument exactly discounts
expected future cash payments and receipts
through the expected life of the instrument back
to the initial carrying amount. When calculating
the EIR, future cash flows are estimated,
considering all contractual terms of the
instrument (for example prepayment options)
but potential future credit losses are not
considered. The calculaticn includes all directly
attributable incremental fees and costs, premia
on acquisition of mortgage portfolios and all
other premia and discounts as well as interest.

(t) Fee and commission income

If commission income is receivable on deferred
terms, a deemed interest element of the
commission is separated and recognised on an
EIR basis over the deferred payment period.

(u) Classification of financial instruments

In accordance with IAS 3% each financial asset
is classified at initial recognition into one of
four categories:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss;

(i) Held-to-maturity investments;

(iii) Loans and receivables; or

(iv) Available-for-sale;

and each financial liability into one of two
categories:

(v) At amortised cost; or

(vi) At fair value through profit or loss.

in June 2005 the IASB issued the "‘FairValue
Option” amendment to IAS 39. This
amendment permits designation of a financial
asset or financial liability as being “at fair value
through profit or loss” under wider
circumstances than were previously allowed.
The Company uses this amendment to prevent
technical accounting mismatches between the
Company and other Group entities in respect
of accounting for intra-group swap
arrangements; use of this amendment has had
no impact on the results or Balance Sheet of
the Group. On initial adoption of the
amendment, the Company did not redesignate
any existing instruments between categories.

Measurement of financial instruments is either
at amortised cost (categories (if), (iii) and (v)
above) or at fair value (categories (i), (iv) and
(vi) above), depending on the category of
financial instrument.

Amortised cost is the amount measured at
initial recognition, adjusted for subsequent
principal and other payments, less cumulative
amortisation calculated using the EIR method;
the amortisation is taken to interest income or
expense depending on whether the instrument
is an asset or a liability. The amortised cost
balance is reduced where appropriate by an
allowance for amounts which are considered to
be impaired or uncollectable.

Any profit or loss on sale of an instrument
carried at amortised cost is recognised
immediately in the Income Statement in interest
income or expense depending on whether the
instrument is an asset or a liability.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset
could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an
arm’s length transaction. Where a market
exists, fair values are based on quoted market
prices. For instruments which do not have
active markets, fair value is calculated using
present value models which take individual cash
flows together with assumptions based on
market conditions and credit spreads and are
consistent with accepted economic
methodologies for pricing financial instruments.
Movements in fair value are recognised in the
“fair value movements on financial instruments
line in the Income Statement, except in the
case of instruments dlassified as “available-for-
sale”, in which case the fair value movements

1




are taken to the "“available-for-sale reserve’
On sale of an available-for-sale instrument

the accumulated fair value movements are
transferred from the “available-for-sale reserve’
10 “gains less losses on sale of debt securities”
within the Income Statement.

Certain certificates of deposit, fixed and
floating rate notes and mortgage-backed
securities are classified as available-for-sale.

(v) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, including loans and receivables,
are reviewed for indications of possibie
impairment throughout the year and at each
published Balance Sheet date, in accordance
with IAS 39. For each individual loan which
exhibits indications of impairment, the carrying
value of the loan at the Balance Sheet date is
reduced to the net present value of the
expected future cash flows associated with the
loan, calculated at the loan's original EIR; these
cash flows include where appropriate
estimated amounts recoverable by
repossession and sale of the secured property,
taking into account a discount on property
value to reflect a forced sale. Loans and
advances are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. All loans that
have been assessed as having no individual
impairment are then assessed collectively,
grouped by loans with similar risk
characteristics; assessment is made of
impairment arising due to events which are
believed to have occurred but had not yet
been reported by the Balance Sheet date,
taking into account the prevailing economic
climate. This collective impairment is reflected
by reducing the carrying value of total loans.

Interest income is recognised on impaired
loans by applying the original EIR of the loan
to the impaired balance.

(w) Debt securities held

Debt securities intended for use on a
continuing basis in the Group’s activities are
classified either as “available-for-sale” or as“at
fair value through profit or loss”, and are
accounted for; in accordance with I1AS 39. In
each case they are carried at fair value. Each
investment in a structured investment vehicle
('SIV') is individually reviewed to ensure the
accounting treatment is appropriate. Where
the SIV is considered to have minimal
management discretion, the Group recognises

its share of the S5IV's underlying assets and
liabilities, at fair value. In other cases the
investment in the SIV is treated as a debt
security. Interest on these vehicles includes a
margin above the coupon rate to reflect
profits earned by the underlying investment,

(x) Derivative financial instruments and
hedge accounting

The Group enters into derivative contracts in
order to manage exposures to interest rate
risks, foreign currency risks and risks arising
from forecast transactions, in accordance with
IAS 39. The EU has issued an amendment to
IAS 39 (the “carve-out” of IAS 39) which
relaxes the IAS 39 rules on hedging. Group
policy is to apply and account for hedging in
accordance with IAS 39, without use of the
carve-out relaxation. As explained in | (u), the
Group has used the provisions of the Fair
Value Option amendment to IAS 39 issued by
the IASB in June 2005,

All derivatives are carried at fair value in the
Balance Sheet; as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative. Changes in the fair value of the
derivatives are charged to the Income
Statement, in the “fair value movements on
financial instruments” line. However, by applying
the hedge accounting rules set out in 1AS 39,
the changes in fair value of derivatives which are
used to hedge particular risks can either be
offset in the Income Statement (fair value
hedging) or deferred to reserves (cash flow
hedging). The Group uses fair value hedges and
cash flow hedges.

One-to-one fair value hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument hedges
the changes in fair value of a specific asset or
liability, any gain or loss in the fair value of the
hedging derivative is recognised in the Income
Statement, in “fair value movements on
financial instruments”, Provided that the hedge
arrangement meets the requirements of IAS
39 to be classed as “highly effective”, the
associated hedged item is carried in the
Balance Sheet at fair value in respect of the
hedged risk, with any gain or loss in that fair
value also recognised in the Income Statement
in “fair value movements on financial
instruments”. Hence profit volatility is
mitigated. The Income Statement immediately
recognises any “ineffectiveness”, defined as any
difference between the fair value movement

on the hedging instrument and that on the
hedged item. Where a fair value hedge
relationship is terminated or deemed
ineffective (other than as a result of the
hedged item being derecognised from the
Balance Sheet due to sale or other reason) the
fair value adjustment relating to the terminated
hedge relationship is amortised in "fair value
movements on financial instruments” within the
Income Statement over the period to the date
of maturity of the hedged item. The derivative
continues to be carried at fair value.

Portfolio fair value hedges

Where a group of derivatives hedge the
interest rate exposure of a group of assets or
liabilities, and the hedge meets the
requirements of IAS 39 to be classed as “highly
effective”, the hedge relationship is accounted
for in the same way as a one-to-one fair value
hedge except that the Balance Sheet carrying
value of the hedged items is not adjusted to
fair value; instead the difference between the
fair value and carrying value of the hedged
items is carried on the Balance Sheet in “fair
value adjustments of portfolio hedging.

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument hedges
the variability in cash flows of an asset or
liability, or of a highly probable forecast
transaction, the effective portion of the change
in fair value of the derivative is taken to the
“cash flow hedge reserve” and the remaining
portion is charged to “fair value movements on
financial instruments” in the Income Statement.
The amount taken to the “cash flow hedge
reserve’ is amortised to the “fair value
movements on financial instruments” line of
the Income Statement over the life of the
hedged item. Where a cash flow hedge of a
forecast transaction is terminated or deemed
ineffective any cumulative gain or loss
remaining in the reserve continues to be held
there, and is transferred to the Income
Statement only when the forecast transaction
is recognised. If the forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the gain or foss still
held in the reserve is immediately recognised
in the Income Statement, in "fair value
movements on financial instruments”.

Hedge effectiveness

At the inception of each hedging arrangement,
the relationship between the hedging
instruments and the hedged items is
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documented, as well as the risk management
objective and strategy. Also documented is an
assessment, both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in the hedging arrangement are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of the hedged items.

Embedded derivatives

Certain financial instruments have derivative
features embedded within them (‘embedded
derivatives'). Where the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded
derivative are not closely related to those of the
host instrument, and where the host
instrument is not carried at fair value, the
embedded derivative is separated from the host
and carried in the Balance Sheet at fair value
within “derivative financial instruments”, with
gains and losses on the embedded derivative
being recognised in the Income Statement in
“fair value moverments on financial instruments”.

(y) Debt securities in issue

On inftial recognition, debt issued is measured
at its fair value net of directly attributable
transaction costs, in accordance with IAS 39.
Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost
using the EIR method to amortise incremental
attributable issue and transaction costs,
premia and discounts over the life of the
instrument; these costs are charged along
with interest on the debt to “interest expense
and similar charges”. Unamortised amounts
are added to or deducted from the carrying
value of the instrument.

It is the Group's policy to hedge fixed interest
rate risk on debt issued and to apply fair value
hedge accounting.

Financial instruments accounting policies
applied to 2004 only

(z) Income recognition

* Interest income is recognised in the Income
Statement in “interest and similar income” as
it accrues except where interest is suspended
as set out in | (ad) below.

+ Commercial lending fees charged in lieu of
interest are recognised in the Income
Statement in “interest .and similar income”
as they fall.

* Residential lending fees and commissions
receivable are recognised in the Income

Statement on receipt within “fee and

commission income”.
» Commission receivable from Regulated
Financial Services products is recognised in
the Income Statement on receipt within “fee
and commission income” when the policy
goes “on risk’', net of any provision for
repayment in the event of termination by
the customer.
Procurement fees from sale of mortgages
are recognised in the Income Statement
within “fee and commission income'" when
monies are advanced and the mortgage
becomes active.

(aa) Fees payable

Fees payable to brokers and agents in respect
of the sale of mortgages are recognised in the
Income Statement within “fee and commission
expense’ as incurred.

(ab) Acquisition of mortgage portfolios
Premia paid on the acquisition of mortgage
portfolios are held within “other assets” and
amortised over the estimated economic life
of the underlying asset. Where such
mortgage portfolios are acquired as part of a
company purchase, the amortisation charge
is included within “administrative expenses”.
Where such mortgage portfolios are acquired
as a result of a specific asset purchase, the
amortisation charge is deducted from
“interest and similar income”.

(ac) Incentives to customers

Cashbacks, interest discounts and other
incentives to customers are amortised
against “interest and similar income” over the
early-redemption clawback period of these
products commencing from the date of
completion. Unamortised incentives are held
within “prepayments and accrued income”
and “other liabilities"”.

(ad) Provisions for bad and doubtful debts
Provision is made at each Balance Sheet date
for all reasonably foreseeable losses that are
believed to exist at that date in the portfolio
of loans and advances to customers,

Specific provisions for residential lending are
created on a case-by-case basis, The potential
shortfall is calculated from the outstanding
mortgage debt plus costs of repossession less the
estimated property value with a discount
valuation factor for forced sale. The potential

shortfall for each case is adjusted to reflect the
probability of loss. This adjustment reflects
historical performance except for specialist
lending where, because this area of lending is not
yet mature, probabilities of loss are predicted by
reference to the crecit scoring system.

Specific provisions for the commercial
portfolio are calculated on all cases which are
three or more months in arrears. A probability
of loss, dependent on the severity of the
arrears, is applied on a case-by-case basis.

The specific provision for properties in
possession is based on the contracted/agreed
sale price or sale valuation, with adjustment
for expenses of sale and income from
insurance policies,

Loans and advances are written off where
there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

General provisions are raised to cover losses
which are judged to be present in total loans
and advances at the Balance Sheet date, but
which have not been identified in specific
loans. The general provision also takes into
account the economic climate in the market
and the level of security held.

Interest charged to all residential and
commercial loans which are in arrears or in
possession, and where the interest is expected
to be irrecoverable, is suspended and no longer
credited to “interest and similar income”.

(ae) Debt securities held

Debt securities intended for use on a
continuing basis in the Group’s activities are
classified as investment securities and are
stated at cost as adjusted for the amortisation
of any premia or discounts arising on
acquisition; these are amortised to “interest
and similar income” over the period to
redemption on a level vield basis. Provision is
made for any impairment in value. Each
investment in a structured investment vehicle
('SIVY) is individually reviewed to ensure the
accounting treatment is appropriate. Where
the SIV is considered to have minimal
management discretion, the Group recognises
its share of the SIV's underlying assets and
liabilities. In other cases the investment in the
SIV is treated as a debt security. Interest on
these vehicles includes a margin above the




coupon rate to reflect profits earned by the
underlying investment.

(af) Debt securities in issue and

capital instruments

Debt securities in issue are stated at cost as
adjusted for the amortisation of any premia or
discounts arising on issue; these are amortised
to "interest expense and similar charges” over

the period to redemption on a level yield basis.

Premia or discounts on capital instruments are
amortised over the period to the instruments’
maturity at a constant rate and included in
“interest expense and similar charges”. The
unamortised amounts are added to or
deducted from the relevant liability. In the

2. Segmental information

event of early repayment, the unamortised
issue cost is charged immediately to “interest

expense and similar charges”.

(ag) Off-balance sheet financial instruments
The Group uses off-balance sheet financial
instruments for hedging purposes to reduce
the risks arising on transactions entered into in
the normal course of business, and the income
or expense arising from these off-balance
sheet financial instruments is recognised in the
Financial Statements in accordance with the
accounting treatment of the transactions being
hedged. The effectiveness of this hedging is

reviewed on a regular basis,

| Where an off-balance sheet instrument is

terminated prior to the termination of the
underlying hedged transaction, any profit or
loss realised upon the early termination is
deferred and matched against the income or
expenditure arising from the underlying
hedged transaction over the remaining period
of the hedged transaction. If the underlying
hedged transaction is extinguished or
terminated, the remaining unamortised gains
or losses on the hedge are recognised
immediately in the Income Statement.

The Group operates through two principal business segments, Lending and Retail, supported by Treasury & Reserves and Group Services. An analysis of
Group information by business segment is provided in the table below. Substantially all of the Group's activities are carried out within a single

geographical segment, the UK,

Details of the disposal of the Group's non-core operations are given in note 8.

2005 Treasury & Group Group Group
Lending Retail Reserves Services  Efiminations Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Net interest income 2943 127.3 47.7 - - 469.3
Net fee and commission income 305 6l.4 - 04 - 92.3
Gains less losses on sale of debt securities 0.9 - 0.9 - - 1.8
Fair value movements on financial instruments - - 1.1 - - (N
Other operating income 1.2 4.7 - 2.1 - 8.0
Non-operating income - - - 8.1 - 8.1
Segment income 3269 193.4 49.7 10.6 - 580.6
Administrative costs (71.0) (123.2) (10.4) (106.8) - (311.4)
Impairment (loss)/credit (5.7) - - - - (5.7
Segment result 250.2 70.2 393 (96.2) - 2635
Taxation (74.7)
Profit for the financial year 188.8
Segment assets 32,580.3 18,5540 19,4490 20,140.5 (49911.3) 408125
Deferred tax asset 27.7
Total assets 40,840.2
Segment liabilities 32,1327 182734 18,3853 20,339.8 (49,695.7) 394355
Current tax liabilities 64.4
Total liabilities 39,499.9

Other segment items:

Capital expenditure - - - 352 - 35.2
Depreciation and amortisation - - - 12.6 - 12.6
Other non-cash expenses - - - - - -
Restructuring costs (see note b) - - - 79 - 7.9
Compensation costs (see note b) - - - 38.7 - 387
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2. Segmental information continued

2004 Treasury & Group Group Group Retail non-core Group
Lending  Retall core Reserves Services  Eliminations  {Continuing) (Discontinued) Total
m £m £m £m £m im £m £m
Net interest income 281.8 121.7 449 - - 4484 - 4484
Net fee and commission income 235 759 - (12) - 982 1390 2372
Gains less losses on sale of debt securities - - 10.0 - - 100 - 0.0
Other operating income 0.4 1.8 - 4.4 - 6.6 - 6.6
Non-operating income - - - 6.4 - 6.4 - 64
Segment income 3057 199.4 549 9.6 - 569.6 139.0 708.6
Administrative costs (68.4) (137.8) (82) (107.0) (321.4) (167.6) (489.0)
Impairment (loss)/credit 123 - - - - 2.3 - 2.3
Segment result 249.6 61.6 46.7 (574) - 260.5 (28.) 2319
Taxation (65.0)
Loss on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxation (128.6)
Profit for the financial year 383
Segment assets 299733 168992 204%40 18,1458 (47,3983) 38,1140 - 381140
Deferred tax asset 357
Total assets 38,149.7
Segment liabilities 296157 166937 189700 186408 (47,1845) 36,7357 - 36,7357
Current tax fiabilities 68.2
Total liabilities 36,8039
Other segment items:
Capital expenditure - - - 42.5 - 42.5 - 42.5
Depreciation and amortisation - - - 132 - 132 0.8 140
Restructuring costs (see note b) - - - 7.7 - 7.7 69 14.6
Compensation costs (see note b) - - - 23.7 - 23.7 134 37.1

All segments are continuing except Retail non-core,

(a) In order to analyse net interest by business segment, a transfer price is applied to the internal funding or liquidity requirement of each segment. Interest rates used for transfer pricing have
been determined to retain the interest rate risk within Treasury & Reserves, Costs have been assigned to each segment based on resources consumed. Transfer pricing in respect of mortgage
origination by the Retail segment has been determined on the basis of market rates for such activity.

(b) Restructuring costs of £7.9m (2Q04: £l4.6m) and compensation costs of £38.7m (2004: £37.1m) have not been allocated across business segments since they are the consequence of
Group level decisions,

() Assets and liabilities have been allocated to Lending and Retail on the basis of the regulatory capital framework. The segments are not allocated capital during the normal course of business,
therefore segmental profits doinot relate to these net assets. The other significant unallocated items are deferred and current tax.

(d) Further details of segmental performance are provided in the Group Finance Director's Review on pages 10 to 17.




3. Administrative expenses

Group Group
2005 2004
£m £m
Staff costs (see note 4) 99.8 2012
Property operating lease rentals 7.5 154
Equipment hire 0.4 |7
Remuneration of auditor and associates:
Audit services:
Statutory audit fees 0.7 0.6
Other audit fees 0.5 02
1.2 08
Tax services 0.1 02
Other services 0.5 o
Depreciation and amortisation (see notes 2| and 22) 12.6 4.0
Other expenses 142.7 2039
264.8 4373
Restructuring costs:
Staff redundancy costs 6.9 7.7
Asset write-off - 53
Other 1.0 l.6
Compensation costs ' 387 37.4
3114 489.0

Restructuring costs relate to the cost reduction programme which commenced in 2004.

Compensation costs relate to the provision for potential compensation payments to customers for business written in the past by our independent financial advisory business. The independent
financial advisory business which made these sales was closed in 2004.

All of the remuneration of auditor and associates was incurred by the Company with the exception of £0.3m of statutory audit fees which were incurred by other Group entities.

4. Staff costs and numbers
The average number of persons employed during the year was as follows:

Full time Part tme Full time equivalent
Group 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Continuing operations 2,440 2,844 622 686 2,736 3,171
Discontinued operations - 2,105 - 815 - 2,493
Total 2,440 4,949 622 1,501 2,736 5664

Full time Part time Full time equivalent
Company 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Continuing operations 1,944 2,262 513 594 2,189 2,546
Discontinued operations - 1,308 - 708 - |,645
Total 1,944 3570 513 1,302 2,189 4,191

The full time equivalent is based on the average hours worked by employees in the year. The total headcount at each year end was:

Group Company
Group 2005 2004 2005 2004
Number Number Number Number

3,043 3,152 2,428 2558
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4. Staff costs and numbers continued
The aggregate costs of these persons were as follows:

Group Group

2005 2004

£m £m

Wages and salaries 77.3 163.5
Social security costs 8.7 179
Defined benefit pension costs (see note 28d) 9.5 132
Defined contribution pension costs (see note 28a) 1.4 27
Other post-retirement benefits costs (see note 28d) 0.1 0.6
Equity-settled share based payment (see note 5) 2.8 33
99.8 201.2

5. Share-based payment
During the vear the Group had five share-based payment schemes with employees. These are all accounted for by the Group and Company as follows:

Arrangement ‘ Executive Share Option Scheme Sharesave Scheme
Nature of the arrangement "Save as "Save as "Save as “Save as "Save as "Save as
Grant of Grant of you earn” you earn” you earn” you earn’” you earn” you earn”

share options  share options scheme scheme scheme scheme scheme scheme

Date of grant 25/2/03 14/8/03  20/3/03  20/3/03 18/3/04 18/3/04  24/3/05  24/3/05
Number of instruments granted 1,368,230 59,608 136635/ 789338 1,832,649 427490 510,251 155,307
Exercise price £2.82 £3.07 £2.24 £2.24 £2.45 £2.45 £2.58 £2.58
Quoted share price at grant date £2.77 £3.09 £2.98 £298 £3.05 £3.05 £3.06 £3.06
Contractual life IO years  IOyears 35years 55years 35years S55years 35vyears 55 vyears

Earnings per  Earnings per
share growth share growth
overa 3 year overa 3 year

period period  Three-year Five-year ~ Three-year Five-year ~ Three-year Five-year
exceeds the  exceeds the service service service service service service
Vesing condtions TR T NG e e e emoe e
Index over Index over requirement requirement requirement requirement requirement requirement

the same the same

pericdbya  periodbya

minimum minimum

of 9% of 9%
Settlernent Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares
Expected volatility 32% 31% 32% 32% 29% 29% 27% 27%
Expected option life at grant date 5 years Syears 3. years S vyears 3.dyears Siyears 3. years 5.0 years
Risk-free interest rate 3.8% 44% 4.0% 4.2% 4.5% 4.5% 4.6% 4.6%
Expected dividend (dividend vield) 49% 4.8% 4.6% 4.6% 50% 50% 5.6% 5.6%
Expected annual departures 5% 5% 15% 10% 15% 0% 15% 10%
Fair value per granted instrument £0.55 £0.65 £0.87 £0.9] £0.76 £0.79 £0.64 £0.67

determined at grant date

Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes  Black-Scholes  Black-Scholes  Black-Scholes  Black-Scholes  Black-Scholes

Valuation model
methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodolegy  methodology




5. Share-based payment continued
Arrangement

Employees’ Restricted Share Bonus Plan

Nature of the arrangement Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of
shares shares shares shares shares shares shares shares shares shares
Date of grant [/1/03 1/1/03 1/1/03 [/1/04 171104 1/1/04 12/3/04 [/1/05 1/1/05 1/1/05
Number of instruments granted 56966 56,966 56,966 2,101 2,101 2,101 93,192 14,892 14,892 14,892
Exercise price nfa nfa n/a n/a nfa n/a n/a nfa nfa nfa
Quoted share price at grant date  £2.50 £290 £2.90 £3.05 £3.05 £3.05 £3.04 £3.36 £336 £336
Contractual life 22years 32years 42vyears 22vyears 32years 42 years 3years 22vyears 32vyears 472 years
Achievement  Achievement ~ Achievement  Achievement  Achievement  Achievement Achievement Achievement  Achievement
ofindividual ~ ofindividual  of individual ~ of individual  of individual  of individual ofindividual  of individual  of individual
performance  performance  performance  performance  performance  performance Stila  performance  performance  performance
targets in targets in targets in targets in targets in targetsin - member of targets in targets in targets in
Vesting conditions 2003 and stil 2003 and still 2003 and still 2004 and stil 2004 and stil 2004 and stilt staff at t‘he 2005 and stilt 2005 and still - 2005 and still
amember of amemberof amemberof amemberaf amemberof amemberof third  amemberof amemberof amember of
staff at the staff at the staff at the staff at the staff at the staff at the anniversary of  staff at the staff at the staff at the
second third fourth second third fourth  date of grant second third fourth
anniversary of anniversary of anniversary of anniversary of anniversary of anniversary of anniversary of anniversary of anniversary of
date of grant  date of grant  date of grant  date of grant  date of grant ~ date of grant date of grant  date of grant  date of grant
Settlement Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares
Expected volatility n/a nfa n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a nfa
Expected option life 22years 32years 42vyears 22years 32years 4.2 years 3years 22years 32years 4.2 years
at grant date
Risk-free interest rate 3.8% 4.0% 4.1% 4.3% 4.5% 4.6% 4.4% 4.3% 4.3% 4.3%
Expected dividend 4.7% 4.7% 4.7% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.1% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
(dividend yield)
Expected annual departures 15% 15% 15% 10% 10% 10% 5% 10% 109 10%
Fair value per granted instrument  £2.65 £2.53 £24] £2.76 £2.63 £2.50 £2.6l £3.04 £2.90 £2.76
determined at grart date
Valuation model Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes  Black-Scholes  Black-Scholes  Black-Scholes  Black-Schotes  Black-Scholes  Black-Scholes  Black-Scholes
methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology
Arrangement Performance Share Plan Executive Incentive Plan
Nature of the arrangement Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of
shares shares shares shares shares shares shares shares shares
Date of grant 25/2/03  25/2/03 14/8/03  23/2/04  23/2/04  28/2/05  28/2/05  28/2/06  28/2/06
Number of instruments granted 762,002  592.889 52,368 871,577 506,666 341,990 341990 277925% 277925 %
Exercise price nfa nfa n/a nfa nfa n/a nfa nfa n/a
Quoted share price at grant date £2.77 £2.77 £3.09 £3.10 £3.10 £323 £3.23 £4.11 £4.11
Contractual life 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years
W T e femme meee oo S
shareholder ~ shareholder  shareholder  shareholder  shareholder performance of Bradford &  performance  of Bradiord &
return return retum retumn return targets in Bingley plc targets in Bingley plc
growth of growth of growth of growth of growth of )
Vesting conditions Braford&  Bradord&  Bradford&  Bradiord&  Bradordd 00  20stl sharesovera 2005 andstil - shares over a
Bingley plc Bingley plc Bingley plc Bingley pic Bingley plc amember of three vear 2 mermber of three vear
comparedtc  comparedtc  comparedto  comparedto  compared to staff at the period staff ¢ The period
third exceeds third exceeds
3 PEErgroup A Peergroup A Pecrgroup  a peer group - a peer group anniversary of annual RPI anniversary of annual RPI
of companies  of companies  of companies  of companies  of companies date of grant growth by 3%  date of grant  growth by 3%
Settlement Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares
Expected volatility 32% 32% 31% 30% 30% nfa nfa n/a n/a
Expected option life at grant date 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 vears 3 years nfa 3 years nfa 3 years
Risk-free interest rate 3.5% 3.5% 4.2% 4.5% 4.5% nfa nfa nfa nfa
Expected dividend (dividend yield) 4.9% 4.9% 4.8% 5.0% 5.0% 5.3% 5.3% 5.3% 5.3%
Expected annual departures 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 19 1%
Fair value per granted instrument £1.60 £1.38 £.27 £1.40 £1.15 £3.23 £2.77 £4.11 £2.74

determined at grant date
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5. Share-based payment continued

Arrangerment Performance Share Plan Executive Incentive Plan
Nature of the arrangement Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of
shares shares shares shares shares shares shares shares shares

Estimated

Share price at

Monte Carlo Monte Carlo Monte Carlo Monte Carlo Monte Carlo share price at

. . ) . . . . . the he Black-Scholes Black-Scholes
Valuation model simulation simulation simulation simulation simutation date Schole the date the k:Scho
shares are  methodology methodology
model model model maodel model shares are
allocated
allocated

* estimate to be finalised in 2006

A Monte Carlo simulation model is used to determine the Performance Share Plan fair value as the arrangements include market-based performance conditions and to assist in assessing an
appropriate expected vesting period for the Executive Share Option Scheme. For other share schemes a Black-Scholes methodology is used to value options.

The expected volatility of share price applied in the option pricing models is based on historic Bradford & Bingley plc share price data over a period equivalent to the expected life of the
scheme or since the date of flotation (4 December 2000} if shorter

Awards granted under the Executive Incentive Plan are granted based on performance in the preceding financial year. The performance criteria include qualitative elements which are not
determined until the award date |.e. after the end of the relevant financial year. The grant date therefore oceurs after the employees to whom the award is made have begun providing services.
In accordance with IFRS 2 the grant date fair value is initially estimated for the purposes of recognising the services received during the period between service commencement date and grant
date. The fair value is then revised once the actual grant date has been established,

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was £32722 (2004: £29276).

The following information applies to options outstanding at 31 December 2005 and 3| December 2004:

Range of exercise prices 3|1 December 2005 3l December 2004
Number of Number of

Weighted  exercisable Weighted average Weighted exercisable Weighted average

average options remaining life (years) average options remaining life (years)

exercise price (000's) Expected Contractual exercise price {000's) Expected  Contractual

£2.00 -£3.00 £2.7513 149,860 0.2 6.1 £24447 1,136,207 2.2 3.2

The movements in the number of share options (Executive Share Option Scheme and the Sharesave Scheme) can be summarised as follows:

2005 2004

Weighted Weighted

average average

Number of exercise  Number of exercise

options price options price

Total number of options outstanding at | January 4,029,514 £24770 3292838 £24775
Granted 665,558  £2.5793 2260,139  £24474
Exercised (594,549)  £2.5210  (I71,531) £2.4299
Forfeited (1,116,424) £2.3861 (1.216243) £2.4336
Effect of modifications and cancellations (110,102) £2.3965 (I09567) £2.3589
Expired (80,405) £2.8980 (26,122)  £2.8170
Total number of options outstanding at 3] December 2,793,592  £2.5194 4029514  £2.4770
Exercisable at 3| December 149,860  £2.7513 1,136,207  £2.4447

The amount recognised in staff costs for share-based payment transactions with employees may be summarised as follows:

2005 2004

£m £m

Executive Share Option Scheme 0.4 0.3
Sharesave Scheme 0.5 1.4
Employees’ Restricted Share Bonus Plan 0.2 0.1
Performance Share Plan 0.6 1.0
Executive Incentive Plan 1.1 05
2.8 33

The fair value of the shares for the arrangements in which shares are granted was based on the quoted share price.




6. Taxation

2005 2004
£m im

Current taxation expense:
UK corporation tax on profits for the year (60.3) (54.3)
Adjustments in respect of previous years 0.9 78
(59.4) (46.5)
Foreign taxation (22.2) (5.7)
Total current taxation (81.6) (52.2)

Deferred taxation expense:

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (see note 7) 6.9 (12.8)
Total taxation expense per the Income Statement (74.7) (65.0)
The following deferred tax was recognised directly in equity during the year:

Relating to equity settled transactions 1.6 0.6

Relating to available-for-sale debt securities (6.5) -

Relating to actuarial gains and losses on post-retirement benefit obligations 7.8 04

Relating to share-based payment 0.3 -
Net credit to equity (see note 7) 3.2 1.0

The tax charge for 2004 shown above excludes a £2.8m credit representing the tax on minority interests (non-equity) as under [AS {2 this is required to be offset against the minority interest
rather than included within the tax charge on ordinary activities.

The 2005 foreign taxation includes a charge of £6.9m (2004: credit of £0.3m) in respect of previous periods.
The 2004 total current taxation charge includes a credit of £10.4m relating to restructuring and compensation costs.
The 2004 loss on sale of discontinued operations is shown net of a taxation credit of £3.1m (see note 8).

The total taxation expense differs from the theoretical amount that would be derived by applying the basic UK corporation tax rate to the Group's
results as follows:

2005 2004

£m £m

Profit before taxation and loss on sale of discontinued operations 263.5 2319

UK corporation tax at 30% (79.0) (69.6)
Effects of:

Expenses not deductible for taxation (2.4) (6.4)

Lower rate on overseas earnings 30 39

Adjustments in respect of previous periods 37 4.3

Tax on minority interest - 28

Total taxation charge for the year (74.7) (65.0)

Effective tax rate (%) 28.3 280
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7. Deferred taxation

The net deferred taxation asset is attributable to the following:

Group Assets Liabilities Net
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Interest-bearing assets 380 14.7 - - 380 4.7
Property, plant and equipment 5.5 10.8 4.0) 4.0) 1.5 6.8
Other assets 0.3 - (7.5) (13.6) (7.2) (13.6)
Interest-bearing liabilities - 0.2 (40.3) (40.3) 0.2
Other liabilities 08 ) (3.2) (32) (2.4) (L7
Post-retirement benefit obligations 381 293 - - 38.1 293
82.7 56.5 (55.0) (20.8) 27.7 357

Offset (55.0) (20.8) 55.0 208 - -
27.7 35.7 - - 27.7 35.7

Company Assets Liabilities Net
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

£m £m fm £m £m £m

Interest-bearing assets 9.4 1.9 - - 9.4 1.9
Property, plant and equipment 34 4.7 - - 34 47
Other assets - - (7.6) (2.7) (7.6) (27)
Interest-bearing liabilities - - (19.1) - (19.1) -
Other liabilities - 0.7 - - 0.7
Post-retirement benefit obligations 38.1 293 - - 38.1 29.3
50.9 366 (26.7) 2.7 242 339

Offset (26.7) 2.7 267 2.7 - -
24.2 339 - - 24.2 339

The movements in the 'Group's temporary differences during the year and previous year were as follows:

As at Impact of  Recognised  Recognised As at

I January  IAS 32 and in in 3l December

2005 |1AS 39 income equity 2005

£m £m £m £m £m

Interest-bearing assets 4.7 9.5 13.8 - 38.0
Property, plant and equipment 6.8 - (5.3) - 1.5
Other assets (13.6) 1.3 (4.9) (7.2)
Interest-bearing liabilities 0.2 (27.6) (12.9) - (40.3)
Other liabilities (1.7) - 0.7) - 2.4
Post-retirement benefit obligations 293 - 0.7 8.1 38.1
35.7 (18.1) 6.9 3.2 27.7




7. Deferred taxation continued

Asat  Recognised  Recognised As at

| January in in 31 December

2004 income equity 2004

£m £m £m £m

Interest-bearing assets 16.1 (14 - 147
Property, plant and equipment 55 ] - 6.8
Other assets (4.5) G.n - (13.6)
Interest-bearing liabilities ’ 02 - - 02
Other liabilities (27) 1.0 - (1.7}
Post-retirement benefit obligations 307 (2.4) 1.0 293
Taxation value of losses carried 22 (2.2) - -
47.5 (12.8) 1.0 357

The movements in the Company's temporary differences during the year and previous year were as follows:

As at Impact of  Recognised  Recognised As at

| January IAS 32 and in in 3t December

2005 1AS 39 income equity 2005

£m fm £m £m £m

Interest-bearing assets 1.9 (37.6) 45.1 - 9.4
Property, plant and equipment 4.7 - (1.3) - 34
Other assets (2.7) 10.1 (10.1) (4.9) (7.6)
Interest-bearing liabilities - 19.6 (38.7) - (19.1)
Other lizbilities 0.7 - 0.7) - -
Post-retirement benefit obligations 29.3 - 0.7 8.1 38.1
339 (7.9) (5.0) 32 24.2

Asat  Recognised  Recognised As at

| January in in 31 December

2004 income equity 2004

£m m £m £m

Interest-bearing assets 20 ©.hH - 19
Property, plant and equipment 4.1 0.6 - 4.7
Other assets 0.0 (2.6) - 27
Other liabilities - 07 - 0.7
Post-retirement benefit obligations 30.7 (24) 1.0 293
367 (3.8) 1.0 339
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8. Loss on sale of discontinued operations
The loss on sale of non-core businesses recognised in the Group Income Statement in 2004 comprised:

2004
m £m
Consideration 622
Net assets disposed of:
Loans and advances to banks (12.9)
Prepayments and accrued income (27)
Other assets (24.7)
Property. plant and equipment (18.3)
Other liabilities 1.0
Accruals and deferred income 5.1
(52.5)
Related goodwill (li6.1)
Disposal and other termination costs (25.3)
Taxation 3.1
Loss, net of taxation (128.6)
Disposal and ather termination ¢osts include early termination fees on outsource contracts, staff costs, professional fees and insurance run-off liabilities.
The components of the loss were all paid or received in cash except for goodwill,
9. Dividends
Dividends recognised in the year were as follows:
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
Pence per Pence per
share share £m m
2003 final dividend - .0 - 68.4
2004 interim dividend - 57 - 360
2004 final dividend il.4 - 710 -
2005 interim dividend 6.0 - 377 -
17.4 16.7 108.7 104.4
Proposed final dividend (unaccrued) 12.3 i.4 77.4 710

On 5 February 2006 the Directors proposed that a dividend of 12.3 pence per share (2004: 11 4 pence) be paid on 5 May 2006 to shareholders on the Register at the close of business on
24 March 2006, making a total proposed dividend for the year of 18.3 pence (2004: 7.1 pence).

A resolution to approve the payment of this dividend will be put to the shareholders at the Company's Annual General Meeting to be held on 25 April 2006. In accordance with 1AS 10
"Events after the Balance Sheet'Date” this propased dividend has not been reflected as at the Balance Sheet date as it was not a liability at that date.

10. Earnings per share

Total  Continuing  Discontinued Total

Operations  Operations  Operations  Operations

2005 2004 2004 2004

Pence Pence Pence Pence

Basic 30.1 292 (24.6) 4.6

Diluted 30.0 292 (24.6) 4.6




I0. Earnings per share continued
Earnings per share is calculated using the following amounts of profit attributable to equity shareholders:

Total  Continuing Discontinued Total

Operations ~ Operations ~ Operations ~ Operations

2008 2004 2004 2004

£m im m £m

Profit after taxation and before loss on sale of discontinued operations 188.8 192.0 (25.1 166.9

Loss on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxation : - - (128.6) (128.6)

Profit for the financial year 188.8 192.0 (153.7) 38.3
Attributable to:

- Minority interest - 9.7 - 9.7

- Equiity shareholders 188.8 182.3 (153.7) 286

Earnings per share is calculated using the number of ordinary shares as follows:

Group and Company

7005 2004

Shares (m)  Shares (m)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 627.2 6243
Dilutive effect of ordinary shares issuable under Company share schemes 1.5 1.3
Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares 628.7 625.6

The diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares is calculated by assuming that all shares which could be issued as a result of existing share options and other share-based payment
arrangements are in fact issued. Issuance of these additional shares would have no material impact on the Group’s earnings.

Shares acquired by employee share trusts, which are deducted from equity shareholders’ funds, have been excluded from the calcutation of earnings per share as they are treated as if they are
cancelled until such time as they vest unconditionally to the employee.

Il. Treasury bills and other eligible bills
Group and Company

2005 2004

£m £m

As at | January 380.4 132.6
Effect of adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39 (see Appendix) 0.1 -
Additions 97.0 1,257.6
Disposals and maturities (476.6) (10143)
Amortisation of discounts (0.7) 45
As at 31 December - 380.4

The carrying value of treasury bills and other eligible bills held at 31 December 2004 included unamortised discounts of £0.8m, and their market value at that date was £380.3m.

12. Loans and advances to banks

Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004

£m m £m m

Repayable on demand 916.1 6579 3122 4201
Other loans and advances repayable:

In not more than three months 2,174.8 3,498.1 2,003.3 33506

In more than three months but not more than one year 59.2 - - -

In more than one year but not more than five years 54.6 - - -

3,204.7 4,156.0 2,315.5 37717
Included above are the following amounts which relate to items in the course of collection 344 433 22.7 433
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13. Loans and advances to customers

Group Company
2005 7004 2005 2004
£m £m £m £m

Net of impairment:
Advances secured on residential properties 284785 255887 14,307.8 15,1274
Other secured advances 2,648.6 32797  2,685.0 32823
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings - - 156108 10,3308
Subordinated loan to quasi-subsidiary - - 23.0 230

31,271 288684 32,626.6 287635

Gross repayable:

On demand and at short notice - €2.5 15,6108 10,3926
In not more than three months 129.8 138.1 16.1 124.2
In more than three months but not more than aone vear 439.2 2732 3789 239.6
In more than one year but not more than five years 2,463.1 26498 2,1864 23459
In more than five years 28,1434 258028 14,349.0 156904

31,1755 289264 32,641.2 287927

Less:

General and specific bad debt provisions (see note 14) - (53.1) - (29.2)
Loan impairment (see note 4) (48.4) - (14.6) -
Deferred mortgage indemnity income - 4.9) - -

31,1271 288684 32,6266 287635

It should be noted that the contractua! repayment schedule shown above may not reflect actual experience of repayments as many mortgage loans are repaid early,

Within loans and advances to customers are the following amounts which act as security for funding:

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
£m m £m £m

6,082.3 44321 5461.6 3.716.1

I4. Loan impairment

Advances
secured on Other
residential secured
properties advances Total
fm £m £m
Group
Allowances for credit losses against loans and advances to customers have been made as follows:
At 3| December 2004 49.7 3.4 53.1
Restatement under finst time adoption of IAS 39 (10.8) 0.3) (1.1
At | January 2005 38.9 3.1 42.0
Write-offs (5.9) - (5.9)
Impairment charge/(credit) 13.1 0.8) 2.3
7.2 (0.8) 6.4
At 31 December 2005 46.| 2.3 48.4
The Income Statement charge/(credit) comprised:
Impairment charge/(credit) 13.1 (0.8) 2.3
Recoveries (6.6) - (6.6)

Total Income Statement charge/(credit) 6.5 (0.8) 5.7




14. Loan impairment continued

Advances
secired on Other
residential secured
properties advances Total
£m fm £m
Group
Provisions against loans and advances to customers have been made as follows:
At | January 2004
General provision 51.8 34 552
Specific provision 44 [ 55
56.2 4.5 60.7
Amounts written back during the year 47 - 4.7
The Income Statement charge comprised:
Decrease in provisions (6.4) 0.n (6.5)
Adjustment to specific provision for bad and doubtful debts resulting from recoveries during the year (4.8) (1.0) (58)
(11.2) (1.1) (12.3)
At 3| December 2004
General provision 46.8 33 50.1
Specific provision 29 0.l 30
49.7 34 53.1
Advances
secured on Other
residential secured
properties advances Total
£m £m £m
Company
Allowances for credit losses against loans and advances to customers have been made as follows:
At 31 December 2004 25.8 34 29.2
Restatement under first time adoption of IAS 39 (1.8) 0.3) (12.1)
At | January 2005 14.0 3.1 17.1
Write-offs (1.2) - (1.2)
Impairment credit (0.5) (0.8) (1.3)
(1.7) (0.8 (2.5)
At 3| December 2005 2.3 2.3 14.6
The Income Statement charge comprised:
Impairment credit (0.5) (0.8) (1.3)
Recoveries (5.1 - (5.1)
Total Income Statement credit (5.6) (0.8) (6.4)
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4. Loan impairment continued

Advances
secured on Other
residential secured
properties advances Total
£m £m £m
Company
Provisions against loans and advances to customers have been made as follows:
At | January 2004
General provision 31 34 6.5
Specific provision ) 1.9 [l 30
50 45 9.5
Transfer of general provision from a subsidiary company 219 - 219
Amounts written back during the year 39 - 39
The Income Statement charge comprised
Decrease in provisions 0.2) ©.1) 0.3)
Adjustment to specific provision for bad and doubtful debts resulting from recoveries during the year (4.8) (1.0) (5.8)
5.0 (.n 6.1)
At 31 December 2004
General provision 250 33 28.3
Specific provision 08 0.1 09
Total provisions 25.8 34 29.2
Group and Company impairment balances at | January 2005 differed from provisions at 31 December 2004 due to the transition to [FRS, as discussed in the Appendix.
I5. Secured funding
As at 31 December 2005 Date of Mortgage Secured
transaction assets funding
£m £m
Group
Aire Valley Finance (No.Z) plc Oct 2000 620.7 618.0
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* May 2004 1,663.1 1,342.0
Aire Valley Mortgages 2004- | plc* Oct 2004 1,775.0 1,775.0
Aire Valley Mortgages 2005- | plc* Apr 2005 998.5 998.5
Aire Valley Warehousing | Ltd* Feb 2005 5125 500.0
Aire Valley Warehousing 2 Ltd* Feb 2005 512.5 500.0
6,082.3 5,733.5
As at 31 December 2004 Date of Mortgage Secured
transaction assets funding
£fm £m
Group
Aire Valley Finance (No.2) plc Oct 2000 7160 710.2
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* May 2004 1,716.1 1,342.0
Aire Valley Mortgages 2004~ plc* Oct 2004 2,000.0 1,995.8
4,432.1 4,048.0

*The Company held £5,461.6m of mortgage assets as at 31 December 2005 (2004: £3,716.1m) within Loans and advances to customers to secure funding of £5,115.5m (2004; £3,337.8m).

A “special purpose vehicle” (‘SPV') s a structure comprising one or more legal entities, set up to act as a trust for debt investors, with the aim of obtaining
financing outside the regulatory capital of the Group, The rights of mortgages are transferred to the SPV, which operates under a Trust Deed to distribute

revenue and capital flows 1o the trust beneficiaries. The mortgages remain on the balance sheet of the issuer

(a) Aire Valley Finance (No.2) plc

This SPV issued £1,000.0m of loan notes in October 2000 to purchase a £1,000.0m interest in mortgages. A start-up loan of £22.9m in the form
of subordinated debt was provided by Bradford & Bingley plc. Securitised assets at 31 December 2005 were £620.7m, loan notes £618.0m and

subordinated debt £23.0m.
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I5. Secured funding continued

(b) Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP

The covered bond was launched in May 2004 with the issue of a Euro 2,0000m note as part of a Euro 10,000.0m program, with bullet maturity in May 2010. A
covered bond is a full recourse debt instrument secured against a pool of eligible mortgages. Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LR, a imited Liability Partnership,
was formed, and a trustee was appointed to ensure compliance with the covered bond rules. The pool of mortgages remains on the balance sheet of the issuer: This
covered bond structure represents a revolving credit agreement, the value of qualifying mortgages cannot fall below the value of the loan notes, and qualifying loans
are taken into the partnership to ensure this. As at 31 December 2005 funding of £1,342.0m was secured against £1,663.!m of mortgages.

(c) Aire Valley Mortgages 2004- I plc

This SPV issued £2,0000m of mutti-currency loan notes denominated in US Dollars, Euros and Sterling in October 2004 to purchase a £2,000.0m
share in the Master Trust. In September 2005 £225.0m of loan notes were redeemed. At 3| December 2005 the value of the share in the Master
Trust was £1,775.0m,

(d) AireValley Warehousing | Ltd and Aire Valley YWarehousing 2 Ltd
This is a warehouse deal which was for £,000.0m issued in February 2005 and is due to terminate in August 2006. Each of the two entities has £500.0m
of notes issued and £12.5m of subordinated debt to support the structure.

(e) Aire Valley Mortgages 2005-1plc
This SPV issued £998.5m of multi-currency loan notes denominated in US Dollars, Euros and Sterling in April 2005 to purchase a £998.5m share in the
Master Trust. At 31 December 2005 the value of the mortgages and loan notes were £998.5m.

16. Fair value adjustments of portfolio hedging
31 December 2005 balances are expected to be recovered/settled as follows:

Group and Company

£m
Asset fair value adjustments of portfolio hedging:
In not more than one year 8.5
In more than one year 146.5
I55.0
As explained in note |, derivatives and hedging adjustmenits are carried on Balance Sheet in accordance with [AS 39 with effect from | January 2005.
17. Debt securities
Group 2005 2004 2004
Carrying Book Market
value value value
£m £m £m
Investment securities issued by public bodies:
Government securities 621.6 296.6 294.8
Investment securities issued by other issuers:
Bank and building society certificates of deposit 981.3 1,509.8 1,509.6
Other debt securities 4,121 2,511.3 2,594.3

57240 43077 43987

Anglysis of debt securities by listing status:
Listed 4,646.3 2,785.3 2,844.6
Unlisted 1,077.7 1,5324 1,554.1

5,724.0 4317.7 43987

Debt securities have remaining maturities as follows:
Due within one year 1,239.6 1,655.2 16862
Due one year and over 44844 26625 27125
5,724.0 43177 43987
Unamortised premia and discounts - 13.3 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i7. Debt securities continued

Company 2005 2004 2004
Carrying Book Market

value value value

£m £m £m

Investment securities issued by public bodies:

Government securities 5988 252.6 2507
Investment securities issued by other issuers:

Bank and building society certificates of deposit 1.1 1,236.9 1,236.7

Other debt securities 3,853.6 22042 2,265.3

5,163.5 3,693.7 37527

Analysis of debt securities by listing status:
Listed 43872 24348 24940

Unlisted 7763 1,258.9 1,258.7
5,163.5 3,693.7 3,7527

Debt securities have remaining maturities as follows:

Due within one year 778.5 1,318.4 1,3395
Due one year and over 4,385.0 23753 24132
5,163.5 36937 37527

Unamortised premia and discounts - 13.3 -

Movements during the year were as follows:

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
£m £m £m £m
As at | January 4317.7 38849  3,693.7 3304
Effects of adoption of IAS 32 and 1AS 39 (see Appendix) 58.7 - 58.7 -
Additions 89824 86689 8,591.2 8123.1
Disposals and maturities, (7,569.9) (82008) (7,158.4) (7.£99.8)
Changes in fair value ©.1) - - -
Premia net of discounts charged in the year - {1.6) - -
Other movements (64.8) (33.7) (21.7) (33.7)
As at 31 December 5,724.0 4,317.7 5,163.5 36937

Under IFRS, debt securities are classified on initial recognition as efther available-for-sale or at fair value through profit or loss, and in each case are carried at fair value. At 31 December 2005
£5,368.8m of the Group's debt securities, and £5,163.5m of the Company's, were categorised as available-for-sale, Under UK GAAP all debt securities were classified as financial fixed assets as
they are all intended for use on a corntinuing basis in the operations of the Group.

in 2005 premia and discounts are part of the debt securities balance accounted for on an effective interest rate basis.

{8. Prepayments and accrued income

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
£m £m im £m
Due from subsidiary undertakings - - 8.6 86
Derivative financial instruments - 87.8 - 406
Mortgage incentives - 18.3 - 08
Commission receivable 13.9 305 19.9 305
Other 13.7 313 2.1 67
33.6 1679 40.6 87.2

Included in the above are the following amounts expected to be recovered after more than one year 1.8 .8

In 2005 mortgage incentives are part of the mortgage balances accounted for on an effective interest rate basis and derivative financial instruments are carried at fair value.




I9. Shares in Group undertakings

Company

2005 2004

£m £m

At | January 557.6 624.7
Disposals - 67.1)
Shares in Group undertakings 557.6 5576

The principal trading subsidiary undertakings of Bradford & Bingley plc at 31
consolidated into the Group Financial Statements, are listed below:

December 2005 held directly or indirectly, all of which are fully

Country of Class of Class of

incorporation major activity  shares held interest
Direct
Bradford & Bingley Investments (Isle of Man) Ltd lsle of Man *Captive insurance company  Ordinary 100%
Bradford & Bingley International Ltd Isle of Man Offshore deposit-taking  Ordinary 100%
Bradford & Bingley Investments England Holding company  Ordinary 100%
Bradford & Bingley Treasury Services (Ireland) England Treasury activities  Ordinary 100%
Indirect
Mortgage Express England Residential mortgage lending  Ordinary 100%

*Bradford & Bingley Investments (Iste of Man) Ltd (formerly Bradford & Bingley Insurance (Isle of Man) Ltd) ceased to trade as an insurance company in December 2005. The Company has
potential future liabilities of £7.8m (2004: £7.8m) to pay fully for all shares issued to the Balance Sheet date.

The above principal subsidiary undertakings all operate in the country of incorporation with the exception of Bradford & Bingley Treasury Services (Ireland) which operates in the Republic of
Ireland. Bradford & Bingley Investments, Bradford & Bingley Treasury Services (Ireland) and Mortgage Express are all unlimited companies.

During 2004 Bradford & Bingley plc disposed of Charcol Aitchison & Colegrave Ltd, Charcol Holden Meehan Ltd, Securemove Property Services Ltd and Bradford & Bingley Marketplace Ltd.

Further details of the disposals are provided in note 8.

No fair value is provided in respect of shares in Group undertakings as these shares do not have a quoted market price.

20. Other assets

Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004

£m £m £m £m

Premia on mortgage books - 27.0 - I.4
Mortgage insurance guarantee premia - - - 20
Debt securities in issue awaiting settlement 100.0 33 100.0 33
Other 153 18.1 4.6 6.7
115.3 484 104.6 13.4

All the above amounts are expected to be recovered within one year.

In 2005 premia on mortgage books are part of the mortgage balances accounted for on an effective interest rate basis.
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21. Property, plant and equipment

Equipment,
Land and  fixtures and
buildings vehidles TJotal
m £m £m

Group
Cost
As at | January 2005 106.8 105.4 2122
Additions - 10.3 0.3
Disposals (3.5) (10.2) (13.7)
As at 31 December 2005 103.3 105.5 208.8
Depreciation
As at | January 2005 31.3 86.0 7.3
Depreciation charge for the year 1.3 4.6 5.9
Disposals (1.4) (5.9 (7.3)
As at 31 December 2005 31.2 84.7 115.9
Net bock value
As at | January 2005 75.5 19.4 94.9
As at 31 December 2005 72.1 20.8 92.9
Group
Cost
As at | January 2004 19.0 149.8 268.8
Additions 39 3 152
Disposals . (12.3) (18.3) (30.6)
Other disposals arising on the sale of operations (3.8 (374 (41.2)
As at 31 December 2004 10¢.8 1054 2122
Depreciation
As at | January 2004 363 106.3 142.6
Depreciation charge for the year I.6 6.9 8.5
Disposals ) 54 (10.5)
Other disposals arising on the sale of operations (1.5) (21.8) (23.3)
As at 3| December 2004 31.3 86.0 7.3
Net book value
As at | January 2004 82.7 43.5 1262
As at 31 December 2004 75.5 194 94.9

Sale proceeds from asset disposals were £4.7m (2004 £31.2m) resulting in a loss on sale of £0.2m (2004: Nif) which has been charged in the Income Statement to depreciation and
amortisation. In addition, sale proceeds from the sale and leaseback of land and buildings were £9.6m (2004: £13.2m) resulting in a profit of £8.1m (2004: £6.4m) which has been included in
the Income Statement in Non-operating income.




21. Property, plant and equipment continued

Equipment,
Land and  fixtures and
buildings vehicles Total
m £m m
Company
Cost
As at | January 2005 100.1 90.3 190.4
Additions - 7.2 7.2
Disposals (3.5) (4.8) (8.3)
As at 31 December 2005 96.6 92.7 189.3
Depreciation
As at | January 2005 30.6 78.1 108.7
Depreciation charge for the year , I.1 42 5.3
Disposals (1.4) (4.6) (6.0)
As at 31 December 2005 30.3 77.7 108.0
Net book value
As at | January 2005 69.5 2.2 81.7
As at 31 December 2005 66.3 15.0 81.3
Company
Cost
As at | January 2004 .7 1204 232.1
Additions 39 38 7.7
Transfers to subsidiary undertakings 04 4.0 (3.6)
Disposals (12.3) 6.0) (18.3)
Other disposals arising on the sale of operations (3.6) (23.9) (27.5)
As at 3| December 2004 100, ) 90.3 1904
Depreciation
As at | January 2004 359 98.4 1343
Depreciation charge for the year [.3 64 7.7
Transfers to subsidiary undertakings - .7) (2.7)
" Disposals (c.1) (5.2) {10.3)
Other disposals arising on the sale of operations (1.5) (18.8) (20.3)
As at 31 December 2004 306 78.1 108.7
Net book value
As at | January 2004 75.8 220 97.8
As at 31 December 2004 69.5 2.2 8.7

Sale proceeds from asset disposals were £0.7m (2004: £8.4m) resulting in a loss on sale of £0.1m (2004: Nil) which has been charged in the Income Statement to depreciation and
amortisation. In addition, sale proceeds from the sale and leaseback of land and buildings were £9.6m (2004: £13.2m) resulting in a profit of £8./m (2004: £6.4m) which has been included in
the Income Statement in Non-operating income. i

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
£m £m £m £m

The net book value of land and buildings comprises:
Freehold 63.9 66.3 59.2 61.7
Long leasehold (50 or more years unexpired) 6.2 69 5. 55
Short leasehold (less than 50 years unexpired) 2.0 2.3 20 23
72.1 75.5 66.3 69.5
Net book value of property occupied for own activities 70.1 73.0 64.3 67.0

There are no restrictions on the Group's title to any of its property, plant and equipment, and none of the Group's property, plant and equipment has been pledged as security.
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22. Intangible assets

Group Company
Software Goodwill Total  Software and Total
£m £m £m £m
2005
Cost
As at | January 2005 79.1 - 79.1 57.1
Additions 249 - 249 6.6
Transfers from subsidiary undertakings - - - 0.1
Disposals (1.2 - (1.2) (1.2)
As at 3| December 2005 102.8 - 102.8 62.6
Amortisation
As at | January 2005 50.0 - 50.0 48.6
Amortisation charge for the vear 6.5 - 65 1.5
Disposals (1.2) - (1.2) (1.2)
As at 3] December 2005 55.3 - 55.3 48.9
Net book value
As at | January 2005 29.1 - 29.1 8.5
As at 31 December 2005 47.5 - 47.5 13.7
2004
Cost
As at | January 2004 64.3 116.1 180.4 62.2
Additions 27.3 - 273 7.4
Transfers to subsidiary undertakings - - - (1.2)
Disposals (7.8) - (7.8) (7.8)
Other disposals arising on the sale of operations 4.7) (he.) (120.8) (35)
As at 31 December 2004 79.1 - 79.1 57.1
Amortisation
As at | January 2004 51.6 - 5.6 51.2
Amortisation charge for the year 28 - 28 1.7
Transfers to subsidiary undertakings - - - (0.8)
Disposals 0.1 - 0.hH ©.h
Other disposals arising on the sale of operations (4.3) - (4.3) (34
As at 31 December 2004 500 - 50.0 48.6
Net book value
As at | January 2004 127 116.1 128.8 o
As at 31 December 2004 29.1 - 29. 8.5

As explained in the Appendix, the £116.1m net book value of gocdwill under UK GAAP as at 31 December 2003 has been deemed to be the cost of gooowill as at | January 2004 under IFRS.
All of the intangible assets purchased during 2004 and 2005 were acquired separately, not as part of business acquisitions. in 2004, sale proceeds from disposals by the Group were £5.4m
(Company £5.1m) resulting in & loss on sale of £2.7m (Company: £2.7m) which has been charged in the Income Statement to depreciation and amortisation, within administrative expenses.

23. Deposits by banks

Goup Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
£m £m £m £m

Repayable
On demand 4743 2312 88.1 28,
In not more than three months 3726 4783 3726 3745
In more than three months but not more than one year 548.5 I01.9 548.5 96.6
In more than one year but not more than five years 3262 462.9 - 150.1
1,721.6 1,274.3 1,009.2 649.3
Deposits by banks include the following amounts which relate to items in the course of transmission 90.7 287 83.0 269

At 31 December 2005 all of the Group's and Company’s deposits by banks were carried at amortised cost.
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24, Customer accounts

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
£m £m £m £m

Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings - - 82375 4571.8
Other 21,050.1 18,9541 18,546.0 17,1564

21,050.1 18,954.1  26,783.5 217282

Repayable
On demand 17601.2 114932 23,4847 (54646
In not more than three months 2,495.1 29715 24951 22335
In more than three months but not more than one year 425.5 2,135.2 303.6 1,788.1
In more than one year but not more than five years 5283 23542 500.1 22420

21,050.) 18954.1 26,783.5 21,7282

At 31 December 2005 £5.1m of the Group's customer accounts, and £5.1m of those of the Company, were carried at fair value, and the remainder at amortised cost.

25. Debt securities in issue

Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004

£m £m £m £m

Bonds and medium term notes 7.970.3 9.644.2 7.937.6 9.716.9
Other debt securities in issue 6,607.3 5,294.7 2,243.5 25887
145776 149389 10,181.1 12,305.6

At 3 December 2005 £8928.6m of the Group's debt securities in issue, and £6,197.0m of those of the Company, were carried at fair value, and the remainder at amortised cost.

Group Company
2005 2004 2605 2004
£m £m £m £m

Bonds and medium term notes are repayable as follows:
In not more than one year 12787 28570 1,2787 23395
In more than one year but not more than two years 1,186.2 2,112.9 1,186.2 1,730.2
In more than two years but not more than five years 4,886.9 62404  4,886.9 51827
In more than five years 618.5 567.3 585.8 4645

79703 W7776 79376 9,716.9

Other debt securities in issue are repayable as follows:

In not more than one year 3,213.5 27722 22064 22701
In more than one year but not more than two years 1,016.6 2853 25.1 2336
In more than two years but not more than five years .o 733 12.0 60.0
In more than five years 2,366.2 305 - 250

6,607.3 31613 22435 25837

26. Other liabilities

Group Company
2008 2004 2005 2004
£m £m £m £m
Income tax 41.0 329 40.3 329
Mortgage incentives - 0.5 - 05
Surplus conversion shares 27.7 330 27.7 330
Other creditors 72.0 508 61.8 300
140.8 7.2 129.8 96.4

Included in the above are the following amounts expected to be recovered after more than one year 28.8 28.8

The income tax liability comprises taxes deducted at source from interest paid to investors, and from remuneration of employees and Directors,

In 2005 mortgage incentives are part of the mortgage balances accounted for on an effective interest rate basis.
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27. Accruals and deferred income

Group Compan
2005 2004 2005 2004
£m £m £m £m
Accrued interest on subordinated liabilities 19.0 9.0 247 247
Derivative financial instruments - 68.3 - 64.0
Deferred income 35 6.6 3.5 6.6
Cther 105.7 i01.9 76.4 732
128.2 195.8 104.6 168.5

Included in the above are the following amounts expected to be recovered after more than one year 0.8 0.8

In 2005 derivative financial instruments are carried at fair value.

28. Post-retirement benefit obligations

(a) Pension Schemes

The Group operates two defined benefit pension schemes, the Bradford & Bingley Staff Pension Scheme (‘the principal scheme’), and the MarketPlace
Pension Scheme, both administered by trustees, and both closed schemes. The funds of these schemes are independent from those of the Company.
The normal pension age of employees in the schemes is 65.

The Greup also operates a defined contribution scherme, the Bradford & Bingley Group Pension Plan. The funds of this scheme are independent from those
of the Group. The Group and Company had no liabilities or prepayments associated with the defined contribution scheme at the year end (2004: Nil). The
cost to the Group of the defined contribution scheme was £1.4m (2004: £2.7m) and the cost to the Company was £1.1m (2004: £2.0m).

(b) Other post-retirement benefits

The Group provides healthcare benefits to some of its pensioners. The healthcare benefits are provided through a post-retirement medical scheme
into which the Company contributes [00% towards the cost of providing medical expense benefits for members who retired before | January 1996
and 50% for members who retired after this date. The total number of members of the scheme as at 31 December 2005 was 579 (2004: 616).
Private medical costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of a qualified actuary.

(c) Accounting treatment

The Group accounts for post-retirement benefit costs in accordance with IAS 19 (amended) issued in December 2004. The full net actuarial deficit is
carried on the Group and Company Balance Sheets, and actuarial gains and losses are taken to the Group and Company retained earnings rather
than being charged or credited in the Income Statement. The actuarial loss recognised in the Group and Company retained earnings during the vear
was £26.0m (2004: £ .4m).

In respect of pension schemes, more than one employing Group entity contributes to the schemes. As there is no contractual agreement or stated
policy for charging the net defined benefit cost to individual Group entities the net defined benefit cost is recognised in the Financial Statements of
the Company (being the 'sponsoring entity) while other individual Group entities, in their individual Financial Statements, recognise a cost equal to
their contributions payable for the pericd.

(d) Employee benefit obligations
The amounts carried in the Group and Company Balance Sheets are as follows:

Defined benefit Post-retirement
_pension plans medical benefits Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Present value of funded obligations 604.2 5002 8.7 i3 612.9 5115
Fair value of plan assets (500.7) (426.9) - - (500.7) (426.9)
Net liability 103.5 733 87 1.3 112.2 84.6

Amounts carried in the Balance Sheet

Liabilities 103.5 733 8.7 1.3 112.2 84.6
Assets - - - - - -

Net liability 103.5 73.3 8.7 1.3 112.2 84.6




28. Post-retirement benefit obligations continued
(d) Employee benefit obligations continued
The amounts recognised in the Group Income Statement are as follows:

Defined benefit

Post-retirement

pension plans medical benefits Total

7005 2004 2005 7004 2605 7004

£m £m £m £m £m £

Current service cost 8.6 13.6 0.1 0.1 8.7 13.7
Interest on plan obligations 26.5 243 0.6 05 27.1 248
Expected return on plan assets (26.4) (24.7) - - (26.4) (24.7)
Past service costs 08 - - - 038 -
Gains on curtailments - - (0.6) - (0.6) -
9.5 (3.2 0.1 0.6 9.6 (3.8

Actual return on plan assets 76.9 422 - - 76.9 422

All amounts above have also been recognised in the Company Income Statement with the exception of £1.8m (2004: £2.7m) of the current service cost which has been recognised within

other Group companies.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

Defined benefit

Post-retirement

pension plans medical benefits Total

2005 2004 2005 2004 3005 7004

£m £m £m £m £m £rn

Opening defined benefit obligations 500.2 455.3 1.3 9.4 5i1.5 464.7

Current service cost 8.6 13.6 0.1 0.1 87 137

Employee contributions 0.4 - - - 0.4 -

Interest on plan obligations 26.5 243 0.6 0.5 27.1 248

Past service costs 08 - - - 08 -

Gains on curtailments - - (0.6) - (0.6) -

Actuarial loss/(gain) 78.8 7.1 (2.3) 1.8 76.5 18.9

Acquisition - 1.3 - - - 1.3

Benefits paid (n.n (11.4) (0.4 (0.5) (1.5) (1.9)

Closing defined benefit obligations 604.2 500.2 8.7 .3 612.9 SIS
Changes in the fair value of plan assets were as follows:

Defined benefit Post-retirement

pension plans medical benefits Total

7605 2004 2005 7004 7005 7004

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Opening fair value of plan assets 4269 385.0 - - 426.9 3850

Expected return on plan assets 264 24.7 - - 26.4 247

Contributions by employing entities 7.6 9.8 0.4 05 8.0 10.3

Contributions by employees 04 - - - 0.4 -

Actuarial loss 50.5 17.5 - - 50.5 7.5

Acquisition - I3 - - - 1.3

Benefits paid (1n.n (1.4 (0.4) 0.5) (11.5) (1

Closing fair value of plan assets 500.7 4269 - - 500.7 426.9

The Group expects to contribute £7.3m to its defined benefit pension plans in 2006.
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28. Post-retirement benefit obligations continued
(d) Employee benefit obligations continued
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets are as follows:

2005 2004

Equities 46% 52%
Property 14% 4%
Bonds 5% 6%
Gilts 30% 25%
Cash and other 5% 3%
100% 100%

The principal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages) were as follows:

2005 2004
To determine benefit obligations
Discount rate at 31 December 4.7% 5.3%
Future pension increases 2.8% 2.8%
To determine the net pension cost
Expected return on plan assets 6.2% 6.5%
Discount rate 5.3% 5.4%
For post-retirement medical plan
Discount rate 4.7% 5.3%
Inflation 2.8% 2.8%
Medical cost trend for 2006 8.0% 95.0%
Medical cost trend falling linearly for 2007 to 201} 80% 10 45%  2.0% to 45%
Medical cost trend from 2012 4.5% 4.5%

In determining the expected long-term return on plan assets the Company considered the current level of expected returns on risk-free investments (primarily government bonds), the
historical level of risk premium associated with the other asset classes in which the portfolio is invested and the expectations for future returns on each asset class. The expected return for
each asset class was then weighted based on the target asset allocation to develop the expected long-term return for the portfolio.

The principal assumptions made on life expectancy were for active members to use PA92 Base rated down by 3 years and for retired members PA22 Base unadjusted.

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have an effect on the amounts recognised in staff costs. A one percentage point change in assumed healthcare
cost trend rates would have the following effects:

2005 2004

im £m

Effect on the aggregate of service cost and interest cost 0.1 .1
Effect on defined benefit obligations 1.8 (I.H

Experience adjustments on post-retirement medical plan liabilities are:

2005 2004
£m £m

Experience adjustments on post-retirement medical plan liabilities 0. -

29. Provisions

Empty
leasehold Compensation Restructuring Pension
premises claims costs review Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Group and Company
As at | January 2005 1.5 37.1 9.0 0.7 48.3
Charged in the vear 0.5 387 6.9 - 46.1
Utilised in the year (0.9) (50.8) (7.8) - (59.5)

As at 31 December 2005 1.1 25.0 8.1 0.7 349
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29. Provisions continued

Empty leasehold premises

The empty leasehold premises provision relates to properties which as at the Balance Sheet date were no longer used for trading but were subject
10 a lease agreement. The provision is based on either known or forecast future rental expenditure; the rental payments are due to be made during
the period 2006 to 2020.

Compensation claims

Compensation claims relate to potential payments to customers for business written in the past by the Group's independent advisory business. The
provision is calculated on the basis of a reasonable estimate of the size and expected timing of claims. Notwithstanding this, external factors such as
the performance of the stock market and market agitation could influence both the size and timing of payments.

Restructuring costs

Other restructuring costs relate to redundancies and contract terminations which had occurred by the Balance Sheet date. The provision represents
amounts expected to be paid in 2006, 1t also includes a provision for an insurance premium to cover the professional indemnity liability associated
with businesses disposed of during 2004; the liability will run off over the next five years.

Pension review

The pension review provision has been established to cover compensation payable in connection with phases one and two of the pension review and
also a review of free-standing additional voluntary contributions. The provision represents an estimate of the amount to be expended during 2006.

30. Subordinated liabilities

Group Company
2005 7004 7005 7004
£m £m £m im
Dated:

Sterling subordinated notes due 2010 132.2 125.0 132.2 125.0
Step-up sterling subordinated notes due 2011 128.1 1250 128.1 1250
Sterling perpetual subordinated notes due 2013 250.0 2500 250.0 2500
Sterling perpetual subordinated notes due 2019 2143 2000 2143 200.0
Sterling fixed rate step-up subordinated notes due 2022 208.6 200.0 208.6 2000
Sterling subordinated notes due 2023 126.5 125.0 126.5 125.0
Sterling perpetual subordinated notes due 2032 - - 174.3 150.0
Sterling subordinated notes due 2054 - - 150.0 -
1,059.7 1,025.0 1,384.0 1,175.0
Unamortised issue costs - (7.5) - (8.8)
1,059.7 1.017.5 1,384.0 [,166.2

Undated:
13% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds (sterling) 55.0 550 55.0 55.0
{1.625% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds (sterling) 50.0 500 500 500
1,164.7 1,122.5 1,489.0 12712

As at 31 December 2005 there were no unamortised issue costs, but the carrying values of the liabilities are on an effective interest rate basis which takes into account issue costs. The carrying
values of hedged items also include adjustments to reflect changes in fair value of hedged risks.

The sterling subordinated notes due 2010 pay interest at a rate of 7.625% per annum until their maturity. The step-up sterling subordinated notes due 2011 pay interest at a rate of 8.375% per
annum until 26 December 2006 when the Company may either redeem them (with the prior consent of the Financial Services Authority) or pay a rate of interest fixed at 1.85% above the
relevant five year gilt. The sterling perpetuatl subordinated notes due 2013 pay interest at a rate of 5.625% and are redeemable by the issuer at its option on 20 December 2013 and on each
fifth anniversary thereafter. The sterling perpetual subordinated notes due 2019 pay interest at a rate of 6% and are redeemable by the issuer at its option on 10 December 2019 and on each
fifth anniversary thereafter. The sterling fixed rate step-up subordinated notes due 2022 pay interest at a rate of 5.75% per annum until 12 December 2017 when the Company may either
redeemn them, as above, or pay a rate of interest 2% above the relevant five year gilt. The sterling subordinated notes due 2023 pay interest at a rate of 6.625% until their maturity. The steriing
perpetual subordinated notes due 2032 pay interest at a rate of 6.462% until 2 June 2032 when the Company may redeem them. as above, or pay a rate of interest 2.3% above the relevant
five year gilt. Interest on both issues of Perpetual Subordinated Bonds, which have no maturity date, is payable half-yearly in arrears.

None of the subordinated liabilities can be repaid at the borrower's option, except as stated above. The rights of repayment of the holders of subordinated debt, including Perpetual
Subordinated Bonds, are subordinated to the claims of all depositors and creditors as regards the principal and interest thereon.

Interest incurred by the Group in 2005 with respect to subordinated liabilities was £78.8m (2004: £78.8m) and incurred by the Company was £95.6m (2004: £88.5m).
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3l. Other capital instruments
Group
2005

£m

Perpetual preferred securities 174.3
174.3

The carrying values of hedged items also include adjustments to reflect changes in fair value of hedged risks.

On 29 May 2002, £150m (£148.5m net of expenses) of 6.462% guaranteed, non-voting, non-cumulative, perpetual preferred securities, Series A were issued through Bradford & Bingley Capital
Funding LF, a Jersey-based Limited Partnership. These securities are not subject to any mandatory redemption provisions and aualify as Tier { regulatory capital; they are redeemable by the issuer at
its option on 2 june 2032 and onreach fifth anniversary thereafter. They have a fixed coupon and, if not redeemed in 2032, the coupon will be reset at a rate equal to the sum of the relevant five year
benchmark gitt rate plus a margin of 2.3% per annum. The Group is not obliged to, and will not, make any payments to the holders of the preferred securities other than those to which the holders of
these securities are entitled under the terms of the preferred securities. At 31 December 2004, under UK GAAR these instruments were classified as‘minority interest” and carried at £148.6m (being
£1500m less unamortised issue costs), but in 2005 they are classed as “other capital instruments” as under |AS 32 they are deemed to form part of the Group's fiabilities. Interest incurred in 2005 in
respect of these securities was £3.7m (2004 £9.7m minority interest charge).

32. Share capital
Group and Company ordinary shares of 25p each:

2005 2004 2005 2004
Nurnber of shares (m) £m £m
Ordinary shares authorised as at | January and 31 December 882.0 882.0 220.5 2205
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid as at | January 634.1 634.1 158.5 158.5
Ordinary shares issued during the year 0.3 - 0.1 -
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid as at 31 December 6344 634.1 I58.6 158.5

0.3m ordinary shares were issued during the year to the Bradford & Bingley Employees’ Share Trust for a total of £1.Im.
At 31 December 2005 the market price of Bradford & Bingley plc shares was 410.50p (2004: 335.75p}.

As at 31 December 2005 6,203,250 of the Company’s shares (2004: 9,209,424) were held by trusts for the purpose of satisfying the obligations of incentive plans: further details of these incentive
plans are given below. The cost to the Group of these shares is accounted for as a deduction from retained earnings of £18.2m (2004: £25.6m).

The Company has one class of shares; ordinary shares of 25p each, ranking equally in respect of rights attaching to voting, dividends and in the event of a winding-up.

Bradford & Bingley Profit Sharing Scheme

In March 2002, employees entitled to the Group bonus could elect to receive shares under the rules of the Bradford & Bingley Profit Sharing
Scheme. This scheme operated a trust fund known as the Bradford & Bingley Share Ownership Trust, under the control of independent trustees,
Computershare Trustees Limited. By leaving the shares in the Bradford & Bingley Share Ownership Trust for three years, employees did not have to
pay income tax and national insurance contributions on receipt of those shares. At 3| December 2005 the trustees of the Bradford & Bingley Share
Ownership Trust held nc shares (2004: 585,567) on behalf of the employees (2004: on behalf of 1,656 employees).

Bradford & Bingley Employees’ Share Trust

On 3 October 2000 the Company established an offshore employee share trust, the Bradford & Bingley Employees’ Share Trust, for the purpose of
receiving monies and acquiring shares to be used in conjunction with any employee share schemes established by the Company. At 31 December 2005
the trustee of this trust, Mourant & Co. Trustees Limited, held 4,512,760 (2004: 5,510,361) shares to satisfy share awards and options which have

been made or are to be made in accordance with the rules of the employee share schemes established by the Company. During 2005 the Company
provided £1,104,628 (2004: £803,290) for share purchases. The trust has waived in full its rights to receive dividends on the shares held except in
respect of the Executive Incentive Plan where dividends are received in full by the trust and distributed to the underlying beneficial holders of the
shares. This trust currently holds shares relating to the Executive Share Option Scheme, the Performance Share Plan, the Executive Incentive Plan and
the Employees’ Restricted Share Bonus Plan which are detailed in note 5.

Long Term Incentive Plan

Under the rules of the 1998 Long Term Incentive Plan it was possible for the participants to elect to take share options rather than their cash
entitlements. Awards were made under this plan on 12 December 2000, and 50 participants elected to take options over 353,744 shares exercisable at
the same time as the cash payments (40% immediately and two further equal tranches on the first and second anniversaries). The options over shares
remained exercisable during the first five years following the award date. At 31 December 2005 no shares remained under option (2004: 35,922).




32. Share capital continued

Executive Share Option Scheme

Grants of approved and unapproved share options were made under the rules of the Bradford & Bingley 2000 Share Option Scheme as detailed in
note 5. The shares are exercisable subject to the achievement of a performance target linked to an increase in the Company's earnings per share.
The options over shares are exercisable over the period of three to ten years after the date of the grant. At the year end there were options
outstanding over 1,463,332 shares (2004: 2,642,176).

Sharesave Scheme

The Company operates the Bradford & Bingley 2000 Sharesave Scheme, an Inland Revenue approved, all-employee Save As You Earn share option
scheme. Grants of share options under this scheme were made as detailed in note 5. The option prices represent a 20% discount to the market
price on the date of the grant. There were 1,421 three year and 615 five year savings contracts in place at the end of 2005 represented by a total of
3,273,764 shares under option (2004: 5,771,776). A further invitation to participate in the scheme will be issued in February 2006.

On 8 December 2000 the Bradford & Bingley Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust was established to acquire shares for employees, including

Directors, to satisfy options exercised under the Sharesave Scheme. At 31 December 2005 the Trust held a total of 1,690,490 shares (2004: 3,113.456)
to satisfy options which are expected to be exercised under the Sharesave Scheme. In respect of dividends arising from the shares held, the Trust has

waived its rights to all but 0.0001 pence per share. No funds to acquire shares were provided by the Company to the Trust during 2005 (2004: Nif),

Employees’ Restricted Share Bonus Plan

in April 2002 the Employees' Restricted Share Bonus Plan was established to allocate shares to employees following the achievement of specified
performance measures. The shares will be released to the individuals in tranches annually in the three years following the allocation or on the third
anniversary of the award, depending on the conditions under which they were awarded, and subject to them remaining employed by the Company
on the anniversary dates. At the year end there were 223,145 share allocations outstanding (2004: 445, 166).

Performance Share Plan

Shares were awarded under the rules of the Bradford & Bingley 2000 Performance Share Plan as detailed in note 5. The shares will be released to
the individuals after the end of the performance period subject to the achievement of a performance criterion which measures the performance of
the Company against a peer group of companies. The number of outstanding share awards at the year end was 2,084,082 (2004: 2,871 532).

Executive Incentive Plan

The Executive Incentive Plan 2004 was established to provide a replacement to the short and long term incentive plans for senior executives. The
short term element consists of a cash payment based on the achievement of pre-determined short term performance measures and an equivalent
amount of deferred shares that are held in trust for three years. Dividends receivable on the deferred shares are paid to the underlying beneficial
owners of the shares. After three years the long term element of the scheme may be applied in the form of an additional award of matching shares
subject to earnings per share growth, Matching share awards will be made when compound earnings per share growth is between RPI plus 3% and
RPI plus 8%. The maximum number of matching shares will be three matching shares for each deferred share. At 31 December 2005 there were
341,990 deferred shares held in trust (2004: Nil).
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33. Reconciliation of changes in equity

Group Share Capital Available- Cash flow Attributable
2005 Share premium  redemption for-sale hedge Retained to equity
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings holders
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 31 December 2004 158.5 39 250 - - 1,009.8 1,197.2
Effect of adoption of IAS 32 - - - 8.0) - 47.4 384
and IAS 39 (see Appendix)
As at | January 2005 158.5 3.9 25.0 (8.0 - 1,057.2 1,235.6
Net change in available-for-sale - - - 152 - - 152
instruments, net of taxation
Net change in cash flow - - - - 5.8 - 15.8
hedges, net of taxation
Actuarial losses on post-retirement - - - - - (18.2) (18.2)
benefit obligations, net of taxation
Net gains not recognised in - - - 152 158 (18.2) 12.8
the Income Statement
Profit for the financial year - - - - - 188.8 188.8
Total recognised income - - - 152 15.8 170.6 201.6
Dividends - - - - - (108.7) (108.7)
Issue of share capital to Employees’ Share Trust . 10 - - - n
Use of own shares on exercise of employee - - - - - 8.5 85
options and for other employee share plans
Fair value of share options taken - - - - - 45 45
to share option reserve
Deficit on share option exercises - - - - - (1.2) (1.2)

As at 3| December 2005 158.6 4.9 25.0 6.2 15.8 1,129.8 1,340.3




33. Reconciliation of changes in equity continued

Group Share Capital Attributable
2004 Share premium  redemption Retained 1o equity
capital reserve reserve earnings holders
£m £m £m £m £m
As at | January 2004 as previously 158.5 39 120 1,0932 1,267.6
reported under UK GAAP
Changes upon transition to IFRS - - - (18.2) (18.2)
As at | |anuary 2004 as 158.5 39 12.0 1,075.0 1,249.4
restated under IFRS
Actuarial losses on post-retirement - - - (1.0) (1.9)
benefit obligations, net of taxation
Net gains not recognised in - - - (1.0) (1.0)
the Income Staternent
Profit for the financial year - - - 286 28.6
Total recognised income - - - 27.6 276
Dividends - - - (104.4) (104.4)
Coupen on minority interest - - - - -
Net proceeds from sale of - - 13.0 - 13.0
surplus conversion shares
Purchases of own shares - - - 0.8) 0.8)
Use of own shares on exercise of employee - - - 1.9 e
options and for other employee share plans
Fair value of share options - - - 32 32
taken to share option reserve
Deficit on share option exercises - - - (2.7) (2.7)
As at 31 December 2004 158.5 39 250 1,009.8 [,197.2
Company Share Capitai Available- Cash flow Attributable
2005 Share premium  redemption for-sale hedge Retained to equity
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings holders
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 31 December 2004 1585 39 25.0 - - 853.1 1.040.5
Effect of adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39 (see Appendix) - - - (5.0) - 27.5 18.5
As at | January 2005 158.5 39 25.0 (9.0) - 880.6 1,059.0
Net change in available-for-sale instruments, net of taxation - - - 152 - - 152
Net change in cash flow hedges, net of taxation - - - - 15.8 - 15.8
Actuarial losses on post-retirement benefit obligations, - - - - - (18.2) (18.2)
net of taxation
Net gains not recognised in the Income Statement - - - 152 158 (18.2) 2.8
Profit for the financial year - - - - - 160.8 160.8
Total recognised income - - - 15.2 15.8 142.6 1736
Dividends - - - - - (108.7) (108.7)
Issue of share capital to Employees' Share Trust 0. 1.0 - - - (.0 -
Use of own shares on exercise of employee - - - - - 8.5 85
options and for other employee share plans
Fair value of share options taken to share option reserve - - - - - 45 45
Deficit on share option exercises - - - - - (1.2) (1.2)
As at 3| December 2005 158.6 4.9 25.0 6.2 {5.8 9252 1,135.7




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. Reconciliation of changes in equity continued

Company Share Capital Attributable
2004 Share premium  redemption Retained 10 equity
capital reserve reserve earnings hotders
£m £m £m £m £m
As at | January 2004 as previously reported 158.5 39 120 968.3 11427
under UK GAAP
Changes upon transition to IFRS - - - (26.5) (26.5)
As at | January 2004 as restated under IFRS 158.5 39 2.0 941.8 1,116.2
Actuarial losses on post-retirement benefit obligations, - - - ) (1.0)
net of taxation
Net gains not recognised in the Income Statement - - - (1.0) (1.0)
Profit for the financial year - - - 5.1 51
Total recognised income - - - 4. 4
Dividends - - - (l04.4) (104.4)
Net proceeds from sale of surplus conversion shares - - 13.0 - 3.0
Purchases of own shares - - - (0.8) 0.8)
Use of own shares on exercise of employee - - - .9 9
options and for other employee share plans
Fair value of share options taken to share option reserve - - - 32 32
Deficit on share option exercises - - - (2.7) (2.7)
As at 3] December 2004 158.5 39 25.0 853.) },040.5

The share premium reserve represents the excess of the consideration received for issued shares over the nominal value of those shares, net of transaction costs.
The capital redemption reserve was created on the sale of surplus conversion shares and to maintain the total amount of capital when shares were repurchased by the Company.
The available-for-sale reserve represents cumulative fair value movements on assets which are stilt held at the Balance Sheet date and are classified as available-for-sale.

The cash flow hedge reserve represents cumulative fair value movements on derivatives which are still held at the Balance Sheet date and are effective cash flow hedges.

34. Capital commitments

Grégg Company

2005 2004 2005 2004

£m £m £m £m

Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided for 2.3 3.1 23 0.3

35. Operating lease commitments
Group and Company

2005 2004
£m £m
The amounts of rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
Payable in less than one year 7.5 7.7
Payable in between one and five years 23.4 253
Payable after more than five years 329 379
Total payable 63.8 70.9
These operating leases relate to land and buildings and equipment.
36. Other commitments
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
£m £m £m £m
Irrevocable undrawn loan facilities 2,288.8 1,775.0 756.6 799.5
Partly paid share capital in subsidiary entity - - 78 7.8

2,288.8 1,775.0 764.4 807.3




37. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and judgements in application of accounting policies

In preparation of the Group's and Company's accounts estimates and assumptions are made which affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities; estimates and assumptions are kept under continuous evaluation, Estimates and judgements are based on historical experience,
expectations of future events and other factors.

Post-retirement benefit obligations
The net deficit in respect of post-retirement benefit obligations is carried on the Balance Sheet. The value of this obligation is calculated by the
Group's actuaries using the assumptions set out in note 28.

Share-based payment
The Income Statement charge in respect of share-based payment arrangements is based on the fair value of awards as at the date of grant. Further
details of the Group’s fair value methodology are provided in note 5.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment and computer software
Property, plant and equipment and computer software are capitalised and depreciated to their estimated residual values over their estimated useful
lives. The depreciation rates are disclosed in the accounting policies notes 1(m) and | (o).

Provisions
Details of provisions are shown in note 29.

Effective interest rate

Certain financial instruments are accounted for on an effective interest rate basis, under which the income or expense associated with the instrument
is spread over the instrument’s expected life. On a quarterly basis, models are reviewed to re-assess expected life by portfolio of products, based
upon actual redemptions by product.

Fair values of financial instruments
Certain financial instruments are carried at fair value. Where a market exists, fair values are based on quoted market prices. For instruments which do not
have active markets, fair value is calculated using present value models; further detail of the methodology is provided in note 40(a).

Loan impairment

The Group reviews its loan impairment on a quarterly basis. Impairment models use historical loss experience to provide both probabilities of default
and property forced sale discounts across a portfolio of products. In addition management applies a risk weighted view on additional factors, such as
specific fraud cases.

38. Related party disclosures

The key management personnel of the Group and Company are the Company's Executive and Non-executive Directors and senior managers. The
Group and Company have related party relationships with the key management personnel and with the Group’s pension schemes. In addition, the
Company has related party relationships with its subsidiary undertakings; the Company's principa! subsidiaries are listed in note {2, and transactions
between the Company and its subsidiaries are on arms’ length terms.

The Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 29 to 34 gives details of the Company's Directors’ salaries, fees, pension entitlements, share options,
share plans, other incentives and other benefits. Further details of the accounting treatment of pensions are given in note 28, and further details of
the accounting treatment of share-based payments in note 5. The Directors' interests in the Company’s shares are shown on page 25, and the
Directors were paid the declared dividends in respect of those shares.

Details of the Group’s and Company's transactions and balances with the Group's pension schemes are given in note 28. There were no amounts
due to or from the schemes at 3| December 2005 (2004: Nil).

A summary of the remuneration of the key management personnel is as follows; these amounts include the remuneration of the Directors which is
set out in detail on pages 29 to 34.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. Related party disclosures continued

2005 2004
£000 £000
Salaries and other short-term benefits 3,710 3035
Termination benefits 341 63l
Post-employment benefits 696 796
Share-based payment 1,187 984
Total (included within ncte 4) 5,934 5446
The balances due from related parties and volumes of transactions were as follows:
Key personnel
2005 2004
£000 £000
Group
Debtors outstanding at | January 298 37
Net movement over the year (6) 26l
Debtors outstanding at 3| December 292 298
Interest earned 12 9
Subsidiaries Key personnel
2005 2004 2005 2004
£m £m £000 £000
Company
Debtors outstanding at | January 10,353.8 12,0282 3i 37
Net movement over the year 52800 (1,6744) (5 (6)
Debtors outstanding at 3| December 15,633.8 10,353.8 26 3l
Interest earned 786.1 675.7 2 2

The balances with key personnel are mortgages issued on the usual commerdial terms, included within “loans and advances to customers”, The debtors due from subsidiary undertakings are gererally

repayable on demand and pay intérest at a commercial LIBOR-related rate, and are included within “loans and advances to customers'. INo impairment has been recognised on any of these balances.

The balances due to related parties and volumes of transactions were as follows:

Key personnel

2005 2004
£000 £000
Group
Creditors outstanding at | January 256 225
Net movement over the year 284 3l
Creditors outstanding at 31 December 540 256
Interest expense 14 9

Subsidiaries Key personnel
2005 2004 7005 2004
£m £m £000 £000

Company
Creditors outstanding at | January 4571.8 2,408.1 256 225
Net movement over the year 3,665.7 2,163.7 284 3
Creditors outstanding at 3| December 8,237.5 4571.8 540 256
Interest expense 357.8 107.8 i4 9

The balances with key personnel are savings products issued on the Group's usual commercial terms, included within “customer accounts”. The creditors due to subsidiary undertakings are

generally repayable on demand, bear interest at a commercial LIBOR-related rate, and are included within "customer accounts”.




38. Related party disclosures continued

D

In addition to the interest income and expense shown above, the Company had other transactions with its subsidiaries as follows:

2005 2004
£m £m
Dividend income 40.2 199
Managerment charges 6.2 18.4
Other 0.9 1.0
473 3%.3
39. Events after the Balance Sheet date
As shown in note 9, on I5 February 2006 the Directors proposed the payment of a dividend of 12.3 pence per share.
40. Financial instruments
(a) Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 3| December 2005
Group Company
Carrying Fair Cartying Fair
value value value value
£m £m fm £m
Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks 49.6 496 49.2 49.2
Loans and advances to banks 3,204.7 3,204.7 2,315.5 2,315.5
Loans and advances to customers 31,127.1 31,3941 326266 32,7798
Debt securities 5,724.0 5724.0 5,163.5 5,163.5
Derivative financial instruments 262.8 262.8 200.0 200.0
Other financial assets 124 .4 124 4 684.3 1,067.4
Total financial assets 40,492.6 40,759.6 41,039.1 41,5754
Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks 1,721.6 1,721.6 1,009.2 1,009.2
Customer accounts 21,050.1 21,083.7 26,7835 268I5.6
Derivative financial instruments 33 3314 341 4 341 .4
Debt securities in issue 14,577.6  14,569.3 10,1811 10,197.4
Subordinated liabilities I,164.7 1,314.5 1,489.0 1,634.8
Other capital instruments 174.3 170.3 - -
Other financial liabilities 107.9 107.9 94,1 94,1
Total financial liabilities 39,1273 39,2984 39,8983 40,0925
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40. Financial instruments continued
(a) Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities continued

Fair value methodology:

Cash and balances at central banks: the fair value is their carrying amount,

Loans and advances to banks: the fair value is their carrying amount.

Loans and advances to customers: the fair value is estimated from expected future cash flows, discounted at current market rate. The fair value is
shown net of impairment.

Debt securities: the fair value is their carrying amount.

Derivative financial instruments assets and liabilities: the fair value is their carrying amount.

Other financial assets: the fair value of shares in Group undertakings is derived from the market capitalisation of the Group; the fair values of most
others is their carrying amount.

Deposits by banks: the fair value is their carrying amount.

Customer accounts: the fair value is estimated from expected future cash flows discounted at current market rates.

Debt securities in issue, subordinated liabilities and other capital instruments: the fair value is based upon quoted market prices in active markets or
discounted expected cash flows using market rates applicable to the credit quality and maturity of the instruments.

Other financial liabilities: the fair value is their carrying amount.

No financial assets were reclassified during the year between amortised cost and fair value categories.

The carrying values of financial assets and financial liabilities which are categorised as'held for trading” and “at fair value through profit or loss” were as follows:

Grdup Company

Assets Liabilities Assats Liabilities

£m £m £m £m

Held for trading - - - -
At fair value through profit or loss 46.1 - 62.5 -

"Held for trading" is a term used in IAS 39 and represents financial instruments carried at fair value; the Group does not carry out trading activities or hold a trading book.

Set out below is a comparison of carrying values and fair values of certain of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities at 31 December 2004,
The Group does not undertake transactions for trading or speculative purposes. The table excludes certain financial assets and financial liabilities
which are not listed or publicly traded, or for which a liquid and active market does not exist. It therefore excludes items such as mortgages,
customer accounts and deposits with banks.

2004
Carrying value Fair value
£m £m
Financial assets
Treasury bills and other eligble bills ’ 3804 380.3
Debt securities 4317.7 43987
Financial liabilities
Debt securities in issue 149389 149376
Subordinated liabilities [,122.5 12926
Minority interest (non-equity) 148.6 167.0
Non-trading derivotives
Exchange rate contracts - positive fair values 299 2843
- negative fair values (20.3) (300.1)
Interest rate contracts: Caps, collars and floors - positive fair values 1.0 0.2
- negative fair values - 6.7)
Swaps - positive fair values 46.7 2930
- negative fair values (394) (193.4)
Futures - positive fair values - )

- negative fair values - -

The above figures include accrued interest.

Where a market exists, market values have been used to determine the fair value of debt securities issued and held, Where no market exists, discounted cash flow techniques have been used
to determine the fair value using market interest rates for the relevant assets. The fair values of off-balance sheet financial instruments have been determined using market interest rates in
discounted cash flow techniques. Fair values of interest rate caps and collars have been calculated using option-pricing models.
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40. Financial instruments continued

(a) Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities continued

The fair values of off-balance sheet financial instruments used as hedges are recognised when the exposure that is being hedged is recognised. The
table below shows how these fair values have been, or are expected to be, recognised in the Income Statement.

Amounts not recognised
in the Balance Sheet

Gains Losses Net

£m m £m

Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges at | January 2004 2154 (367.1) (151.7)
Less: gains and losses arising in previous years that were recognised in 2004 (10.6) 267 16.1

Gains and losses arising before | January 2004 that were not recognised in 2004 204.8 (340.4) (135.6)
Gains and losses arising in 2004 that were not recognised in 2004 331.7 (135.2) 196.5
Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges at 31 December 2004 536.5 (475.6) 60.9

Of which:

Gains and losses expected to be recognised in 2005 733 (154.1) (80.8)
Gains and fosses expected to be recognised in 2006 or fater 463.2 (321.5) 1417

Deferred balances relating to settled derivatives and other financial transaction provisions used as hedges will be released to the Income Statement in the same periods as the income and
expenditure flows from the underlying hedged transactions. The above table shows the gains and losses on off-balance sheat derivative instruments used for hedging by the Group. The gains
and losses therefore do not represent absolute gains and losses expected by the Group as they will be substantially offset by corresponding losses or gains from on-balance sheet instruments,

(b) Financial instruments not derecognised

Group and Company 2005
Carrying value Fair value Transaction
of securities  of securities maturity dates
£m £m
Mortgage-backed securities 451.0 452.0  less than 12 months

This table shows additional information about assets which have been sold but are subject to an arrangement whereby the Group remains exposed to the economic risk on the assets.

In addition, certain loans to customers have been securitised, as explained in note 15.

(c) Interest income and expense on financial instruments that are not at fair value through profic or loss
During the vear, total interest income and expense {calculated using the effective interest rate method) for financial assets and financial liabilities that
are not at fair value through the profit or loss were:

Group

£m

Interest income 2,1345
Interest expense (1666.6)

(d) Hedging and hedge effectiveness
The fair values of hedges as at 3| December 2005 were as follows:

Group Company

£m £m

Fair value hedges - derivatives (84.8) (157.9)
Cash flow hedges - derivatives 16.5 16.5
(68.3) (141 .4)

The Group undertakes derivative transactions to hedge risk exposures, and manages risk by use of fair value hedges and cash flow hedges, For those transactions which qualify and are
designated as fair value or cash flow hedges, hedge accounting treatment is applied.

Fair value hedges are primarily used to hedge against changes in fair value of fixed rate products due to movements in market interest rates. For the year ended 3! December 2005, the Group
recognised fair value gains of £1.1m, representing the ineffective portion of the fair value hedges,

Cash flow hedges are used to hedge the risk of exposure to variability of cash flows attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability, or a forecast transaction. Any
gains or losses on cash flow hedges are recorded in equity until the hedged cash flow occurs, whereupon they are transferred to profit or loss for the period. As at 31 December 2005, net
gains accumulated in equity were £15.8m and the ineffective portion of those hedges was £Nil.

Hedge effectiveness is measured and assessed on an ongoing basis and was determined to be actually effective throughout the year. Changes in fair values and cash flows of the hedged items
were ajmost fully offset by changes in fair values and cash flows of the hedging instruments, and actual effectiveness was within a range of 80% to 125%.
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40. Financial instruments continued

(e) Collateral

The Group pledges and receives collateral for repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements and some derivative contracts.
(i) Financial assets pledged as collateral:

Group 2005 Company 2005
Reverse Reverse
Cash collateral repurchase Cash collateral repurchase
on derivatives agreements  on derivatives agreements
Carrying value  Carrying value Carrying value Carrying value
£m £m £m £m
By counterparty:
Banks 142.5 - 142.5 -
Customers - 280 1.2 28.0
142.5 28.0 i53.7 28.0
Derivatives are transacted under ISDA with CSA annexes and as such require collateral to be posted from time to time.
(i) Collateral held which.can be sold or repledged in the absence of default by the owner of the collateral:
Group 2005 Company 2005
Cash collateral Repurchase Cash coflateral Repurchase
on derivatives agreements on derivatives agreements
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
£m £m £m fm
By counterparty:
Banks - 102.0 - 102.0
Customers 39 437 39 43.7
39 145.7 3.9 145.7

The Group pledges government securities under repurchase agreements for short-term financing activities.

(f) Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments
The risks that the Group is exposed to and the Group's approach to risk management are discussed in the Group Finance Director’s Review on pages
10 to I7. Risks are managed on a Group basis, and hence a description of risk management policies is not provided separately for the Company.

Financial instruments used by the Group for risk management purposes include derivative instruments. Such instruments are used only to limit the
extent to which the Group will be affected by changes in interest rates and exchange rates. As part of its responsibilities, the Group’s Asset and
Liability Management Committee ('ALCO") approves the use of specified derivative instruments within approved limits and business activities.

The Group does not undertake transactions for trading or speculative purposes, and conseguently all of the Group's derivative instruments are for
commercial hedging purposes. Hedge accounting is applied as appropriate, as detailed in the accounting policies note [(x). The principal derivative
instruments used by the Group in managing its Balance Sheet exposures are interest rate swaps, interest rate options, interest rate futures, cross-
currency interest rate swaps and foreign exchange contracts. These are used to protect the Group from exposures arising principally from fixed and
capped rate mortgage lending, fixed rate savings products, deposit funding, foreign currency exposure and investment activities. The duration of
derivative instruments is generally short to medium-term and their maturity profile reflects the nature of exposures arising from underlying business
activities. Substantially all of the Group's derivatives activity is contracted with financial institutions.




40. Financial instruments continued

(f) Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments continued

(i) Credit risk

Before taking account of any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December 2005 was:

2005

Group Company

£m £m

Cash and balances at central banks 49.6 49.2
Loans and advances to banks 3,204.7 2,315.5
Loans and advances to customers 31,271 32,6266
Debt securities 5,724.0 5,163.5
Derivative financial instruments 262.8 200.0
Other financial assets 1244 684.3
Total on-balance sheet 40,492.6  41.039.1
Irrevocable undrawn (oan facilities (off-balance sheet) 2,2888 756.6
Total maximum exposure to credit risk 42,7814 41,7957

in respect of loans and advances to barks and customers and derivative financial instruments, the Group and Company may hold reverse repurchase agreements and may also hold cash as
security. Loans and advances to customers are secured on property.

(i) Liquidity risk
It should be noted that many financial instruments are settled earfier than their contractual maturity dates; in particular, many mortgage loans are repaid early,

The contractual maturities of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities were as follows:

In more
In more than than one
In not more three months  year but not
On than three but not more more than  In more than

demand months than one vear five vears five years Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 3| December 2005
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 16.3 - - - 333 49.6
Loans and advances to banks 9l6.1 2,1748 59.2 546 - 32047
Loans and advances to customers - [29.6 4385 24593 280997 31,1271
Debt securities - 510.1 7295 1,543.7 2,940.7 57240
Derivative financial instruments - 95 18.0 1764 589 2628
Other assets 100.0 349 567 180.6 99.8 472.0
Total assets 1,032.4 2,858.9 1,301.9 44146 31,2324 408402
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 474.3 372.6 5485 326.2 - 1,721.6
Customer accounts 17,6013 24950 4255 5283 - 210501
Derivative financial instruments - 10.4 31.9 1764 2.4 3311
Debt securities in issue - 21763 23159 7,100.7 25847 14,577.6
Subordinated liabilities - - - 132.2 10325 [,164.7
Other capital instruments - - - - 174.3 174.3
Other liabilities - 1398 199.1 293 2.3 480.5
Total liabilities 18,075.6 5,194 35209 8,293.1 44162 39499.9
Group net liquidity gap (17,043.2) (2,3352) (22190) (3,8785) 268162 1,340.3
At 31 December 2004
Total assets 740.8 48558 1,302.6 35929 276576 38,1497
Total liabilities (11,7244)  (6446.3) (5266.3) (11,5620) (1,8049) (36,803.9)

Group net liquidity gaj 10983.6) (15905 3963.7) (7969.1) 258527 [,345.8
P ga3p
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40. Financial instruments continued

(f) Nature and extent of riisks arising from financial instruments continued

(i) Liquidity risk continued

The contractual maturities of the Company's financial assets and liabilities were as follows:

In mo-e
In more than than one
fn not more three months  year but not
On than three but not more more than  [n more than

dernand months than one year five years five years Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2005
Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks 159 - - 333 492
Loans and advances to banks 3122 2,0033 - - - 2,315.5
Loans and advances to customers 15,610.8 116.0 378.6 2,184.5 143367 326266
Debt securities - 3204 458.1 1,509.5 2,8755 51635
Derivative financial instruments - 10.7 202 102.6 66.5 2000
Other assets 605.1 349 56.7 180.5 99.8 977.0
Total financial assets 16,544.0 24853 913.6 3977.1 174118 41,3318
Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks 88.1 3726 548.5 - - 1,009.2
Customer accounts 23,4847 2,495.1 303.6 50C.1 - 267835
Derivative financial instruments - 2.4 304 184.1 124.5 3414
Debt securities in issue - 1,688.0 1,797.1 6,110.2 585.8 10,181.1
Subordinated liabilities - - - 132.2 1,356.8 1,48%.0
Cther liabilities - 1140 162.0 240 919 3919
Total financial liabilities 235728 4,672 2,841 .6 69506 2,1590  40,196.1
Company net liquidity gap (70288) (2,1868) (1,9280) (29735) 152528 I,1357
At 3! December 2004
Total assets 14,987.3 22515 827.6 36029 157735 374428
Total liabilities (21,3479)  (4231.2) (25734) (62946) (19552) (36402.3)
Company net liquidity gap (6,360.6) (1.979.7) (1,7458) (2691.7) 138183 1,040.5

Set out below is the residual maturity analysis of the underlying principal amounts of over the counter (‘OTC') and non-margined exchange traded
derivatives at 31 December 2004. These were all held for asset and liability management purposes.

In more than

In not more one year but In more

than one not more than five
year than five years years Total
£m £m £m £
Caps, collars and floors 4495 997 - 5492
Interest rate swaps 4361.5 11,7363 2,199.5 18,297.3
Interest rate derivatives 4811.0 11,836.0 2,199.5 18,846.5
Foreign exchange derivatives 1,862.9 4,787.3 5067 71769

66939 16,623.3 27062 260234
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40. Financial instruments continued

(f) Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments continued

(i) Liquidity risk continued

Set out below is the residual maturity analysis of the net replacement cost of OTC and nen-margined exchange traded derivatives at 3| December
2004. These are all held for asset and liability management purposes.

Innot  In more than one

more than  yearbut no more  In more than
one vear than five vears five years Total
£m m £m £m
Caps, collars and floors - 0.2 - 02
Interest rate swaps 1.6 2460 354 293.0
Interest rate derivatives i.6 2462 354 2932
Foreign exchange derivatives 674 2013 15.6 284.3
79.0 447.5 51.0 5775

Substantially all of the Group's derivatives activity is contracted with financial institutions. Replacement cost is calculated by marking to market the value of contracts and aggregating those with
a positive value.

(iily Market risk
Interest rate risk
As at 31 December 2005 effective interest rates on financial instruments fell into the following ranges:

Group Company

% %
Financial assets
Loans and advances to banks 227-540 227-540
LLoans and advances to customers 5.15-645 5.15-645
Debt securities ’ 0.14-850 0.14-8.50
Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks 2.16-477  2.16-477
Customer accounts 0.65-6.00  2.15-5.81
Debt securities in issue 001-8.18 0.01-8.18
Subordinated liabilities 5.83-837 583-837
Other capital instruments 6.32-657 6.32-657

The Group hedges fixed rate and foreign currency balances into sterling floating rates.

The Group regularly measures its exposures 1o a range of interest rate scenarios. Based on detailed underlying assumptions, at the end of 2005 the Group estimated the impact of a 1% fall in interest
rates as an improvement in its forecast net interest income of £4rm over the course of the following 12 months.

A positive interest rate sensitivity gap exists when more assets than liabilities re-price during a given period. Although net interest income tends to
benefit from a positive gap when interest rates are rising (and suffer a negative gap when rates are falling), the actual effect will depend upon a number
of factors, including the extent to which repayments are made earlier or later than the next reset or maturity date. The carrying amount of derivative
financial instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to interest movements, are included under the heading "'non-interest
bearing”. The following tables analyse the re-pricing periods of Group assets and liabilities at 31 December 2005 and 31 December 2004

More than More than More than More than
one year but  two years but three years but  four years but
Not more  not more than  not more than  not more than  not more than More than  Non-interest
than one year two years three years four years five vears five years bearing Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2005
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks - - - - - - 49.6 49.6
LLoans and advances to banks 3,150.1 - 273 27.3 - - - 32047
Loans and advances to customers 219147 25938 34161 5499 1,040.5 1,660.5 (484) 31,127
Debt securities 42334 2422 185.1 3729 3385 3519 - 57240
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 262.8 262.8
Other assets - - - - - - 4720 4720

Total assets 292982 2,336.0 36285 950.} 1,379.0 20124 7360 40,8402
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40. Financia! instruments continued

(f) Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments continued

(iii) Market risk continued
Interest rate risk continued

More than
one year but

More than
two Yyears but three years but

Mare than

Mare than
four years but

Not more  not morethan not more than not more than  not more than More than  Non-interest
than one year WO years three years four years five years five years bearing Total
£fm £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 3| December 2005
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 13954 - 3262 - - - - 1,721.6
Customer accounts 19,401 .4 7764 233.3 639.0 - - - 21,050.1
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 331.1 3311
Debt securities in issue 12,2411 2993 5769 [,344.3 - 1160 - 14,577.6
Subordinated liabilities 128.1 - 132.1 9045 - 1,164.7
Other capital instruments - - - - [74.3 - [74.3
Shareholders’ funds - - - - - 1,340.3 1,340.3
Other liabilities - - - - - 480.5 480.5
Total liabilities and shareholders’ funds 33,166.0 1,075.7 [,136.4 1,983.3 132.1 1,194.8 2,151.9 40,8402
Off-balance sheet items 2,991.2 79.3 (2,761.3) 1,582.5 (945.7) (946.0) - -
Interest rate sensitivity gap (876.6) 1,839.6 (269.2) 549.3 3012 (12849 (1,415.9) -
Cumulative gap (876.6) 963.0 6938 |,243.1 1,544.3 14159 - -
Group interest rate sensitivity gap 2004
More than More than More than
Not more  three months but six months but ~ one year but
than three not more than not more than not more than More than  Non-interest
months six months one year five years five years bearing Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 3! December 2004
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks - - - - - 512 512
Treasury bills and other eligible bills 3804 - - - - - 380.4
Loans and advances to banks 4,156.0 - - - - - 4,156.0
Loans and advances to customers 21,4952 5289 b, 168.1 4,438.6 1,2852 (47.6) 288684
Debt securities 2,702.7 269.0 148.0 722.5 4755 - 4317.7
Other assets - - - - - 3760 3760
Total assets 28,7343 7979 1,316, 5,161 1,760.7 3796 38,149.7
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 709.5 83.7 8.2 462.9 - - 12743
Customer accounts 14,9517 1,043.1 883.7 2,075.6 - - 18,9541
Debt securities in issue 12,245,1 256.3 5.9 2,412.7 8.9 - 14,9389
Subordinated liabilities - - - 125.0 997.5 - [,122.5
Shareholders' funds - - - - - 1,197.2 [,197.2
Minority interest - - - - 148.6 - 148.6
Other liabilities - - - - - 514.1 514.1
Total liabilities and shareholders’ funds 27.906.3 1,383.1 917.8 5.076.2 [,155.0 17113 38,149.7
Off-balance sheet items (817.2) [15.6 (361.2) 1,570.3 (507.5) - -
Interest rate sensitivity gap 0.8 (469.6) 37.1 1,6552 - 982 (1,331.7) -
Cumulative gap 0.8 (458.8) {421.7) 12335 [,331.7 - -

The interest rate sensitivity gap as at 31 December 2005 has been presented using the time periods recommended by IAS 32. The 3| December 2004 interest rate sensitivity gap has been
restated from that presented in 2004 under UK GAAP to reflect Statutory Basis IFRS adjustments, but has not been rephased from the time periods usec for UK GAAP disclosure as the two

years' Balance Sheets are not directly comparable.




WWW.BBG.COUK T ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2005 ;| BRADFORD & BINGLEY | 87

40. Financial instruments continued
(f) Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments continued
Currency risk

At the year end the Group and Company had no net material exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations or changes in foreign currency interest rates.

Non-derivative assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

Group Company
2005 2004 7005 2004
£m fm £m £m
Excluding the effects of derivatives, the aggregate amounts of dssets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies were:
Assets 27992 22463 4,183.5 3,660.5
Liabilities 9,129.4 9,1456  7,290.6 7,691.9

The Group's policy is to hedge all material foreign currency exposures,

Other market risks
At the year end the Group and Company had no other material exposure to market risks.

{(iv) Concentrations of risk

The Group operates primarily in the UK and adverse changes to the UK econormy could impact all areas of the Group's business, Loans and advances
to customers are all secured on property based in the UK 49% of loans and advances is concentrated in the buy-to-let market. The Group has
investments in a range of debt securities issued by government bodies, banks and building societies, and in asset-backed securities, in both the UK
and overseas. 4% of the asset-backed securities are invested in UK mortgage-backed securities.

Customer accounts comprise investment and savings accounts held by customers. 14% of these were opened through Bradford & Bingley
International Ltd, the Group's deposit taker on the Isle of Man. Debt securities in issue represent bonds, medium term notes and other debt
securtties issued in a range of countries and currencies with no significant investment by any individual counterparty.
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APPENDIX
TRANSITION TO IFRS

The 2005 Financial Statements are the first full
set of Financial Statements reported by the
Group and the Company under International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS". The
transition to IFRS has been accounted for in
accordance with [FRS [ “First Time Adoption
of international Financial Reporting Standards”.
The 2004 comparative information contained
in these Financial Statements has been restated
from that presented in the 2004 Annual
Report & Accounts in accordance with IFRS,

IFRS | allows entities to apply IAS 32 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation” and
IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” (the “Financial Instruments
Standards”) with effect from | January 2005,
and 2004 information need not be restated in
line with those standards. The effect of this is
described by means of preparation of a

| January 2005 Balance Sheet.

As such, this Appendix sets out the impact of

the transition to IFRS on;

* the Group Balance Sheet at | January 2004;

* the Group profit for 2004;

» the Group Balance Sheet at 31 December
2004,

+ the Group Balance Sheet at | January 2005,

« the Company Balance Sheet at ! January 2004;

+ the Company profit for 2004;

« the Company Balance Sheet at 31 December
2004; and

+ the Company Balance Sheet at | January 2005.

The impact of transition refers to three bases:
+ UK GAAP Basis,

» Statutory Basis;

* Proforma Basis.

UK GAAP Basis: the UK GAAP Basis
information is extracted from the 2004 Report &
Accounts, reformatted to the IFRS presentation.

2004 Statutory Basis: the 2004 Statutory Basis
excludes the Financial Instruments Standards as
permitted by IFRS |. Infermation on the 2004
Statutory Basis therefore forms the 2004
comparative information in the audited Financial
Statements on pages 37 to 87. The information
is presented in compliance with the Group's
IFRS accounting policies;applicable to 2004

2005 Statutory Basis: as per the 2004
Statutory Basis but inclusive of the impacts of
the Financial Instruments Standards.

Proforma Basis (unaudited): the Proforma
Basis includes all elements of [AS 32 and [AS
39 with the exception of those sections
relating to hedging, hedge effectiveness and
fair value, ie. the Fair value Adjustments as
defined in note 14 below, which have been
accounted for under UK GAAR This
Proforma Basis restaterment is not required
for 2004 and is not audited; however; the
Board believe that this information is
necessary for a comparable assessment of
the Group'’s and Company's performance
between 2004 and 2005 accounting periods.

Further information regarding the transition to
IFRS and details of the Group's and Company’'s
IFRS accounting polices, are set out in note | to
the Financial Statements on pages 4! to 47.

Non 1AS 32 and 39 adjustments

1. Consolidation of special purpose entities
The Group has securitised various residential
mortgage loans by sale or transfer to special
purpose structures which in turn have issued
securities to investors. The special purpose
structures have been consolidated into the
IFRS Group Financial Statements if they are,
in substance, controlled by the Group. This
consolidation is in accordance with SIC-12
“Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”
and IAS 27 "Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements".

Under UK GAAF, the Group's policy was that
certain special purpose structures were not
consalidated into the Group Financial
Statements line by line, but linked presentation
was used in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard 5 “Reporting the
Substance of Transactions”; their mortgages
were shown as "“Loans and advances to
customers subject to Non-recourse funding”
and their funding liabilities were shown as a
deduction from mortgages described as
“Non-recourse funding”. Their net profit
before tax was included within “Other
operating income”. Under IFRS, the mortgages
are included within "Loans and advances to
customers”, the funding is included within
“Debt securities in issue” and the net profit is
split between the relevant income and
expense lines (principally “Net interest
income”, "Administrative expenses” and
“Impairment (loss)/credit”).

2. Post-retirement benefit obligations

The Group has adopted the amendment to
IAS 19 "Employee Benefits” issued by the IASB
in December 2004 which allows actuarial
gains and losses to be charged directly to
retained earnings.

The {FRS Balance Sheet at | January 2004
reflects the net deficit on post-retirement
defined benefit obligations as at that date. The
adjustment to opening retained earnings (net
of an associated deferred taxation adjustment)
reflects also the reversal of the prepayment
and liability in relation to UK GAAP accounting
under Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice 24 "'Accounting for Pension Costs".
Adoption of IAS 19 caused an incremental
charge to the Income Statement for the year
ended 3t December 2004, less a related
taxation credit. In addition an actuarial loss less
related taxation credit was taken directly to
retained earnings during the year.

3. Share-based payment

Where equity instruments are granted to
employees as part cf their remuneration
(including in respect of employee and
performance share schemes) a charge is
recorded in the Income Statement with a
corresponding increase in retained earnings,

in accordance with IFRS 2 "Share-based
Payment”. The charge is based on the fair
value of the instruments at the date of grant
and is spread over the period to vesting. As
permitted by IFRS |, this expense is charged
only on options which were granted after

7 November 2002 and which had not vested at
1 lanuary 2005. Deferred taxation is provided
based upon the expected future corporation
tax deductions relating to share-based payment
transactions, and is recognised over the vesting
period of the schemes concerned. Under IFRS,
as at | January 2004 there is no need for

share based payment UK GAAP accruals. The

| January 2004 UK GAAP corporation tax asset
is replaced by a share-based payment deferred
taxation asset.

4. Revenue recognition

IAS (8 “Revenue” requires that income from the
sale of certain investment and protection
products, which are generally received over a
four-year period, be discounted and spread and
the notional interest element of the income be

i accounted for. This has the impact of reducing
i debtor balances in the | January 2004 Balance




Sheet, reducing provisions against these
balances and deferring income. Opening
retained earnings are reduced after taking
account of the refated tax asset. Income before
taxation for 2004 is increased with an
associated additional taxation charge.

5. Dividends

IAS 10 “Events After the Balance Sheet Date" -
requires that dividends declared after the year
end should not be recognised as a liability in the
year end Balance Sheet as the dividend does
not represent a present obligation as at that
date. Under UK GAAR the year end Balance
Sheet includes an accruat for the final dividend
proposed between the year end and the date
of approval of the Financial Statements. In the

| January 2004 Balance Sheet the proposed
final 2003 dividend is not accrued under FRS
and the amount of dividend deducted from
retained earnings during 2004 is lower under
IFRS than under UK GAAR

6. Amortisation of goodwill

IFRS 3 "Business Combinations” requires that
goodwill is not amortised; instead it is subject to
an annual impairment review. As the Group has
elected not to apply IFRS 3 retrospectively to
business combinations which occurred prior to

I January 2004, the UK GAAP goodwill balance
at 31 December 2003 has been included in the
| January 2004 Group IFRS Balance Sheet. The
goodwill was disposed of in full during 2004
with the discontinued operations (as detailed in
note 8) and the loss on disposal of goodwill was
higher under IFRS due to the non-amortisation
during the year.

7. Deferred taxation

The scope of IAS 12 “Income Taxes' is wider
than the corresponding UK GAAP standards
and requires deferred taxation to be provided
on all temporary differences rather than just
timing differences. As a result, the Balance
Sheet at | January 2004 includes an additional
deferred taxation liability in respect of a
rolled-over capital gain. The liability had
decreased by 3| December 2004,

8. Presentation of financial statements

IAS | "Presentation of Financial Statements”
requires corporation tax and deferred taxation
balances tc be shown on the face of the
Balance Sheet; under UK GAAP the Group
carried these balances within “Other assets”,
“Other liabilities” and “Provisions for liabilities

and charges”. IAS 30 “Disclosures in the
Financial Statements of Banks and Similar
Financial Institutions” requires separate
disclosure of gains less losses arising on debt
securities; under UK GAAP the Group included
these amounts within “Net interest income”.

9. Computer software

Under UK GAAR all capitalised computer
software was included within "Tangible fixed
assets” on the Balance Sheet. Under IFRS, only
computer software that is integral to a related
item of hardware should be included as
"Property, plant and equipment’’. All other
computer software should be recorded as an
intangible asset. Accordingly, a reclassification
has been made in the Balance Sheet as at

I January 2004 from “Property, plant and
equipment”’ to “Intangible assets”.

IAS 32 and 39 adjustments

10. Derecognition of financial liabilities

ln accordance with IAS 39 certain balances
which had previously been de-recognised
from the Balance Sheet under UK GAAP
have been reinstated to the Balance Sheet.
This has the impact of increasing “Customer
accounts” at that date, net of provisions for
reclaims. Reinstating these balances gives rise
to a deferred taxation asset. The cost of
re-recognising previously de-recognised
balances is removed from the 2004 IFRS
Income Statement.

I1. Classification of financial instruments
The Group has issued securities, via a Jersey
based subsidiary, which qualify as “innovative”
tier | capital under the definition of capital
applied to UK banks by the Financial Services
Authority. Under UK GAAPR these securities

“were accounted for as a “Minority interest”

within the Group Balance Sheet. Under IAS 32
it is reclassified as debt and transferred to
liabilities. This accounting change does not
affect the regulatory capital status of the
securities and they remain a part of the
Group's tier | capital. Corresponding with the
change in Balance Sheet presentation, the cost
of this capital is reclassified as an interest
expense in the Income Statement.

12. Effective interest rate

IAS 39 requires that most income and
expenses arising from financial assets and
financial liabilities be accounted for on an EIR

basis. The EIR is the rate which at the outset
of the instrument exactly discounts the
relevant forecast cash flows associated with
the instrument over the instrument's
expected life back to the initial carrying
amount of the instrument. The forecast cash
flows to be included are all incremental
receipts and payments, and under IFRS these
items are all considered to be part of the net
interest income or expense arising on the
instrument; under UK GAAR some of these
flows were considered to be non-interest, for
instance fee and commission income or
expense or administrative expense, Interest
income or expense in respect of the
instrument is recognised by applying the EIR
o the carrying amount. This has the impact of
increasing the carrying value of "Loans and
advances to customers’ while UK GAAP
“Prepayments”, "Other assets” and 'Other
liabilities” relating to loans and advances to
customers are released. Carrying values of
"Debt securities in issue”, “Subordinated
liabilities” and "Other capital instruments” are
reduced. The adjustments to reflect EIR give
rise to a net deferred taxation liability.

13. Loan impairment

Under |AS 39, UK GAAP provisions for
mortgage losses are replaced by “Loan
impairment”. Impairment is recognised only
where there is objective evidence that events
have occurred by the Balance Sheet date which
indicate that the loan assets in questicn are
impaired. This has the impact of decreasing the
carrying value of loan impairment/provision
compared to UK GAAP as at | January 2005
and decreasing deferred taxation assets. The
impairment charge for 2004 is increased
compared to UK GAAR less an associated
taxation credit.

14. Fair value adjustments

Under IAS 39 certain financial instruments,
including all derivatives, are carried at fair value.
Subject 1o the hedge accounting criteria in

IAS 39 being met, the carrying value of hedged
items may be adjusted to mitigate volatility
caused by carrying instruments at fair value.




TRANSITION TO IFRS

Consolidated

Reconciliation of equity at | January 2004

Consolidation Post- Presentation 2004

UK GAAP of special retirement  Share-based Revenue Deferred of financial Computer Statutory
Basis* purpose entities benefits payment  recognition Dividends taxation  statements software Basis*

£m £m £m £m £m £m m £m £m £m

Assets

Cash and balances at central 437 - - - - - - - - 437
banks

Treasury bills and other 1326 - - - - - - - - 1326
eligible bills

Loans and advances to banks  2,773.3 - - - - - - - - - 27733

Loans and advances to 24,7915 1,063.1 - - - - - - - 258546
customers

Loans and advances to 1 063.4 (1,063.1) - - - - - - - -
customers subject to non-

recourse funding
Less non-recourse funding (1,036.7) 1,036.7 - - - - - - - -
264 (264) - - - - - - - -

Debt securities 38849 - - - - - - - - 3,884.9

Prepayments and accrued
income [75.3 - (45.2) - (2.8 - - - - 127.3

Other assets 752 - - - - - - (13.5) - 6l.7

Deferred tax asset - - 344 04 - - 0.8) 13.5 - 47.5

Property, plant and 138.9 - - - - - - - (127} [26.2
equipment

Intangible assets 116.1 - - - - - - - 2.7 128.8

Total assets 32,157.9 1,036.7 (10.8) 0.4 (2.8) - ~ (0.8) - - 33,1806

Liabilities

Deposits by banks 1,708.8 - - - - - - - - 1,708.8

Customer accounts [7,170.5 - - - - - - - - 17,1705

Debt securities in issue 10,322.5 1,036.7 - - - - - - - 11,3592

Other liabilities 266.7 - (10.2) (1.4 (04 (68.4) - (93.5) - 92.8

Accruals and deferred 148.0 - - ©9) 82 - - - - 155.3
income

Current tax liabilities - - - 0.8 (3.2) - - 93.5 - EIN|

Post-retirement benefit - - 79.7 - - - - - - 797
obligations

Provisions 33 - - - - - - - - 33

Subordinated liabilities [,121.9 - - - - - - - - [,121.9

Other capital instruments - - - - - - - - - -

Total liabilities 30,7417 1,036.7 69.5 (1.5 4.6 (68.4) - - - 317826

Equity

Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders:

Share capital 158.5 - - - - - - - - 158.5
Share premium reserve 39 - - - - - - - - 39
Capital redemption reserve 20 - - - - - - - - (20
Other reserves - - - - - - - - - -
Retained earnings 1,0932 - (80.3) 1.9 (7.4 68.4 (0.8) - - },075.0

Total attributable equity 12676 - (80.3) i.9 7.4 68.4 (0.8) - - 1,249.4

Minority interest (non-equity) 148.6 - - - - - - - - 148.6

Total equity and liabilities 32,1579 10367  (10.8) 0.4 (2.8 - 0.8 - - 33,1806

*The UK GAAP and 2004 Statltory bases are defined on page 88.




Consolidated
Reconciliation of equity at | January 2004: Proforma Basis*

Unaudrted Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited  Unaudited
2004 | Derecognition Classification
Statutory of financial of financial Effective Loan Proforma
Basis liabilities  instruments  interestrate  impairment Basis*
im £m £m fm £m £m
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 43.7 - - - - 437
Treasury bills and other eligible bills 132.6 - - - - 132.6
Loans and advances to banks 2,7733 - - - - 27733
Loans and advances to customers 25,8546 - - 719 225 259490
Debt securities 38849 - - - - 38849
Prepayments and accrued income 127.3 - - Q17 - 105.6
Other assets 6l.7 - - (25.1) - 36.6
Deferred tax asset 475 30 - (104) 67) 334
Property, plant and equipment 126.2 - - - - 1262
Intangible assets 128.8 - - - - 128.8
Total assets 33,180.6 30 - 14.7 158 332141
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 1,708.8 - - - - 1,7088
Customer accounts 17,1705 4 - - - 17,1819
Debt securities in issue 11,3592 - - 3.5 - 11,3557
Other liabilities 928 (1.9 - 23 - 89.1
Accruals and deferred income 1553 - - - - 1553
Current tax liabilities 9l - - - - gil
Post-retirement benefit obligations 79.7 - - - - 79.7
Provisions 33 - - - - 33
Subordinated liabilities 1,121.9 - - (3.3) - 11186
Other capital instruments - - 148.6 (0.4) - 148.2
Total liabilities 31,7826 10.0 148.6 (9.5) - 31,931.7
Equity
Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders:
Share capital 158.5 - - - - 158.5
Share premium reserve 39 - - - - 39
Capital redemption reserve 120 - - - - 12.0
Other reserves - - - - - -
Retained earnings [,075.0 (7.0) - 242 158 1.108.0
Total attributable equity 1,249.4 (7.0) - 242 58 12824
Minority interest (non-equity) 148.6 - (148.6) - - -
Total equity and liabilities 33,180.6 30 - 14.7 158 33,214.1

*The purpose and definition of the unaudited Proforma Basis is provided on page 88.




TRANSITION TO IFRS

Consolidated

Reconciliation of profit for the year ended 31 December 2004

Consolidation Post- Presentation 2004
UK GAAP of special retirement  Share-based Revenue Amortisation  Deferred of financial Computer Statutory
Basis! purpose entities benefits payment  recognition  of goodwil taxation  statements software Basis |
£m £m £m £m £m £m m m £m £m
interest and similar income [,781.8 844 - - 22 - - (10.0) - |.858.4
Interest expense and similar  (1,334.7) (75.3) - - - - - - - (1,410.0)
charges
Net interest income 447.1 9.1 - - 22 - - (10.0 - 4484
Net fee and commission income 237.4 - - - (0.2) - - - - 2372
Gains less losses on sale of - - - - - - - 0.0 - 10.0
debt securities
Fair value movements on - - - - - - - - - -
financial instruments
Other operating income 243 (7.7) - - - - - - - 6.6
Net operating income 7088 (8.6) - - 20 - - - - 7022
Administrative expenses (488.7) (.7 (38) (33) - 85 - - - (489.0)
Impairment (loss)/credit 20 103 - - - - - - - 2.3
Non-operating income 6.4 - - - - - - - - 64
Profit before taxation and loss ~ 228.5 - (3.8) (3.3) 20 85 - - - 2319
on sale of discontinued
operations
Taxation? (66.5) - 1.2 09 0.7 - 0.1 - - (65.0)
Profit after taxation and before  162.0 - (2.6) (2.4) [.3 85 0.1 - - 166.9
loss on sale of discontinued
operations
_ Loss on sale of discontinued (120.1) - - - - 8.5) - - - (128.6)
operations, net of taxation
Profit for the financial year 419 - (2.6) (24) 1.3 - 0.1 - - 38.3
Attributable to:
- Equity shareholders 322 - (2.6} (2.4) 1.3 - 0.1 - - 286
- Minority interest (non-equity) 9.7 - - - - - - - - 9.7
41.9 - (2.6) 2.4 1.3 - 0.1 - - 383

I. The UK GAAP and 2004 Statutory bases are defined on page 88.
2. in the Group’s 2004 Report & Accounts the £3.1m tax credit in respect of the loss on sale of discontinued operations was included within the net tax charge. In the IFRS Income Statement

presentation this tax credit is offset against the loss on sale.




Consolidated

Reconciliation of profit for the year ended 31 December 2004: Proforma Basis*

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited  Unaudited
2004 | Derecognition  Classification
Statutory of financial of financial Effective Loan Proforma
Basis liabilities _instruments interest rate _impairment Basis*
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Interest and similar.income 18584 - - 83 - 1,8667
Interest expense and similar charges (1410.0) - 8.7 (0.7) - (1,4204)
Net interest income 448.4 - 9.7) 7.6 - 446.3
Net fee and commission income 2372 - - 3.1 - 2403
Gains less losses on sale of debt securities 100 - - - - 100
Other operating income 6.6 2.0 - - - 8.6
Net operating income 7022 2.0 (9.7 0.7 - 705.2
Administrative expenses (489.0) - - 5.1 - (483.9)
Impairment (loss)/credit 12.3 - - - (11.3) 1.0
Non-cperating income 6.4 - - - - 6.4
Profit before taxation and loss on sale of discontinued operations 2319 20 ©.7 15.8 (1n.3) 2287
Taxation (65.0) (0.6) - (4.7 33 (67.0)
Profit after taxation and before loss on sale of discontinued operations 166.9 1.4 0.7 i (8.0) 161.7
Loss on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxation (128.6) - - - - (128.6)
Profit for the financial year 38.3 I4 _(97) .1 (8.0) 33.]
Attributable to:
- Equity shareholders 286 1.4 - .1 (8.0} 331
- Minority interest {non-equity) 9.7 - 9.7} - - -
383 1.4 9.7) (. (8.0) 33.1

*The purpose and definition of the unaudited Proforma Basis is provided on page 88.




TRANSITION TO IFRS

Consolidated
Reconciliation of equity at 31 December 2004

Consolidation Post- Presentation 2004
UK GAAP of special retirement  Share-based Revenue Deferred of financial Computer Statutory
Basis* purpose entities benefits payment  recognition Dividends taxation statements software Basis*
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m fm
Assets
Cash and balances at central 51.2 - - - - - - - - 51.2
banks
Treasury bills and other 3804 - - - - - - - - 3804
eligible bills
Loans and advances to banks  4,156.0 - - - - - - - - 4,156.0
Loans and advances to 26,1524 2,716.0 - - - - - - - 288684
customers
Loans and advances to 27160 (2,716.0) - - - - - - - -
customers subject to
non-recourse funding
Less non-recourse funding (2,706.0)  2,706.0 - - - - - - - -
10.0 (10.0) - - - - - - - -
Debt securities 43177 - - - - - - - - 43177
Prepayments and accrued
income 2174 - (46.9) - (2.6) - - - - 167.9
Other assets 484 - - - - - - - - 48.4
Deferred tax asset - - 360 1.7 - - (0.7) (1.3) - 357
Property, plant and equipment 1240 - - - - - - - (29.1) 94.9
Intangible assets - - - - - - - - 29.1 29.1
Total assets 354575 2,706.0 (10.9) i.7 (2.6) - (0.7) (1.3) - 38,1497
Liabilities
Deposits by banks [,274.3 - - - - - - - - 1,274.3
Customer accounts 18,954.1 - - - - - - - - 189541
Debt securities in issue 12,2329 2,706.0 - - - - - - - 149389
Other liabilities 2713 - (1.6) (0.8) (0.5) (71.0) - (70.2) - 117.2
Accruals and deferred 190.0 - - 0.8) 6.6 - - - - 195.8
income
Current tax liabilities - - - 0.6 (2.6) - - 702 - 682
Post-retirement benefit - - 84.6 - - - - - - 84.6
obligations
Provisions 496 - - - - - - (1.3) - 48.3
Subordinated liabilities [,122.5 - - - - - - - - 1,122.5
Total fiabilities 34,094.7 2,706.0 730 (1.0) 35 (71.0) - (1.3) - 368039
Equity
Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders:
Share capital 158.5 - - - - - - - - i58.5
Share premium reserve 39 - - - - - - - - 39
Capital redemption reserve 250 - - - - - - - - 250
Other reserves - - - - - - - - - -
Retained earnings 1,026.8 - (83.9) 2.7 6.1 71.0 (0.7) - - 1,009.8
Total attributable equity 12142 - (83.9) 2.7 6.1) 710 0.7) - - [,197.2
Minority interest (non-equity) 148.6 - - - - - - - - 148.6
Total equity and liabllities 35,4575 2,706.0 {(10.9) 1.7 (2.6) - (0.7) (1.3) - 381497

*The UK GAAF and 2004 Statutory bases are defined on page 88,




Consolidated
Reconciliation of equity at | January 2005

2004  Derecognition Classification Unaudited 2005
Statutory of financial of financial Effective Loan Proforma Fair Statutory
Basis ! liabilities? instruments?  interest rate? impairment 2 Basis ! value Basis !
fm £m £m £m m m £m fm
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 512 - - - - 512 - 51.2
Treasury bills and other eligible bills 3804 - - - - 3804 0.1) 380.3
Loans and advances to banks 4,156.0 - - 4,156.0 - 4,156.0
Loans and advances to customers 28,8684 88.1 1.2 289677 - 289677
Fair value adjustments of portfolio hedging - - - - - 917 917
Debt securities 4,317.7 - - 4317.7 58.7 4,376.4
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 4579 4579
Prepayments and accrued income 167.9 - (18.3) 149.6 (87.9) 61.7
Other assets 484 - - (27.0) - 24 - 214
Deferred tax asset 357 24 (15.1) (34) 19.6 (2.0) 7.6
Property, plant and equipment 94.9 - - - 949 - 949
Intangible assets 29.1 - - - - 29.1 - 29.1
Total assets 38,149.7 24 - 277 78 | 38,187.6 5183 387059
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 1,274.3 - - - 1,274.3 - 1,274.3
Customer accounts 18,954.1 9.3 - - - | 189634 67 189701
Derivative financial instruments - - - - 5190 519.0
Debt securities in issue 14,9389 - - (30 14,9359 4.1 149500
Other liabilities 7.2 (1.3) - 0.5) 115.4 - 1154
Accruals and deferred income 195.8 - - - 195.8 (684) 27.4
Current tax liabilities 682 - - - 682 - 68.2
Post-retirement benefit obligations 84.6 - - - 84.6 - 84.6
Provisions 483 - - - - 483 - 483
Subordinated liabilities [,122.5 - - (3.6) - 1,189 28.0 11469
Other capital instruments - - 148.6 (0.5) - 148.1 18.0 166.1
Total liabilities 36,8039 8.0 148.6 (7.6) - | 36,9529 5(74 374703
Equity
Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders:
Share capital 158.5 - - 158.5 - 1585
Share premium reserve 39 - - 39 - 39
Capital redemption reserve 250 - - - 250 - 250
Other reserves - - - - - - (5.0) (9.0
Retained earnings 1,009.8 (5.6) - 353 7.8 10473 99 1,057.2
Total attributable equity 1,197.2 (5.6) - 353 78 1,234.7 09 1,235.6
Minority interest (non-equity) 148.6 - (148.6) - - - - -
Total equity and liabilities 38,149.7 24 - 27.7 78 | 381876 5183 387059

1. The 2004 and 2005 Statutory bases and the Proforma Basis are defined on page 88.

2. These audited adjustments are also applied to determine the Proforma Basis as defined on page 88.




TRANSITION TO IFRS

Company
Reconciliation of profit for the year ended 31 December 2004
£m £m
Profit after taxation of the Company attributable to the shareholders:
UK GAAP* 6.5
Adjustments to restate to the 2004 Statutory basis*
Dividend income 22
Post-retirement benefits (2.6)
Share-based payment (24)
Revenue recognition 1.3
Deferred taxation 0.1
Total adjustments (1.4
2004 Statutory basis* 5.1
Company
Reconciliation of equity at | January 2004
Post- Presentation 2004
UK GAAP  retirement  Share-based Revenue Deferred  of financial ~ Computer Statutory
Basis* benefits payment  recognition Dividends  taxation  statements software Basis*
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 436 - - - - - - - 43.6
Treasury bills and cther eligible bills 1326 - - - - - - - 1326
Loans and advances to banks 25567 - - - - - - - 25567
Loans and advances to customers 242885 - - - - - - - 2472885
Debt securities 3,304.1 - - - - - - - 33041
Prepayments and accrued income 155.3 (45.2) - (2.8) (10.9) - - - 96.4
Shares in Group undertakings 624.7 - - - - - - - 624.7
Other assets 264 - - - - - @1 - 263
Deferred tax asset - 344 04 - 2.6 (0.8) 0.1 - 367
Property, plant and equipment 108.8 - - - - - - .o 97.8
Intangible assets - - - - - - - 11.0 11,0
Total assets 31,240.7 (10.8) 0.4 (2.8) (8.3) (0.8) - - 31,2184
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 3913 - - - - - - - 3913
Customer accounts 17,7460 - - - - - - - 17,7460
Debt securities in issue 10,3225 - - - - - - - 103225
Other liabilities 228.1 (102) (1.4) (0.4 (68.4) - (634) - 843
Accruals and deferred income 136.4 - (©9) 82 - - - - 1437
Current tax liabilities - - 08 (3.2) - - 63.4 - 61.0
Post-retirement benefit obligations - 79.7 - - - - - - 79.7
Provisions 32 - - - - - - - 32
Subordinated liabilities 1,270.5 - - - - - - - 1,2705
Total liabilities 30,088.0 69.5 (1.5 4.6 (68.4) - - - 30,1022
Equity
Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders:
Share capital 158.5 - - - - - - - 158.5
Share premium reserve 39 - - - - - - - 39
Capital redemption reserve 12.0 - - - - - - - 2.0
Retained earnings 968.3 (80.3) 1.9 (74) 60.1 (0.8) - - 941.8
Total attributable equity 1,142.7 (80.3) {9 74 60.1 (0.8) - - 1162
Total equity and liabilities 31,240.7 (10.8) 04 (2.8) (8.3) (0.8) - - 312184

*The UK GAAP and 2004 Statutbry bases are defined on page 88.




Company
Reconcitigtion of equity at 31 December 2004

Consclidation Post- Presentation 2004
UK GAAP of special  retirement Share-based Revenue Deferred  of financial  Computer Statutory
Basis* purpose entities benefits payment recognition  Dividends  taxation statements software Basis*
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 512 - - 512
Treasury bills and other eligible bills 3804 - - - - 380.4
Loans and advances to banks 37717 - - - - - 3777
Loans and advances to customers 26,7635 2,0000 - - - - 287635
Loans and advances to customers 2,000.0 (2.000.0) - - - -
subject to non-recourse funding
Less non-recourse funding (1,995.8) 1,995.8 - - - - -
42 (4.2 -
Debt securities 36937 - - - - - - - - 36937
Prepayments and accrued income 1454 (46.9) - (2.6) (8.7) - - - 872
Shares in Group undertakings 5576 - - - - - - - 5576
Other assets 13.4 - - - - - - 134
Deferred tax asset - - 360 1.7 26 07) (57) - 339
Property, plant and equipment 90.2 - - - - - (8.5) 8i.7
Intangible assets - - - - - - - 85 85
Total assets 35,4713 19958 (10.9) L7 (2.6) (6.1) (0.7) (5.7) - 374428
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 6493 - - - - - - - - 6493
Customer accounts 19,7324 1,995.8 - - - - - 217282
Debt securities in issue 12,305.6 - - - - - - - - 12305.6
Other liabilities 2325 - (1.6} 0.8) (0.5) 7Ly - 522) - 964
Accruals and deferred income 162.7 - - (0.8) 6.6 - - - - 168.5
Current tax liabilities - - - 0.6 (2.6) - - 522 - 502
Post-retirement benefit obligations - - 84.6 - - - - - 84.6
Provisions 540 - - - - (57) - 483
Subordinated liabilities 1,271.2 - - - - - - - 1,271.2
Total liabilities 34,407.7 1,995.8 73.0 (1.0) 35 (71.0) - (5.7) 364023
Equity
Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders:
Share capital 158.5 - - - - - - 158.5
Share premium reserve 39 - - - - - - 39
Capital redemption reserve 250 - - - - - - - 250
Retained earnings 876.2 - (83.9) 27 6.1) 649 ©7) - 853.1
Total attributable equity 1.063.6 - (83.9) 2.7 (6.1) 649 Q.7) - 1.040.5
Total equity and liabilities 354713 1,995.8 (10.9) 1.7 (2.6) (6.1) (0.7) (5.7) 374428

*The UK GAAP and 2004 Statutory bases are defined on page 88,




TRANSITION TO IFRS

Company
Reconciliation of equity as at | January 2005
2004 Derecognition Unauditad 2005
Statutory of financial Effective Loan Proforma Fair Statutory
Basis | liabilities 2 interest rate 2 impairment ? Basis | value Basis !
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 512 - - - 51.2 - 512
Treasury bills and other eligible bills 3804 - - - 380.4 Q.1 380.3
Loans and advances to banks 37717 - - - 3771.7 - 3771.7
Loans and advances to customers 28,7635 - 47.4 2.1 | 28,8230 - 288230
Fair value adjustments of portfolio hedging - - - - - 9t.7 917
Debt securities 36937 - - - 36937 58.7 37524
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 306.8 306.8
Prepayments and accrued income 872 - (0.8) - 86.4 (66.6) 9.8
Shares in Group undertakings 5576 - - - 5576 - 557.6
Other assets 134 - (34) - 0.0 1.5 1.5
Deferred tax asset 339 24 (15.1) (3.6) [7.6 84 260
Property, plant and equipment 81.7 - - - 8.7 - 81.7
Intangible assets 85 - - - 8.5 - 8.5
Total assets 374428 24 28.1 85 | 37481.8 4004 37,8822
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 649.3 - - - 649.3 - 649.3
Customer accounts 21,7282 9.3 - - | 21,7375 (785) 216590
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 534.8 5348
Debt securities in issue 12,305.6 - 3.0y - | 12,3026 0.8 12,313.4
Other liabilities 96.4 (1.3) (0.5) - 94.6 74 87.2
Accruals and deferred income 168.5 - - - 168.5 (85.1) 834
Current tax liabilities 50.2 - - - 50.2 - 502
Post-retirement benefit obligations 84.6 - - - 84.6 - 84.6
Provisions 48.3 - - - 48.3 - 483
Subordinated liabilities 1,271.2 - (3.6) - 1,267.6 454 1,313.0
Total liabilities 36,402.3 8.0 (7.1 - | 364032 4200 36,8232
Equity
Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders:

Share capital 158.5 - - - 158.5 - 1585

Share premium reserve 39 - - - 39 - 39

Capital redemption reserve 250 - - - 250 - 250

Other reserves - - - - - 0.0 %.0)

Retained earnings 853.1 (5.6) 352 85 891.2 (10.6) 880.6
Total attributable equity 1,040.5 (5.6) 352 8.5 1,078.6 (19.6) 10590
Total equity and liabilities 37442.8 24 28.1 85 | 37,481.8 4004 37,8822

|. The 2004 and 2005 Statutory bases and the Proforma Basis are defined on page 88.
2. These audited adjustments are.also applied to determine the Proforma Basis as defined on page 88.




SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Financial calendar 2006
16 February Resuits for 2005 announced

25 Aprilt Annual General Meeting

27 July Interim results for 2006 announced
Ordinary dividend

22 March  Ex-dividend date

24 March  Record date

5 May Payment of final dividend for 2005
23 August  Ex-dividend date

25 August  Record date

6 October Payment of interim dividend for 2006

Interest payments

13% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds

7 April Payment of interest

7 October Payment of interest
11.625% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds
20 January Payment of interest

20 July Payment of interest

Internet
Information about the Group can be found on
the internet at www.bbg.couk

Share price

You are able to keep track of the share price
through the financial press, or by visiting our
Group website at www.bbg.co.uk or by calling
the Shareholder Helpline on 0870 703 0003.

Share dealing service

To buy or sell Bradford & Bingley shares call
0870 703 0003. This service is provided by

our Registrar, Computershare, and is available
to all our shareholders. Please have your
Securityholder Reference Number (SRN') ready
when making your call. You will find this on your
voting form or your dividend documents.

Aninternet share dealing service has also been
established with our Registrar. Log on to
www.computershare.com/dealing/uk and have
your SRN ready. A bank debit card will be
required if you wish to purchase shares.

For shareholders in the Bradford & Bingley
Nominee Account ('BBNA') a postal share
dealing service is also available. Please contact
the Registrar for details.

Useful contacts

For information about the Annual General
Meeting (AGM"), shareholdings, dividends and
changes to personal details please contact the
Registrar: Computershare Investor Services PLC,
PO Box 1913, The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road,
Bristol BS99 2PR. Telephone: 0870 703 0003.

Institutional investors may wish to contact
Investor Relations by calling 01274 554928,

The Summary Financial Statement is posted to
shareholders who have not requested a full
version of the Annual Report & Accounts and
to those members of the BBNA who have
requested to receive it, together with the AGM
documents and a voting form. A full version of
the Annual Report & Accounts is available on
our www.bbg.co.uk website. Those

shareholders in the BBNA who do not currently -

receive these documents can make a request to
do so at anytime by calling the Registrar on
0870 703 0003. The Summary Financial
Statement is available in large print, Braille and
audio tape format. To request a copy call the
Shareholder Helpline on 0870 703 0003.

ShareGift Scheme

Many investors find themselves owning parcels
of shares in quantities so small that it would
cost more to sell them than they are worth.
They may therefore be too small to do
anything with, but may still bring an additional
tax liability on any dividends paid and unwanted
annual reports and other documents.

Bradford & Bingley plc supports the ShareGift
scheme which is administered by The Orr
Mackintosh Foundation (registered charity
number 1052686). Any shares that you donate
to the ShareGift scheme will be transferred
into the name of The Orr Mackintosh
Foundation, who will aggregate them, sell them
as soon as possible, and donate the proceeds
to a growing list of charities. Since ShareGift
was started in 1996, millions of pounds have
been given to hundreds of different charities.

If you would like to participate in the ShareGift
scheme, or receive more information about
the scheme, they can be contacted by visiting
their website at wwwisharegift.co.uk, by calling
0207 337 0501, or by writing to The Orr
Mackintosh Foundation, 46 Grosvenor Street,
London W IK 3HN.

Dividend mandates

If you have already elected to receive your
dividends directly into an account, you will
receive one consolidated tax voucher each
year. This will contain the taxation details of
all dividends paid in that particular tax year

Otherwise dividends will be paid to you by
cheque to the address held by the Registrar. If
you wish to have them credited to a bank or
building society account, you will receive a
form with the dividend payment enabling you
to do this.

Electronic communications

The Company has set up a facility for
shareholders to take advantage of electronic
communications. You can vote online and
receive notification of shareholder
documents electronically.

To cast your AGM vote online log on to
www.computershare.com/voting/uk and
complete the following steps:
+ Choose the Bradford & Bingley meeting
* You will need to enter your SRN and the
unique PIN number printed on your
voting form
* Enter your choices on screen

To register your e-mail address so that future
shareholder information can be made
available to you electronically log on to
www.bbg.co.uk and complete the
following steps:

» Click on ‘Shareholder e-Services'

* Enter the required information and click
on ‘submit’. You will need your SRN
located on your voting form or most
recent tax voucher

* Click on ‘submit’ again and register online

Electronic proxy appointment through CREST
In addition to providing electronic voting and
proxy appointment via our Registrars’ website,
the Company is supporting the CREST
electronic proxy appointment service. Please
see the notes on the proxy voting form for
details of how to use this service.




‘SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Shareholders’ interests in shares at 3| December 2005*

Number of shareholders

%

Number of shares

%

Size of holding

[ -250 946,509 92.795 234,969,780 37.037
251 - 500 52,856 5.182 25,007,342 3942
501 - 1,000 11,806 1157 8,838,067 1.393
1,001 - 5,000 7720 0.757 15,232,68l 2401
5,001 - 10,000 454 0.045 3,226,703 0.509
10,001 - 100,000 393 0.039 13,375,900 2.108
100,001 - 200,000 8l 0.008 11,302,555 1.782
200,001 - 500,000 69 0.007 23,620,503 3723
500,001 - 1,000,000 33 0.003 22349991 3523
1,000,001 - 5,000,000 63 0.006 140,316,793 22,117
5,000,001 - and over 13 0.001 136,184,219 21.465
Total 1,019,997 100.000 634,424,534 100.000
Type of holder

Individuals 1,017,030 99.709 286,335,847 45.133
Insurance and other corporates 372 0.036 5,134,172 0.809
Banks and nominees 2,553 0.250 333,410,517 52553
Pension funds, investment trusts and trustees 42 0.005 9,543,998 1.505
Total 1,019,997 100.000 634,424,534 100,000

*The interests above incude holdings in the Bradford & Bingley Nominee Account, certificated and uncertificated holdings.

As at 3| December 2005 the share price was 410.5p and the market capitalisation was £2.6bn.

Relative share price performance since flotation

Relative share price performance 2005
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Adyvisers
Auditor Registrar Stockbrokers

KPMG Audit Plc
| The Embankment, Neville Street
Leeds LS| 4DW

Computershare Investor Services PLC
PO Box 913, The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road
Bristol BS99 2PR

Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Canada Square, Canary Wharf,
London E14 5B

Hoare Govett Limited
250 Bishopsgate,
London EC2M 4AA

Solicitor

Herbert Smith

Exchange House, Primrose Street
London EC2A 2HS

Financial Adviser

Goldman Sachs International
Peterborough Court, 133 Fleet Street
London EC4A 2BB




This report is Carbon Neutral®

In order to minimise the environmental impacts of this report, Bradford & Bingley is working with
The Carbon Neutral Company to assess and ‘offset’ the greenhouse gas emissions created by the
production and distribution of the report. The 23.12 tonnes of COs produced will be balanced by
planting trees to absorb these emissions over time, making this report Carbon Neutral®.

For more information on The Carbon Neutral Company, visit www.carbonneutral.com

Bradford & Bingley”
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CarbonNeutral®publication
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www.bbg.co.uk

Registered office:
Bradford & Bingley plc
Croft Road

Crossflatts

Bingley

West Yorkshire

BD 16 2UA

Telephone: 01274 555555
Email: enquiries@bbg.co.uk
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